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CHARACTERISTICS OF GEM OF THE STOCK
EXCHANGE OF HONG KONG LIMITED (THE “STOCK
EXCHANGE”)

GEM has been positioned as a market designed to
accommodate companies to which a higher investment risk
may be attached than other companies listed on the Stock
Exchange. Prospective investors should be aware of the
potential risks of investing in such companies and should make
the decision to invest only after due and careful consideration.
The greater risk profile and other characteristics of GEM
mean that it is a market more suited to professional and other
sophisticated investors.

Given the emerging nature of companies listed on GEM,
there is a risk that securities traded on GEM may be more
susceptible to high market volatility than securities traded on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange and no assurance is
given that there will be a liquid market in the securities traded
on GEM.

The Hong Kong Exchanges and Clearing Limited and the Stock
Exchange take no responsibility for the contents of this annual
report, make no representation as to its accuracy or completeness
and expressly disclaim any liability whatsoever for any loss
howsoever arising from or in reliance upon the whole or any part
of the contents of this annual report.

This annual report, for which the directors (the “Directors”) of
China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”)
collectively and individually accept full responsibility, includes
particulars given in compliance with the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM (the “GEM Listing Rules”) for
the purpose of giving information with regard to the Company.
The Directors, having made all reasonable enquiries, confirm that
to the best of their knowledge and belief the information contained
in this annual report is accurate and complete in all material
respects and not misleading or deceptive, and there are no other
matters the omission of which would make any statement herein or
this annual report misleading.
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Chairman’s statement

TRHES

Dear Shareholders,

On behalf of the board (“Board”) of directors (“Director”) of
China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”), it gives me great
pleasure to present to you the annual report for the year ended 31
December 2018.

RESULTS PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded
revenue of approximately HK$73,423,000 (2017: approximately
HK$53,393,000). Loss attributable to owners of the Company
amounted to approximately HK$40,542,000 (2017: approximately
HK$98,487,000). The net loss attributable to owners of the
Company for the year ended 31 December 2018 was mainly
attributable to fair value loss on financial assets through profit
or loss of approximately HK$7,603,000, the impairment loss of
loan and interest receivables of approximately HK$6,804,000,
the impairment loss of trade receivables of approximately
HK$2,928,000 and the general and administrative expenses
of approximately HK$49,865,000, which were offset by loan
interest income of approximately HK$10,662,000 and income
from alcoholic beverage distribution business of approximately
HK$10,133,000.

BUSINESS PERFORMANCE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group recorded a
turnover of the feedstock products business of approximately
HK$36,473,000, representing an increase of approximately
HK$4,363,000 as compared to approximately HK$32,110,000 in
the corresponding year of 2017.
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Chairman’s statement Continuedg

During the year, the Group used its surplus liquidity to fund its
money lending business through its indirectly wholly-owned
subsidiaries. Loan interest income under this business segment
amounted to approximately HK$10,662,000 during the year
(2017: approximately HK$7,305,000). During the year, interests
of the loan receivables were charged at rates ranging from 5% to
24% per annum.

The Group has investments in securities of listed and non-listed
companies and funds in order to diversify its investment portfolios
and increase returns to shareholders. During the year, the Group
recorded a loss in fair value of financial assets through profit or
loss of approximately HK$7,603,000 and recognised a loss in
financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income
of approximately HK$14,416,000. The Board will continue to
closely monitor the performance of securities and investments to
mitigate possible financial risks.

In January 2018, the Group disposed of its interest in a non-
wholly owned subsidiary, Treasure Easy Limited (“Treasure
Easy”) to the 30% shareholder and a director of Treasure Easy, at
an aggregate cash consideration of HK$20,000 as Treasure Easy
was a net liability position as of that date.

In April 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of the entire
issued shares of Belicious (HK) Limited. The acquired company
is mainly engaged in distribution of imported craft beer in
Hong Kong and the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
at a HK$23,000,000. The turnover of the alcoholic beverage
distribution business for the year amounted to approximately
HK$10,133,000 (2017: Nil).

In May 2018, the Company and Supreme China Securities Limited
as the placing agent entered into a placing agreement pursuant to
which the placing agent has agreed to place, on a best endeavor
basis, in aggregate, up to 184,500,000 placing shares, to not
less than six placees who and whose ultimate beneficial owners
are independent third parties at a placing price of HK$0.10 per
placing share. In May 2018, the Company received net proceeds of
approximately HK$17.6 million from the placing. Such proceeds
were used by the Group in the investment of certain projects.
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Chairman’s statement (Continued)
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In September 2018, the Group further acquired 39% of the
issued shares of Tony China Limited, the subsidiaries of which
are principally engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of
feedstock products and related activities, at a consideration of
HK$10,000,000. Tony China Limited was a non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company owned as to 51% by the Company
before the further acquisition. Upon completion, the Company
holds 90% of the issued shares of Tony China Limited and each
of Tony China Limited and its subsidiaries remained to be a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

In October 2018, the Group completed the acquisition of 51% of
the issued shares of a company incorporated in Hong Kong. The
acquired company is mainly engaged in the provision of children
education and preschool services in Hong Kong. The turnover
of the children education business for the year amounted to
approximately HK$1,182,000 (2017: Nil).

In October 2018, the Group entered into a transfer of business
agreement in relation to the acquisition of the business in the
operation of two restaurants serving Japanese cuisine in Hong
Kong with an independent third party. The Directors believe that
opportunities in Japanese style restaurants in Hong Kong are
promising in light of the established but fragmented market. The
turnover of the food and beverage business for the year amounted
to approximately HK$12,494,000 (2017: Nil).

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group expects that the food and beverage business will
become one of the major force for growth. In order to strengthen
its position in the food and beverage industry, the Group will
continue to allocate resources to the food and beverage business,
and believes that such businesses will help to broaden the Group’s
sources of income. In addition, the Directors remain optimistic
about the growth potentials in the money lending market of Hong
Kong, and will take measures accordingly to improve our overall
operational efficiency and strengthen our revenue base.
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Chairman’s statement Continuedg

Following the further acquisition of the manufacturing,
development and distribution of feedstock products and related
activities, the Group remains committed to taking a flexible and
cautious approach to the operation of feedstock products business
by formulating our business strategies based on the market
development.

The management of the Company is confident about the operating
prospects of the newly acquired businesses. Leveraging on the
solid foundation supported by its existing core businesses, the
Group will formulate business strategies according to the market
trends and continue to explore new investment opportunities, in an
effort to enhance the Group’s long term profitability. In addition,
the Group will carefully review the development in all segments,
and will allocate more resources to the businesses with sustainable
growth potential. The Board considers that the acquisition will
therefore enable the Group to expand its business portfolio,
diversify its sources of income and possibly enhance its financial
performance.

I would like to take this opportunity to express my sincere
gratitude to the Directors, management and our staff for their
contributions made to the development of the Group. At the same
time, I would like to express my appreciation to our shareholders
for their continuous support. In return for your support, we are
fully committed to do our best to bring better returns to our
shareholders in the future.

Zhou Jing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”
and, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) recorded a net
loss attributable to owners of the Company of approximately
HK$40,542,000 for the year ended 31 December 2018 (the
“Year”) (31 December 2017: approximately HK$98,487,000).
This was mainly attributable to the fair value loss on financial
assets through profit or loss of approximately HK$7,603,000, the
impairment loss of loan and interest receivables of approximately
HK$6,804,000, the impairment loss of trade receivables of
approximately HK$2,928,000 and the general and administrative
expenses of approximately HK$49,865,000, which were offset by
loan interest income of approximately HK$10,662,000 and income
from alcoholic beverage distribution business of approximately
HK$10,133,000.

Revenue for the Year increased by approximately 37.5%
to approximately HK$73,423,000 (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$53,393,000), while gross profit for the
Year was approximately HK$25,897,000 (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$22,142,000). Revenue for the Year comprised
the sales of feedstock products amounting to approximately
HK$36,473,000 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$32,110,000), dividend income from listed equity investments
amounting to approximately HK$113,000 (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$204,000), loan interest income amounting
to approximately HK$10,662,000 (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$7,305,000), provision of financial services
amounting to approximately HK$2,366,000 (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$13,774,000), alcoholic beverage distribution
amounting to approximately HK$10,133,000 (31 December 2017:
Nil), food and beverage business amounting to approximately
HK$12,494,000 (31 December 2017: Nil), and provision
of children education services amounting to approximately
HK$1,182,000 (31 December 2017: Nil).
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Management Discussion and Analysis Continued))

General and administrative expenses for the Year increased
to approximately HK$49,865,000 (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$37,220,000). Such increase was mainly due
to inclusion of the operating expenses of the newly acquired
businesses including alcoholic beverage distribution business,
food and beverage business and provision of children education
services to the administrative expenses of the Group upon the
completion of their respective acquisition during the Year.

AGRICULTURAL BUSINESS

Revenue of the feedstock product business for the Year
amounted to approximately HK$36,473,000 (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$32,110,000), representing an increase of
approximately HK$4,363,000 as compared to the same period last
year. This was mainly attributable to steady sales of feedstock
products. As at 31 December 2018, trade receivables in relation
to agricultural business with carrying amount of HK$2,928,000
was considered uncollectible and an impairment in respect or
such trade receivables was made based on historical credit loss
experience. As such, the loss recorded from agricultural business
has increased accordingly.

MONEY LENDING BUSINESS

The licensing of money lenders and regulation of money-lending
transactions are governed by the Money Lenders Ordinance,
Chapter 163 of the Laws of Hong Kong, in which a person or
company carrying on business as a money lender in Hong Kong
must obtain a money lender licence.

The market of money lending business by licensed money lenders
in Hong Kong is keen and competitive. Based on the list of
existing money lenders licensees as maintained by the Registrar
of Companies in Hong Kong, there were more than 2,100 licensed
money lenders (including applications for renewal in progress) in
Hong Kong as at 31 December 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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The scope of money lending services provided by licensed money
lenders generally includes personal loans, business loans and
mortgage loans. Within a loan category, the interest rates, the
length of term of loan and choice of instalments vary with each
licensed money lender. In addition to competition with other
licensed money lenders, licensed money lenders also compete with
authorised institutions such as banks, restricted licensed banks
and deposit-taking companies in the provision of money lending
services, although licensed money lenders may offer an advantage
in providing loans with simpler approval procedures and greater
flexibility.

Therefore, in view of the competitive landscape of the money
lending business in Hong Kong, to reach potential borrowers
who might compare lending services and products across various
options, the brand exposure and target market are important to a
licensed money lender.

The Group’s money lending business does not generally target the
general public. In order to differentiate itself from other licensed
money lenders in the market, the target customers of the money
lending business of the Group are mainly as follows:

(i) as regards personal loans, the Group targets well-heeled and
reputational customers, the occupations of which ranged
from executives, businessmen to professionals; and

(ii) as regards business loans, the Group targets well-established
companies with business operations in Hong Kong and/or the
PRC.

For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group mainly provided
term loans to individuals and companies where interests are
payable by tailor-made schedule at fixed interest rate. The Group’s
money lending business do not usually grant loans to connected
persons of the Company and for the year ended 31 December
2018, Group has not granted any loan to the connected persons of
the Company.
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Management Discussion and Analysis Continued))

As at 31 December 2018, personal loans represented
approximately 81% and business loans represented approximately
19% respectively in value of the Group’s total active and
outstanding loan portfolio. All of the customers in the Group’s
money lending business are either Hong Kong or PRC residents or
companies with business operations in Hong Kong and/or the PRC
and come from referral from the business partners of the Group.

The majority of our loans are short-term loans repayable within a
year. As at 31 December 2018, 91% of outstanding loan balances
were short-term loans repayable within one year and 9% of
outstanding loan balances were long-term loans repayable beyond
one year.

As at 31 December 2018, the effective interest rate of the active
and outstanding loans in the loan portfolio of the Group’s money
lending business ranged from approximately 5% to 24% per
annum. Most of the loans granted by the money lending business
of the Group are unsecured loans. To justify the higher credit
risk, the Group typically charge a higher interest rate. Unsecured
loans represented approximately 80% of the Group’s total active
and outstanding loan portfolio as at 31 December 2018. Most of
such unsecured loans were advanced to individuals, who are well-
heeled and reputable and therefore, the Group has not requested
for additional personal guarantees in respect of such loans.

Given that the majority of the loans granted by the Group’s money
lending business are short-term loans provided to our customers
who, as mentioned above, were well-heeled and reputable
individuals and well-established companies who/which need
short-term financing for personal/business needs, the collateral
requirement was not viable as it was inconvenient to provide
collaterals for short-term loans. Moreover, the creation and
release of collaterals for short-term loans will create unnecessary
administrative cost to the Group. In view of the higher underlying
credit risk and lack of collateral, the Group could typically charge
higher interest rates. Also, the Group usually required customers
to provide signed and post-dated bank cheques with payments in
accordance with tailor made repayment schedules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis (Continued)
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For certain corporate customers, the Group has requested
personal/corporate guarantees in order to enhance the
recoverability of the loans. In determining whether a personal/
corporate guarantee is required to add further security for the loan,
the Group will consider, on a case by case basis, the reason for
the borrowing, the credit history of the borrower with the Group,
the borrower’s financial background and the Group’s credit
exposure for the loan. As at 31 December 2018, loans which are
backed by personal/corporate guarantees/mortgages in respect of a
property represented approximately 22% in total number of loans,
and approximately 20% in value of our Group’s total active and
outstanding loan portfolio.

During the Year, the Group used its surplus liquidity to fund the
money lending business, loan interest income from this business
segment amounted to approximately HK$10,662,000 during the
Year (31 December 2017: approximately HK$7,305,000).

Impairment loss of loan and interest receivables of approximately
HK$6,804,000 was made on the Group’s money lending business
for the Year. The impairment was made after considering the
recoverability of the loan and the related interest.

CREDIT POLICY AND LOAN APPROVAL PROCESS

The board of Directors (the “Board”) has set up a credit
committee (the “Credit Committee”) and adopted a credit policy
for the credit approval procedures. The Credit Committee has
full authority to deal with all credit matters. The members of the
Credit Committee are appointed by the Board and the quorum of
the Credit Committee is at least two committee members.

The primary duties of the Credit Committee are, among other
things, to approve and oversee the credit policy of the Group’s
money lending business and to monitor our loan portfolio. The
credit policy of the Group’s money lending business is subject
to the review and amendments by the Credit Committee and
the Board from time to time in line with changes in market
environment. Given the fast changing environment, the Board and
the Credit Committee endeavor to review the credit policy at least
once a year.
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Management Discussion and AnaIyS|s Contlnued))

Loan applications are generally received by the Credit Committee
members, who are responsible for verifying the loan application
documents and processing the loan applications. Credit Committee
members are the main contact point with the customers, and are
responsible for collecting the customers’ information and handling
loan application documents throughout the loan application
process.

After receiving of the loan applications, the Credit Committee will
perform the credit assessment procedures to assess the repayment
ability of customers. The Group has set out strict credit check
procedures to verify the credit worthiness of the customers. As
each loan is different and unique, the Group does not have any
specific quantitative conditions or criteria imposed for approving
its loan. Each loan is decided on a case-by-case basis.

The following is a summary of the general guidelines of assessing
the loan applications by the Credit Committee:

(1) Identity proof — such as identity card and passport (for
individuals) and business registration certificate, certificate
of incorporation and the constitutional documents (for
corporate entities) must be verified,;

(2) Address proof — such as utility bills, bank/credit card
statements or formal correspondence issued by a government
or statutory body is required to be produced;

(3) Repayment ability assessment — to assess and justify
the repayment ability of the customer, criteria such as
availability of guarantor, the background of the customer,
and where applicable, the past payment record and any
other relevant information are to be considered. The Credit
Committee may request further information from the
customer including but not limited to the followings: tax
demand note, tax return, bank book record, bank statement,
payroll slip, MPF statement, employer’s letter, employment

contract, rental income receipt, tenancy agreement, financial

statements, and auditor’s report etc.; and
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ERRsImR N (18)

(4) Legal search — a legal search will be conducted on the
customers (and as the case may be, the guarantors) to
ascertain if the potential borrowers have any prior legal cases
in the past, which may cast doubt on credit worthiness and
repayment ability.

As with the credit assessment of borrowers, guarantors who
provide personal/corporate guarantee in favour of a loan are also
required to meet the same basic eligibility and approval criteria,
and will be required to go through the same verification and
approval procedures.

The Credit Committee members will also be responsible for
determining the interest rates charged to the customers, having
taken into consideration factors such as the credit risks of the
customers, their recoverability and the prevalent market interest
rates. Typically, higher interest rates will be charged for unsecured
loans to justify the higher credit risk.

After credit assessment and review of the loan applications by
the Credit Committee, loan documents will be prepared and the
loans will be recommended to the directors of the wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Company which operates the money lending
business for final approval.

If the applicable percentage ratios as defined under the GEM
Listing Rules in respect of the making of the loan under the loan
application would constitute a discloseable transaction of the
Company pursuant to Chapter 19 of the GEM Listing Rules, the
loan application will be forwarded to the Board and a meeting
of the Board will be held to consider and approve the loan
application. It is the Group’s policy not to make any advance to
a borrower if such a proposed loan transaction will constitute a
major transaction or above under the GEM Listing Rules.
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Management Discussion and Analysis Continued))

FINANCIAL SERVICES BUSINESS

During the Year, revenue from external customers of China
Demeter Securities Limited (“CD Securities”) amounted to
approximately HK$2,366,000 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$13,774,000). CD Securities is a wholly-owned subsidiary
of the Group, principally engaged in advising on securities and
dealing in securities and is a licensed corporation in Hong Kong
to carry out Type 1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on
securities) and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the
Laws of Hong Kong) (the “SFO”).

In late June 2017, there was a sharp decline in the share price of
certain stocks held by CD Securities as collateral for its margin
clients (the “June Incident”). As a result of the June Incident, a
number of CD Securities’ accounts receivable arising from margin
financing business became undercollateralised. Following the
June Incident and the deterioration of CD Securities’ margin loans
during and after the June Incident, CD Securities received a letter
from the Securities and Futures Commission (the “SFC”), wherein
the SFC, among other things, had raised concern about certain
issues on CD Securities’ margin loan operations and requirements
under the Code of Conduct for Persons Licensed by or Registered
with the Securities and Futures Commission (the “Code of
Conduct”). In such connection, the SFC had instructed CD
Securities to temporarily refrain from providing further margin
lending to its clients and refine its margin financing policy. Hence,
the interest income from securities clients and commission from
securities dealing decreased accordingly. In late October 2018, CD
Securities has reinforced control measures to ensure compliance
with its revised internal control policies and procedure for its
securities margin financing activities and the Code of Conduct
and subsequently, CD Securities has resumed its securities margin
lending business.

The Group will strengthen its internal control policy and take a
prudent approach to develop the securities brokerage and margin
financing business to reduce the credit risk from the margin
clients.
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SECURITIES INVESTMENT BUSINESS

The Group’s diversified securities investment portfolios cover
both listed and non-listed companies, in order to diversify its
investment portfolios and increase returns to shareholders. The
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss held by the
Group were all shares of listed companies in Hong Kong.

During the Year, the Group recorded loss from the changes
in fair value of financial assets through profit or loss of
approximately HK$ 7,603,000 (31 December 2017: approximately
HK$87,506,000).

The Directors consider that an investment in listed securities
with a carrying value of 5% or more of the net asset value of
the Group as at balance sheet date as significant investments
(the “Significant Investments”). As at 31 December 2017 and
31 December 2018, the Group did not hold any Significant
Investments.

ALCOHOLIC BEVERAGE DISTRIBUTION BUSINESS

Aiming to diversify the business profile of the Group, Eternal
Code Holdings Limited (“Eternal Code”), a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group as the purchaser, Nice Fund Limited
(“Nice Fund”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong as the
seller, and the ultimate beneficial owners of Nice Fund and
also the directors of Belicious (HK) Limited (“Belicious”), as
the guarantors, entered into a memorandum of understanding
on 9 February 2018, and further entered into the sale and
purchase agreement (the “Belicious SPA”) on 29 March 2018,
in relation to the sale and purchase of (i) all the issued shares of
Belicious (collectively, the “Sale Shares™); and (ii) the sale debts
representing the entire shareholder’s loan owing by Belicious to
the seller at completion, at an aggregate cash consideration of
HK$23 million. According to the terms of the Belicious SPA,
Nice Fund and the guarantors guaranteed to Eternal Code that
the average of the audited net profit after tax for each of the year
ended 31 December 2018 and the years ending 31 December
2019 and 31 December 2020 shall not be less than HK$3,000,000
(the “Guaranteed Average PAT”). Following the signing of the
supplemental agreement on 20 April 2018, completion of the
acquisition took place and Belicious became a wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Group, and its financial results was consolidated
into the consolidated financial statements of the Group.
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Management Discussion and Analysis Continued))

Belicious is principally engaged in distribution of imported craft
beer in Hong Kong and the PRC. It has established a wholly-
owned subsidiary in the PRC. It is expected to have a positive
impact on the operations, financial results and profitability of the
Group. During the Year, revenue from the distribution of alcoholic
beverage business amounted to approximately HK$10,133,000 (31
December 2017: Nil).

During the Year, the actual profit after tax of Belicious and
its subsidiaries was HK$1,671,000 based on its management
accounts. According to the Belicious SPA, in the event that the
amount of the average audited net profit after tax attributable to
the owners of Belicious for each of the year ended 31 December
2018 and the years ending 31 December 2019 and 31 December
2020 (the “Actual Average PAT”) is less than the Guaranteed
Average PAT, Nice Fund and the guarantors shall jointly pay, in
cash or immediately available funds, to Eternal Code a sum (the
“Shortfall Compensation”) calculated according to the following
formula:

A=B-0)x8
Where:

A is the Shortfall Compensation provided that such amount
shall be capped at HK$9,000,000;

B is the Guaranteed Average PAT; and

C  is the Actual Average PAT.

As at the date hereof, the criteria for calculation of the Actual
Average PAT had not been reached for assessment of the Shortfall
Compensation, if any. The Group will monitor the performance
of the Belicious and will fulfill the obligations of information
disclosure based on the subsequent progress of the above matter.
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FOOD AND BEVERAGE BUSINESS

During the Year, food and beverage business returned as one of
the Group’s principal business through operating of six restaurants
serving Japanese cuisine and Hong Kong local food in Hong
Kong and Singapore. During the Year, the revenue from food and
beverage business amounted to approximately HK$12,494,000
(31 December 2017: from discontinued operations approximately
HK$3,584,000). The Group is optimistic about the food and
beverage market in particular the potential in Japanese style
and Hong Kong style restaurants for development and hopes
to generate higher returns for shareholders by mapping out
a business strategy for expanding in a flexible and prudent
approach.

PROVISION OF CHILDREN EDUCATION SERVICES

On 8 October 2018, the Group entered into the subscription
agreement with Nobel Education Organisation Limited (“Nobel”),
to subscribe for 51% of the enlarged issued share capital of Nobel
at HK$3,000,000 in cash. The Directors are of the view that the
education services market in particular in the kindergarten and
pre-school education business will have good potential for growth
in Hong Kong. The Directors believe the acquisition represented
a good opportunity for the Group to enter the kindergarten and
pre-school education-related service business. Through the
acquisition, the Group would be able to acquire the requisite
expertise, knowledge and connections without having to invest
heavily or incur substantial costs in adapting to and exploration
of the new market. During the Year, revenue from the provision
of children education services amounted to approximately
HK$1,182,000 (31 December 2017: Nil).

INVESTMENTS IN A JOINT VENTURE

The joint venture is currently engaged in investing in the business
of operating restaurants, cafes and takeaway outlets in Singapore.
During the Year, the Group recorded the share of loss of a joint
venture of approximately HK$1,801,000 (31 December 2017:
approximately HK$759,000). The increase in loss was mainly
attributable to the rising costs of the food ingredients and
beverages for operation and related staff costs. The Group will
closely monitor the development of the joint venture and adjust
its business strategy according to the market conditions to cater to
market needs.
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Management Discussion and Analysis Continued))

ISSUE OF SHARES UNDER THE GENERAL MANDATE

On 4 May 2018, the Company and Supreme China Securities
Limited as placing agent entered into a placing agreement
pursuant to which the placing agent agreed to place, on a best
endeavor basis, in aggregate, up to 184,500,000 placing shares
of the Company at the placing price of HK$0.1 per share to not
less than six placees under general mandate (the “Placing”). The
placing price represented (i) a discount of approximately 0.99%
to the closing price of HK$0.101 per share of the Company
as quoted on the Stock Exchange on 4 May 2018; and (ii) a
discount of approximately 1.38% to the average closing price
of approximately HK$0.1014 per share of the Company as
quoted on the Stock Exchange for the five consecutive trading
days immediately prior to 4 May 2018, being the date of the
relevant placing agreement. The net price per placing share was
approximately HK$0.095. As disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 24 May 2018, the completion of the Placing
took place on 24 May 2018 in accordance with the terms of
the placing agreement. The Company received net proceeds of
approximately HK$17.6 million, which was used in the investment
of certain new projects including the alcoholic beverage
distribution business and the food and beverage business.

PROSPECTS

Looking ahead, the Group will focus on expanding its food and
beverage business during the year. The Group remains optimistic
about food and beverage market, and will operate the food and
beverage business with a flexible and prudent approach. The
Group expects that the acquisition in relation to operation of two
restaurants serving Japanese cuisine in Hong Kong in October
2018 will match the Group’s current strategy for investing in the
catering industry. In addition, it is expected that the loan business
will have a steady and positive development this year based on the
current market environment and sentiment. The Group remains
optimistic about the development potential of Hong Kong’s money
lending market and take measures accordingly to improve our
overall operational efficiency and strengthen our revenue base.
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The Group will review the markets for its respective businesses
with a forward looking perspective, committing more resources to
the business with sustainability potential. Meanwhile, the Group
will continue to seek business and investment opportunities with
a view to providing growth potential of the Group and bringing
higher returns to the shareholders of the Company.

MATERIAL ACQUISITION AND DISPOSAL

On 31 January 2018, Rich Sheen International Limited (“Rich
Sheen”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
and Mr. Li Ho Kwong (“Mr. Li”), a 30% shareholder and a
director of Treasure Easy Limited (“Treasure Easy”), entered into
the sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Rich Sheen
agreed to sell, and Mr. Li agreed to acquire, (i) the sale shares,
representing 51% of the issued share capital of Treasure Easy, a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, and (ii)
the sale loans, representing the entire shareholder’s loan owing by
Treasure Easy to Rich Sheen at completion date, at an aggregate
cash consideration of HK$20,000. Treasure Easy is principally
engaged in the provision of the food and beverage service in Hong
Kong. The disposal constituted a discloseable and connected
transaction of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules. The
disposal was completed on 31 January 2018. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 31 January 2018.

On 29 March 2018, Eternal Code, an indirect wholly-owned
subsidiary of the Company and Nice Fund, entered into the
Belicious SPA pursuant to which, Eternal Code conditionally
agreed to acquire (i) the entire issued shares of Belicious and (ii)
the sale debts HK$1,519,000, representing the entire shareholder’s
loan owing by Belicious to Nice Fund at completion date, at a
HK$23,000,000. Belicious and its subsidiaries are mainly engaged
in distribution of imported craft beer in Hong Kong and the PRC.
For details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 9 February 2018, 29 March 2018 and 20 April 2018.
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Management Discussion and Analysis Continued))

On 28 September 2018, the Company acquired a further 39% of
the issued shares of Tony China Limited (“Tony China”), the
subsidiaries of which are principally engaged in the manufacturing
and distribution of feedstock products and related activities, at a
consideration of HK$10,000,000. Tony China was a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company and owned as to 51% by the
Company before the further acquisition. Upon completion, the
Company now holds 90% of the issued shares of Tony China and
each of the members of the Tony China group will remain to be a
non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company. For details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 21 September
2018.

On 8 October 2018, the Group entered into the subscription
agreement with Nobel to subscribe for 51% of the enlarged
issued share capital of Nobel at HK$3,000,000 in cash. Nobel is
mainly engaged in the provision of children education services
in Hong Kong. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 8 October 2018. Upon completion, Nobel
becomes a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company.

On 12 October 2018, (1) Optimum Profit International Limited
(“Optimum Profit”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, and Global Food Culture Group Limited (“GFC”)
entered into a transfer of business agreement in relation to the
acquisition of the business of two restaurants serving Japanese
cuisine in Hong Kong operated by GFC at a cash consideration of
HK$1,986,800; and (2) Optimum Profit and AUR Cayman Limited
(“AUR”), the immediate holding company of GFC, entered into
the sale and purchase agreement pursuant to which Optimum
Profit agreed to acquire and AUR agreed to sell (i) the sale shares,
representing the entire issued share capital of the Hamayaki (HK)
Limited (“Hamayaki”); and (ii) the sale debts, representing the
entire shareholder’s loan owing by the Hamayaki to AUR, at an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$813,200. This transaction
was completed on 16 October 2018. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 12 October 2018.
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FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$68,576,000 (2017: approximately
HK$94,293,000) and net current assets of approximately
HK$191,074,000 (2017: approximately HK$225,898,000).
Current ratio (defined as total current assets divided by total
current liabilities) was 6.02 times (2017: 6.95 times).

The Group did not have any borrowings as at 31 December 2017
and 2018.

We fund our operations principally from cash generated from
our operations, other debt instruments and equity financing from
investors. Our cash requirements relate primarily to production
and operating activities, business and asset acquisitions,
repayment of liabilities as they become due, capital expenditures
and any unexpected cash requirements. During the Year, our loss
before interest, taxes, depreciation and amortisation amounted to
approximately HK$36,983,000.

The Group’s gearing ratio, which is calculated on the basis of the
Group’s total liabilities to the total assets, as at 31 December 2018
was 13% (2017: 12%).
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CAPITAL STRUCTURE AND FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had equity attributable to
owners of the Company of approximately HK$243,416,000 (2017:
approximately HK$277,735,000).

On 4 May 2018, the Company and Supreme China Securities
Limited as the placing agent entered into a placing agreement
pursuant to which the placing agent has agreed to place, on a
best endeavour basis, up to 184,500,000 placing shares, to not
less than six placees who and whose ultimate beneficial owners
are independent third parties at a placing price of HK$0.10 per
placing share (which represented a discount of approximately
0.99% to the closing price of HKO0.101 per share as quoted on the
Stock Exchange on 4 May 2018). The net price per placing share
was approximately HK$0.095. As disclosed in the announcement
of the Company dated 24 May 2018, completion of the placing
took place on 24 May 2018 in accordance with the terms of
the placing agreement. The Company received net proceeds of
approximately HK$17,600,000, which was used as to develop the
alcoholic beverage distribution and food and the beverage business
of the Group.

Net proceeds

Date of Fund raising raised

announcement activity (approximately)
CEE s

A HY LEWH T (BEA)

4 May 2018, and
24 May 2018

Placing of 184,500,000
new shares at the
placing price of HK$0.10
per Share under
general mandate.

HK$17.6 million
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE AND INTEREST RATE EXPOSURE

For the year ended 31 December 2018, most of the Group’s
business transactions, assets and liabilities were principally
denominated in Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”), Renminbi (“RMB”),
Singapore dollars (“S$”), United States dollars (“US$”) and HK$
is the Group’s presentation currency. The Group is exposed to
potential foreign exchange risk as a result of fluctuation of RMB,
S$ and US$ against HK$. The Group currently does not have a
foreign currency hedging policy in respect of its foreign currency
assets and liabilities. The Group will monitor its foreign currency
exposure closely and will consider using hedging instruments in
respect of significant foreign currency exposure should the need

arise.

When appropriate and at times of interest rate or exchange rate
uncertainties or volatility, hedging instruments including swaps
and forwards will be used by the Group in the management
of exposure affecting interest rates and foreign exchange rate
fluctuations.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any contingent
liabilities (2017: Nil).

CHARGES OF GROUP ASSETS

As at 31 December 2018, the Group did not have any charges of
group assets.
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HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2018, the Group had approximately 77
employees in Hong Kong and the PRC (excluding directors of
the Company) (2017: 55). The Group’s remuneration policy is
to provide competitive level of remuneration to employees and
directors based on their performance, qualification, experience and
the prevailing industry practice.

Apart from regular remuneration, discretionary bonus and share
options may be granted to eligible staff by reference to the
Group’s performance as well as individual’s performance.

We aim to provide employees with resources and an environment
that encourages them to develop careers with us. We provide
management personnel and employees with on-the-job education,
training and other opportunities to improve their skills and
knowledge.

Pursuant to the share option scheme adopted by the Company
on 30 September 2013, the Board may grant options to eligible
persons, including employees and directors, to subscribe for
shares of the Company. During the Year, the Company did not
grant any option.

ENVIRONMENT

The Group is subject to laws and regulations in Hong Kong, the
PRC and Singapore. The Group has established environment
policies and procedures aimed at compliance with local
environmental and other laws. For the feedstock production, we
have complied with the “Regulations on Administration of Feed
and Feed Additives”, and the “Measures for the Management of
Production Licenses for Feeds and Feed Additives”. For the food
and beverage production process, part of the food waste and all
of the waste oil were recycled and collected by the environmental
parties. During the year, the Group was not aware of any non-
compliance of laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group relating to air and Greenhouse Gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, or generation of hazardous and
non-hazardous waste. The management performs regular reviews
to identify environmental risks and to ensure that the systems in
place are adequate to manage these risks.
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EVENT AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 4 January 2019, Amber Talent International Limited (“Amber
Talent”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
entered into a sale and purchase agreement with an individual
(the “Vendor”), an independent third party, pursuant to which
Amber Talent has conditionally agreed to acquire from the
Vendor the entire issued share capital of Champ Express Holdings
Limited (“Champ Express”), a company incorporated in the
British Virgin Islands with limited liability, at the consideration
of HK$6,800,000. Champ Express and its subsidiaries (“Champ
Express Group”) are principally engaged in the research and
development of Chinese patented medicine products. After taking
into account of commercial considerations, in particular, that
sufficient documents and/or information have not been provided
to the Group to carry out and complete the due diligence of the
Champ Express Group to its satisfaction, on 7 March 2019, the
Vendor and Amber Talent entered into a termination agreement
whereby the parties have mutually agreed to terminate the sale and
purchase agreement with effect from the date of such termination
agreement and upon termination, no party to the sale and purchase
agreement shall have any claim against the other party in respect
of any matter or thing arising out of or in connection with the
sale and purchase agreement save for any antecedent breaches and
accrued benefits.
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INVESTMENTS IN AN UNLISTED INVESTMENT FUND

East Gain Enterprise Limited (“East Gain”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with limited liability
and a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, invested in
certain non-voting participating redeemable shares (the “Fund
Shares”) of an unlisted investment fund (the “Fund”) in 2015.
A qualified opinion was issued by the auditors of the Company
to the consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2017 as the Company was unable to obtain sufficient
audit evidence about the carrying amount of the Fund as at 31
December 2017 and the auditors hence were unable to obtain
sufficient reliable audit evidence in order to satisfy themselves as
to whether the carrying amount of the Fund as at 31 December
2017 was fairly stated, and as to whether any fair value changes
should be reflected in other comprehensive income or any
impairment loss should be charged to profit or loss for the year
ended 31 December 2017 in respect of the Group’s holdings in the
Fund.

Subsequent to the publication of the announcements dated 11
May 2018, 13 August 2018, 13 November 2018, the management
of the Group has continued to follow up with the management of
the Fund and the fund administrator on the progress of the audit
of the Fund and in particular, the Group has instructed its legal
adviser to follow up the matter with the management of the Fund.
By a letter dated 31 January 2019 issued by the manager of the
Fund, the Group was provided with a copy of the audited financial
statements of the Fund for the year ended 31 December 2017,
and the carrying amount of the Fund as at 31 December 2017 was
approximately HK$6.6 million. For details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 11 February 2019.
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On 15 March 2019, East Gain accepted the offer from Convoy
Collateral Limited (“CCL”), a company incorporated in Hong
Kong with limited liability, an independent third party to
purchase 736.217 fund shares held by East Gain at the disposal
price of approximately HK$6.6 million (the “Disposal Price”),
representing the net asset value attributable to the Fund Shares
held by East Gain as at 31 December 2017. The Disposal Price is
to be settled in cash by 34 monthly instalments from March 2019
to December 2021.

Taking into account (i) the fact that the investment in the Fund
has not generated any dividend income for the Group; (ii) the
redemption and transfer restrictions; (iii) the constant cash
inflow that will be brought by the disposal; and (iv) the declining
performance of the Fund, the Group considers that the disposal of
the Fund represents a good opportunity for the Group to cash in
the uncertainties. For details, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 15 March 2019.

Completion of the disposal of the Fund is conditional upon the
other shareholders of the Fund accepting CCL’s offer and East
Gain receiving the Disposal Price in full from CCL. As at the
date of this report, East Gain has been informed by CCL that all
shareholders of the Fund had accepted its offer to purchase.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report

ABOUT THIS REPORT

This is the Environmental, Social and Governance (the “ESG”)
Report of China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the
“Company”, together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”),
describing our efforts for creating sustainability for our
stakeholders during the fiscal year from 1 January 2018 to 31
December 2018.

The report aims to be plain, clear and easy-to-read. The board
of directors of the Company (the “Board”) acknowledges its
responsibility for integrity of this report and to the best of its
knowledge, this report addresses all relevant material issues and
fairly presents ESG performance of the Group.

REPORTING FRAMEWORK AND BOUNDARY

This report has been prepared in compliance with the “comply or
explain” provisions set out in the ESG Reporting Guide, Appendix
20 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on GEM of
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

This report discloses ESG performances of the Group’s feedstock
products business in the People Republic of China (the “PRC”),
money lending business, financial services business, securities
investments business, food and beverage business, alcoholic
beverage distribution business and provision of children education
services in Hong Kong.

FEEDBACK

We welcome your feedback regarding how we can improve our
performance and reporting in the future. Please send us your
feedback at info@chinademeter.com.

ESG MANAGEMENT APPROACH

The Group operates a factory in PRC for feedstock products while
the other services provided by the Group are mostly office-based
and do not involve manufacture of any tangible goods.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)

RIE-HENKRECHS (18)

The Group is fully committed to charting a long-term business
growth path for the benefit of all its stakeholders. To create
such value, incorporating sustainability into our business is
an important step. The Board undertakes the responsibility for
ensuring ESG issues and related considerations are incorporated
in processes and decision making, evaluating and determining the
Group’s ESG-related risks and opportunities, and disclosing ESG
performance of the Group in a fair manner.

The Group understands the environmental impacts of its
operations and strives to minimise the same to achieve better
environmental performance. As the boiler used in our feedstock
products business consumes the largest proportion of our total
energy use, we have taken necessary steps to minimise the
environmental impacts arising from the production processes,
including installation of a smoke and dust treatment facility and
a sewage facility at our production site. We continually monitor
the results of the existing mitigation measures and adopt new
initiatives for ESG management in our new businesses.

Due to the financial nature of other businesses, we are fully aware
that data security and anti-corruption policies are crucial to the
Group’s long-term success. We keep our policies transparent to
our stakeholders and encourage all employees to share the same
values.

Sound management of ESG issues is crucial to our business’
sustainable growth. The Company will continue to improve
its ESG management approach and strive to be a company
responsible to all its stakeholders.
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Environmental, Social and Governance Re}gcg Contlnued))
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STAKEHOLDERS ENGAGEMENT

Engaging with stakeholders is essential for the Group to
understand their concerns and emerging priorities of ESG issues,
ensuring ESG risks identification and management. We engage
with our stakeholders including customers, employees, the
community, the government and investors through communication
channels listed below.

o *E o ( =}

i % 2 i

Fr0y 5 2 S A AR B 1 T MR A5 1Y B
IH BB AL KA S TE Y B SRR
J 2 B AR IR BT AL R EA A
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Stakeholders Issues Engagement Channels
it & HIH 2 WIRE
Customers . Data privacy . Company website
®F ERHRL B AR ) A v
. Customer satisfaction . Feedback from frontline employees
HEFIMEE i 4% 18 B S i &
Employees . Training and development . Weekly staff meetings
g & B K % g B Tk
. Remuneration . Complaints system
Hr I By il )5
. Occupational Health and Safety
I S Mt o % 2
Community . Contribution to the community . Support charity organizations
At [ AL MFRREE
. Environmental protection
BRI R
Government . Legitimacy of service and . Compliance with applicable laws and
B business ethics regulations

IR A5 12 M B v A T
. Employee protection

TR F% 1 B
. Tax compliance

BLHS 5 B

Investors . Corporate governance .
BEE iioe S BT
. Business operations .
EHEE
. Information disclosure
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Annual reports and interim reports
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Press releases
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION
Environmental Management

The Company understands its responsibility to ensure proper
environmental management in its business operations. In view
of PRC’s stricter environmental requirements, the Company has
redoubled its efforts to manage environmental risks and mitigate
negative environmental impacts associated with its core feedstock
product business.

The Company strictly monitors its environmental performance
in its daily operations, requiring all its departments to comply
with the Company’s policies and guidelines in the environmental
aspects, particularly in energy management. The Company has
assigned the head of each department to ensure that sustainability
is embedded across the organisation at company level, department
level, workshop level and team level.

The Group’s money lending, financial services, securities
investment, alcoholic beverage distribution businesses, and
provision of children education services have a relatively less
environmental impact due to the office-based nature of these
businesses. Notwithstanding this, the group’s management
regularly reviews and ensures compliance with relevant
environmental laws and regulations, particularly on its food and
beverage business and feedstock products business, including but
not limited to the Environmental Protection Law, Law of the PRC
on the Prevention and Control of Air Pollution, Law of the PRC on
the Prevention and Control of Water Pollution and Law of the PRC
on the Prevention and Control of Environment Pollution Caused
by Solid Wastes.

The Group is not aware of any non-compliance of laws and
regulations that has a significant impact on the Group relating
to air and greenhouse gases (“GHG”) emissions, discharges into
water and land, or generation of hazardous and non-hazardous
waste during 2018.
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Use of Resources
Energy Management System
The Group has formulated an Energy Management System and a

management manual, covering the requirements and standards in
various aspects including electricity, water, oil, coal, compressed

o $E o ( =}

&R
E IR PE i
A A ) E BB YRR B O R K BT

> 3R 2 K R B R E S
A8 77 THT A KA B A HE o il B S ST DAAH B

air, etc. The establishment of the system is guided by the relevant ) o B BE TR A R R (LA (EOR BR A
PRC energy laws and regulations including but not limited to Crpr e N B R 0 B B A AR VR VA D) ) DA K
Law of the PRC on Conserving Energy as well as the Group’s AL [H 2 NEP B £ 45 51 o M & B %L
internal policies. We collect data of energy usage in various £ A5 FB P B B VR A A O I AT A
departments on a regular basis for analysis and formulate the DA il %2 A HE (Y B me w5 A o
energy conservation plan accordingly.
Total Electricity Consumption (GJ) and
Energy Intensity (GJ/ 000 HKD revenue)
HE U5 48 76 f (HE) K
. g, .
Total Electricity RE YRR IE (% M/:F?qu&ﬁ)
4% Consumption 4,000.00 0.08
846,268.45 kWh
EEAR 3,000.00 | c— - 0.06
846,268.45F FL I
2,000.00 0.04
74% 1,000.00 0.02
_ 2017 2018

B Feedstock Products Business in Mainland China

T A 2 B E S

Financial Services & Securities Investment
Businesses in Hong Kong

AT 2l MBS % v #i‘ﬁfé%’%z%

B New Businesses in Hong Kong started in 2018*
A NAE B i 2 A R

EE.

Energy Consumption

Electricity, natural gas and gasoline are the major types of energy
we consume. For the year 2018, the Company had an overall
electricity consumption of 846,268.45 kWh electricity, of which
around 74% (623,931.00 kWh) was consumed in PRC. The total
use of energy from Towngas used by our restaurants operating in
Hong Kong was 186,720 MJ, while the gasoline consumption by
vehicles amounted to 17,500 litres.

The total energy consumption amounted to 3,791.04 GJ with a
consumption intensity of 0.05 GJ per thousand Hong Kong Dollars
revenue.

Electrlcny B Gasoline W Towngas e== Intensity

T TR Gy

* New Businesses include Alcoholic Beverage Distribution
Business, Food and Beverage Business, and Provision of
Children Education Services
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Water Consumption

The total water consumption of the Group in 2018 was 11,468.37
tonnes, of which 7,719.37 tonnes were consumed by new
businesses. During the year, the Company did not have any issue

in sourcing water that is fit for the purpose.

Hi 7k

AP F— NEZHKERER
11,468.37Mf » H: vh7,719.37MF I i 7 2
W o AN > AN w) i SR B R K IR T
S 488 AT o] ) A o

Total Water Consumption (tonne) and
Water Intensity (tonne/ 000 HKD revenue)

JH K 48 8 (i) B K 8 B (Wi T ol i)

32%
Total Water 14,000 0.156 0.16
67% Consumption 014
11,468.37 tonnes 12,000
A 7k 4 10,000 0.100 0.12
11,468.37M§ 8,000 0.10
1% 0.08
6,000 11,468 0.06
4,000 L 0.04
2,000 . 0.02
0 T 1 0.00
Feedstock Products Business in Mainland China 2017 2018

T TR b 2 i A S
B Financial Services & Securities Investment
Businesses in Hong Kong

T T S Tl S D i 2 B SR
B New Businesses in Hong Kong started in 2018*

T )\AE B R 2 A s

s Water consumption

FK & K%

e \Vater intensity

* New Businesses include Alcoholic Beverage Distribution
Business, Food and Beverage Business, and Provision of
Children Education Services

S LA RS BORH > B RS - B B R 2 R R AR
38 HCF s

Waste and Packaging Materials

The Group’s operations do not generate any hazardous waste. During
the year, we generated 1.35 tonnes of general waste and 0.92 tonnes
of food waste, 0.22 tonnes of food waste were collected by the food
waste recycling companies. The 1.06 tonnes of waste oil generated
by our restaurants were recycled by registered waste cooking oil
collectors.

For the feedstock production, we have complied with the
“Regulations on Administration of Feed and Feed Additives”,
and the “Measures for the Management of Production Licenses
for Feeds and Feed Additives”. During the year, we are not
aware of any violations of laws that have a significant impact on
the Company relating to the generation of hazardous and non-
hazardous waste.

The total packaging material consumed was recorded as 29 tonnes
of plastic bags used in feedstock products business, an 89% year-
on-year reduction. 60 boxes of paper were used in Hong Kong
head office during the year.
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Emissions Management

The Group’s operations directly generate GHG through
consumption of petrol by its company vehicles. Indirect GHG
emissions are generated from purchased electricity and the use
of gas bought from Towngas for restaurants in Hong Kong. The
tables below show the air and GHG emissions in 2017 and 2018.

ort Contlnued))
é /0 *E o ( nae

PR B B

A A [ 2 SE TS R LA ) B 2 Y T AR
T A U O o R SR PR
TR B ORI 58 7 A v o ) A B Ao
FRER F—-LFER_FE—NFZHR
Bl I U 2 SRR P I L o

Total Amount of Air Emission (kg)
AP (F5)

Total Amount of GHG Emission (tCO:ze) and

Emission Intensity (tCO2¢/°000 HKD revenue)

o SR O i A R (O SRR ) R

230 B B (LR R T T s
2.00 700 0.01 0.01 0.012
600 0.01
0 o0 0.008
o 0.006
1.00 200 )
050 200 0.004
' 100 0.002
0.00 0 | 35 64 | 56.48 0
2017 2018 2017 2018
B SOx W NOx B Particulate matters [ ] Scoe 1 Scope_II —EmisgiHon intensity
WALy  RALw R i — L — YEnoE

* The Scope 1 GHG emission in 2017 is restated as 35.64 tCO2e.
R b AR Y S T R A

NS P TS £535.64MF —
AL E o

In 2018, total GHG emissions amounted to 632.35 tonnes of
carbon dioxide equivalent (“tCO2e”), of which, direct emissions
(Scope I) and indirect emissions (Scope II) were 56.48 tCO2e and
575.87 tCO2¢e respectively. Emission intensity was computed as
0.01 tCO2e per thousand Hong Kong Dollars revenue. The slight
increase of GHG emissions was due to the use of Towngas by the
Group’s newly acquired/start-up restaurants.

In feedstock production, a boiler, fuelled by wood is used to
produce steam to moisturise fodder. This accounts for the biggest
proportion of the overall energy consumption. To mitigate
environmental impacts caused by the smoke and wastewater
produced, the Group has installed smoke and dust treatment
facilities and sewage facilities at its production sites. After the
treatment processes, the smoke and dust emissions as well as
the waste water discharged by the Group were able to meet the
emission standards.
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Energy Conservation

To facilitate energy and water conservations the Group has set
a series of management standards and energy saving measures,
covering the usage of electricity, oil, coal and water. We are
committed to effective resources conservation through systematic
measurement and management.

Energy-saving Measures Fif GE i Il

B

S A RE IR KK SRR G - A AR [ o
TE— AR A B HE R HEAT B RE HE G

R i R BOR B A - A 2R
19 R S EH R B B BUA AL

. Use of oil is strictly monitored by the manager of each restaurant

A R S A S 4 T 1 L

U A quality check for coal is in place to ensure the quality of the resources used

B AT B A AR BT E IR &

. Operations of power systems in the office and public areas are monitored to ensure energy efficiency

BB A B RN LI ) R AEATIE DL MEOR BB

Water Conservation Measures £ 7K 1 i

. Pipeline maintenance

B A

U Recycle boiler water and steam water

[ ] g 18y 7K B 78 5,

. Encourage everyone to actively engage in saving water
SR 2= # B T AR KR 2 5L K17 B)

Green Office Measures

The Company’s operation in Hong
Strict Lighting Control

Ji s R M) 42

Kong (other than the restaurants)
is primarily office-based. The

Company in accordance with its

. e . Induction Faucets
energy-saving 1nitiatives, strives —
symeavme M K ¥ 5

to reduce operational costs in its
offices by creating a green office
environment. Such initiatives
include: promoting printer cartridge Used Paper

Double-sided Printing and
Recycling of Ink Cartridges and

AR A 11 1l

A T (R
FEBBR AN ) T 2R T R A
7 o AN 2% W) fev LB e
$6 it > B0 92 0 8 A Ak 6
NEBRE WD W R E
TR AS o AR B ER A 4 A S
T BB 85 3 K AR5R (8] i~ %
# A B K HE SRS 1k K E IR
B Jo 2 A7 SR T AL d KA

and paper recycling, installing %%TTEDU&EWE&E*UFH FrE i AE2S5. SH IR E - i b

automated water taps to prevent A

waste of water, and installing air

purifier and maintaining room temperature of 25.5 degree Celsius.
With the implementation of above measures, the use of resources
in our offices has been reduced.
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Employees Engagement

We are committed to not only reducing environmental impacts of
our operations and processes but also enhancing the environmental
awareness of our employees. Therefore, we have been making
efforts to mobilise the engagement of employees in protecting
the environment. For the feedstock products business in PRC,
a Reward and Punishment Mechanism has been formulated in
accordance with the Energy Management System, to enhance
environmental performance and practices of all departments.

Besides, the administrative department in PRC regularly
undertakes energy conservation promotion activities for
employees. Through the reward and penalty mechanism, we
have succeeded in enhancing the environmental awareness of our
employees.

Reward %% Jil
e Make effective suggestions for energy .
conservation measures
AL B RE A e A1 Hh A ko R .
e Make significant contributions to energy
conservation .

HUE BE AR 3 H R

oS (18

e R 2 5l

FRAM A By R A TP 8 R A 1 BR
SRR INE AR TR E B BRI
ik o RLIE - A —EHBECRE) B R A2
SHL B S5 R o LT B R i SE S
5 > B CAR 5 AE UR A B HE 4T 4
TEHE ] B TEAR TH A5 M A BB R B
TR

BEAL > o B A7 BB 1 S AL A IR B 2
S 8 HE B 1 ) o 228 908 T A Y 28 A ) -
A 2 A 2 T B BR AR R

Penalty J& &i

Contribute to energy waste
1R 22 BE R

Violate regulations

E S LB

Misrepresent data
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OUR PEOPLE

The Group complies with all applicable laws and regulations
including but not limited to Labour Law of the PRC, Labour
Contract Law of the PRC, and Special Rules on the Labour
Protection of Female Employees in PRC and the Employment
Ordinance in Hong Kong. We have adopted comprehensive
practices to protect the interests of our employees.

We are committed to eliminating all forms of forced labour and
child labour. For the recruitment process, we have developed an
employee identity verification system to make sure candidates
are not forced labour or child labour. During the year, the Group
was not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to employment and labour practices. Nor did we identify any
incidents relating to the use of child or forced labour.

Employees Composition

As of 31 December 2018, we had 84 full-time employees. Among
them, 51 (61%) were employed in Hong Kong and 33 (39%)
were based in PRC. The Group believes in diversity and gender
diversity is the key to maintain ability to innovate. Our male to
female ratio was 52:48. Among all our employees, approximately
17% were aged 30 or below while 70% of them were aged
between 31 and 50. In terms of education profile, around 37% of
our employees have obtained a bachelor’s degree or above.

40 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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In 2018, the turnover rate of employees was 16.67% while the new
hire rate was 17.86%. Distributions of turnover rate and new hire
rate by gender and by age are shown in the charts below.

Employee Profile by Geographical Location
YR PEAL 2 B L4 b

39%

61%

B Mainland China
A b

Hong Kong
i

Employee Profile by Age
AR BTN

13%

LB

70%
B 30 or below 30-50 B 50 or above
30BEE LA 30 S0 S0BEEL LA [

Employees’ Rights and Welfare

The Group believes that employee welfare is critical to the
business and can improve employees’ motivation and production.
We offer our employees compassionate leave and maternity leave
according to the labour laws. Insurance including but not limited
to medical insurance and occupational injury insurance, as well as
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme for Hong
Kong employees and central pension scheme for PRC employees
are also offered to our employees.

We engage with our employees regularly by arranging birthday
celebrations to delight our employees on their birthdays and
organising various kinds of cultural activities such as Halloween

party.

Contlnued))
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Employee Profile by Gender

PR 2 B L4
48% 52%
B Male Female
B 7

Employee Profile by Education
HHAEHERZHETLSH

37%

63%

B Below Bachelor’s Degree
AL T B R
Bachelor’s Degree or above
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HEALTH AND SAFETY

We are committed to maintaining a safe and healthy work
environment for our employees and strive toward zero accidents.
The Group’s occupational health and safety measures strictly
comply with Law of the PRC on the Prevention and Treatment of
Occupational Diseases, Production Safety Law of the PRC and
Measures for the Supervision and Administration of Employers’
Occupational Health Surveillance. During the year, the Group
was not aware of any non-compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating to
occupational health and safety.

To provide a safe and healthy workplace and mitigate the potential
health hazards in our operations, ventilation systems and office
equipment are checked regularly. Special equipment must pass
the relevant safety test and be licensed before putting into use.
Frontline employees are required to wear personal protective
equipment such as uniform, masks and gloves. We also arrange
regular medical check-ups for employees to safeguard their health.

Safety Training

To maintain safety awareness at work, we arrange safety training
for our employees on a regular basis. All new employees are
required to attend safety training during the induction programme.
Employees who leave their original position for more than
half year are asked to
undergo safety training
All
employees participated

2018 Safety Training Highlight:
R )N\ELERIIRE

again. of our

in production safety
training during the first A 1B BE A T A AT B %
quarter of 2018 and they
took part in fire safety .
training including fire
drills and fire appliances
training conducted in the
second half of 2018. .

top-level

Fire and evacuation drill in Long Yan City of PRC

To foster our employees’ awareness on fire prevention
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and to get them prepared for emergencies
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The participation rate reached 100%, including the

2 BLRIE100% > 045 F = g B B0 ) B
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Development and Training e K3
A AL B A A5 AR B AR B PE S M RS
AIIIE B » DA G 15 55 A 4107 B8 SR

keep them motivated. &) o

The Group organises structured training programs for employees
at the beginning of every year to introduce them new concepts and

Induction program On the job training Sales training

8 8 553

Professional training

N B3 3 A8 W 3 BRI

Offer to all new
employees, foreign
employees and
employees who

Training content:
New professional
skills training

S : B

leave their original R sl
positions for more
than half-a-year
T BT A A\ T AR
B~ g AME B KBk
BH SR A2 2 4 DL B
1 1 B 42 44

e Training content:
introduction to
safety and health
regulations,
company
guidelines and job
responsibilities
Bk 2 %
& RARRRRLG] - 2
A48 5] B TAERE

Total Number of Training Hours

A0 8 ey

130
22%

470
78%

W General Staff
— k&L

Management Level

R

Offer to our
customer service
staff on a regular

Offer on-demand
P LR $ it
Selected staff is

basis sent to external

EH I E R A5 training providers

At for relevant training
1788 B T Hi 13 41 5B
9 A3 8 T R A AT
A B 155

e Professionals are
invited to give talks
to employees

R B EEE R B
L i JAE

Total Person-times Training

R DY

102
25%

312
75%

B General Staff
— WAL

Management Level

)
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RIE-HENKRECHS (18)

OPERATING PRACTICES
Product Responsibility

We take our customers’ feedback seriously and there is a
specific mechanism in our restaurants to handle their comments.
Customers can send comments through phone, email and
Facebook. The operation department follows up with the
customers within 3 working days and the related information is
stored in the customer service department as reference. However,
we have not received any reports from our customers during the

year.

We have a specific policy for monitoring product safety and
quality in the feedstock production line. Chemical analysis is
done on imported raw materials and ready-to-export products.
Problematic materials are returned or eliminated. There is also
regular check-up in the storage so as to make sure the storage
environment is hygienic and the feedstock products are all in good
condition. We keep record of every feedstock product and no item
is stored for more than 10 days.

Our feedstock products are clearly labelled with the “PRC
Feed Label Standard” according to the GB10648-2013 standard
requirements and all folders are labelled and kept according to the
“Administrative Provisions on Feed Quality Safety” requirement.
The above measures comply with the Product Quality Law of the
PRC and also the Food Safety Law of the PRC. During the year,
the Group was not aware of any violation of relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on the Group relating
to health and safety, advertising, labelling and privacy matters
relating to products and services provided and methods of redress.
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Supply Chain Management

Our group has a total of 29 suppliers including 24 from PRC,
1 from Hong Kong and 4 from other regions. A “Supplier
Management System” is in place for better supply chain
management. Employees from department of quality control
and procurement are responsible for supplier investigation and
assessment. We do a thorough investigation into the quality of
materials used, procurement contracts and the after-sale service
of the suppliers. We also ask for samples if necessary, so as to
ensure the quality of our purchases. Whenever practical, we will
select suppliers that take responsibility for the environment and
the community.

Anti-Corruption

The Group forbids any form of corruption including bribery,
extortion, fraud or money laundering in order to prevent any
conflicts of interests. To ensure integrity in the Company, we
provide training to employees about anti-money laundering and
we also have a set of bribery prevention management guidelines
that clarifies our standards to the employees. Actions taken
comply with the Anti-Corruption Policy Addendum.

During the year, the Group was not aware of any breach of laws
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group
relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money laundering.

Community Investment

Having a policy to encourage employees to participate in charity
activities, the Group recognises the importance of giving back to
the society. During the year, the Group donated HKD$83,000 to a
charity group and our employees joined the Yan Oi Tong Charity
Walk 2018.
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PERFORMANCE DATA SUMMARY EHEEHE
Unit 2018
¥ pr —F )\ 4E
Total Headcount LN 84
Workforce Demographics 53 8 ) i wt
By Geographical Distribution 2 [ 358, 53 M
Hong Kong T 51
PRC F 33
By Age i 4 i
<31 <31 14
31-50 31-50 59
>50 >50 11
By Gender e M Fll
Male EeR s 44
Female P 40
By Education Level B H KF
Bachelor’s degree or above B2l - EE 31
Below Bachelor’s Degree B DU 2R 53
By Function 1 BE
Management I 23
General Staff — AT 61
Employees’ Turnover Rate fé B ik % 16.67%
By Age i AF 1%
<31 <31 28.57%
31-50 31-50 16.95%
>50 >50 0%
By Gender e M Fll
Male 51 18.18%
Female Ltk 15.00%
Employees’ New Hire Rate =N &S 17.86%
By Age T AR B
<31 <31 21.43%
31-50 31-50 18.64%
>50 >50 9.09%
By Gender e M Fll
Male it 27.27%
Female ok 7.50%
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Occupational Health and Safety
Occupational Health and
Safety Performance

Work-related accidents
Injuries suffered by employees
Lost days due to work injury
Work-related fatalities
Training and Development
Employees Total Training Hours

By Gender
Male

Female

By Function

Management

General Staff

Number of Employees Training

By Gender
Male

Female

By Function

Management

General Staff

Supply Chain Management
Number of suppliers

Hong Kong

PRC

Other Regions

Tk S £ Be B % &
Tk % fi e B & 2 3R B

TAGH L

18 8215

W TG % H 8
R TAE T N

Bl % %

fE B H )l A Rr

AR
F 1k

Ltk

Bk e
Rl

—MET
FSREEIDN 4

AR
1k

ok

Ik fie
L

AT

3% e o 4 L
A v B H
EORES
i
At b [

Unit 2018

k: ¥ A )\

0

0

0

0

Hours 600
N

Hours 336
NiER

Hours 264
7N Rf

Hours 130
NG

Hours 470
N

Person-times 414
AW

Person-times 229
A

Person-times 185
AR

Person-times 102
AN

Person-times 312
AWK

29

1

24

4

BRERIASRAT
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Community

Donation
Hours of volunteering

Environment
Total Resources Consumption

Total Energy Consumption
Electricity

Gasoline

Towngas

Tap Water

Intensity

Energy

Water

Emissions

Sulphur Oxides (SOx)
Nitrogen Oxides (NOx)

Particulate Matters (PM)

[

15 14
5 5 R T 1R
B
BRI AR A
RE VA TH FEAR &
TR
SV

W E
AE U

7K

PEm
fiit AL P (SOx)

R ALY (NOX)

HERL ) (PM)

Unit
k: ¥ A

HKD
o
Hours
NS

GJ
W
kWh
T R IRF
litres
}I_
MJ
JREH
tonnes

i

GJ/
per thousand
Hong Kong
Dollars revenue
HEH,
BT ook i
tonnes/
per thousand
Hong Kong
Dollars revenue
LV
(SR &

kg
T

kg
T

kg
T

2018
“E NS

83,000

24

3,791.04

846,268.45

17,500

186,720

11,468.37

0.05

0.156

0.26

1.69

0.12
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Unit 2018
B Apr “E )\
Greenhouse Gases Emissions 1 % 5 1 PRl =
GHG emissions it % S 8 P il tCOze 632.35
M — 4L
Scope 1 i [# — tCO2e 56.48
M — AL R
Scope 11 [ — tCO2e 575.87
M AL R E
Intensity g
GHG emissions 2 SR PRk tCO2e/
per thousand
Hong Kong
Dollars revenue 0.01
M AR AL ik
/g T s TR A
Waste JB% B )
Hazardous Waste HEBEEY tonnes 0
W
Non-hazardous Waste E Y tonnes 3.32
U
Packaging Materials (R
Plastic bags 5148 tonnes 29
7]
Others HoAty
Paper ARk boxes 60
i




Environmental, Social and Governance Report (Continued)
RIB-HEBNREIGHRS (£8)

HKEX ESG CONTENT INDEX

B R BRE - g RERB N

¥ |
KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guidelines Aspects Section/Remarks
oA S B e B A U8 W 52 P BR B - by R AR IR HO R 91 i Tk
A. Environmental
BB
Aspect Al Emissions
JE A1 &7
General Disclosure Information on: ENVIRONMENTAL
— B A 157 8% SR B A 2 SRR R 1) K R e g B Y PROTECTION
AEREEBEEDNEASFN: — Environmental
Management
a) the policies; and BRI AR i
HUOR 5 & —REEM
b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
TLSF B AT A RS B0 M BE A S
1 # EoR
relating to air and greenhouse gas emissions,
discharges into water and land, and generation
of hazardous and non-hazardous waste.
KPT Al.1 The types of emissions and the respective ENVIRONMENTAL
B R R AR AR AL emissions data. PROTECTION
PR R B B PR s - — Emissions
Management
BR 05 R e
— Ve Bt
PERFORMANCE
DATA SUMMARY
3N E SRS
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guidelines Aspects Section/Remarks
A i B 1R AR BRI LG RER IR RIIE TRk
A. Environmental
B
KPI A1.2 Greenhouse gas emissions in total (in tonnes) and, ENVIRONMENTAL
[ € R YN W) where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of PROTECTION
production volume, per facility). — Emissions
% A A PR (DAMEREE) K (hnid ) % B Management
(40 Ay s & B~ R IH R ) o BR TR e
— Peic B
PERFORMANCE
DATA SUMMARY
7 B MR =
KPI A1.3 Total hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) and, ENVIRONMENTAL
R S AR FE AL where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit of PROTECTION

production volume, per facility).

PrE A E Y A (LIMERHE) K (@ )

— Waste Management
RO

W (LA A B AL TSR R o — BE Y L
PERFORMANCE
DATA SUMMARY
3N E SRS
KPI Al.4 Total non-hazardous waste produced (in tonnes) ENVIRONMENTAL
B S TR TR ALS and, where appropriate, intensity (e.g. per unit PROTECTION
of production volume, per facility). — Waste Management
Jiv i AR M E B AR R (DAMEFESE) B (fnsdE A ) BRI AR v
S RE (0 LA B R AR TH R R R o — BEZEY) A AL
PERFORMANCE
DATA SUMMARY
R C S
KPI A1.5 Description of measures to mitigate emissions and ENVIRONMENTAL
o R UFE R ALS results achieved. PROTECTION
o 200 AT R = 1 4 i B P A5 AR o — Emissions
Management
BRI
— Pedew g Bt
KPT A1.6 Description of how hazardous and non-hazardous ENVIRONMENTAL
B S PR HEALLG wastes are handled, reduction initiatives and PROTECTION
results achieved. — Waste Management
2 g PRAT S EE B Ok WU E AR R | BRI IR
14 45 i S BT A5 BR © — BE ) AL
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il 7t i Y5 A % A ) R P A5 R

KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guidelines Aspects Section/Remarks
IH]  A 2 H A A 8 W 52 P BR B - by R AR IR O R 91 i Ok
A. Environmental
B
Aspect A2 Use of Resources
J& Wi A2 IR
General Disclosure Policies on the efficient use of resources, including ENVIRONMENTAL
— B energy, water and other raw materials. PROTECTION
BRAE G IR (BLHEBE TR ~ 7K B oAt S5 A R 1) — Use of Resources
HUR o BRI AR i
— B IR
KPI A2.1 Direct and/or indirect energy consumption by type ENVIRONMENTAL
B S R AR HE A1 (e.g. electricity, gas or oil) in total (kWh in PROTECTION
‘000s) and intensity (e.g. per unit of production — Use of Resources
volume, per facility). BRI R
BT B 70 0 B K SR R RE IR (08 - SRR — E IR
) BFE R (L8 T MRt &% % (Wl | PERFORMANCE
T B A BIEBRM ) DATA SUMMARY
TR €7 SIS
KPI A2.2 Water consumption in total and intensity (e.g. per ENVIRONMENTAL
9] B AR A AR R A2 unit of production volume, per facility). PROTECTION
RAFE/K & % B (0 DU B A~ g TE R e — Use of Resources
O BRI AR v
— B
PERFORMANCE
DATA SUMMARY
3 6 SRS
KPI A2.3 Description of energy use efficiency initiatives and ENVIRONMENTAL
o S R R A3 results achieved PROTECTION

— Energy Conservation
BR Rl

— B % RE TR
KPI A2.4 Description of whether there is any issue in ENVIRONMENTAL
R S AR R A2 4 sourcing water that is fit for the purpose, water PROTECTION
efficiency initiatives and results achieved. — Use of Resources
it 200 SR OB R K R AT A AR AT R DL R R T K BRET IR #
R w8 K T A R o — R
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guidelines Aspects Section/Remarks
I B A 2 4 A A U W 52 P BR B - b R A IR O R 91 i Tk
A. Environmental
BB
KPI A2.5 Total packaging material used for finished products ENVIRONMENTAL
8 St 4B AR AR AR5 (in tonnes) and, if applicable, with reference to PROTECTION
per unit produced. — Use of Resources
SR B R AL BB AR (AR ET S ) K2 (A BRI AR v
T ) A B — B
PERFORMANCE
DATA SUMMARY
B HE N
Aspect A3 The Environment and Natural Resources
JE A3 BERRARER
General Disclosure Policies on minimising the issuer’s significant ENVIRONMENTAL
— P i impact on the environment and natural PROTECTION
resources. — Environmental
WK EEAT N IR K R IR E IR % i KR 2 Management
B - BRI AR v
— B
KPI A3.1 Description of significant impacts of activities on ENVIRONMENTAL
R S R AR R AL the environment and natural resources and the PROTECTION
actions taken to manage them. — Energy Conservation
il 70t S5 1 ) 3 BR R R R IR E IR R BRI AR v
E BRI BT B R B AT ) — Hi %1 RE R
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guidelines Aspects Section/Remarks
BH i B 1R AR A 8 W 52 P BR B - by R AR IR O R 91 i Ok
B. Social
Fin
Employment and Labour Practices
0 5 e 55 T A
Aspect B1 Employment
J& T B1 0
General Disclosure Information on: OUR PEOPLE
— MR BE A7 B I B AR ~ TR R B T AR R AN B
FEEREE -~ Zouib » OB DA B AR R AR
A
a) the policies; and
BUR 3 )
b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
ST B AT A O B0 M B A S
{51l 64 R
related to compensation and dismissal, recruitment
and promotion, working hours, rest periods,
equal opportunity, diversity, anti-discrimination,
and other benefits and welfare.
KPI BI.1 Total workforce by gender, employment type, age OUR PEOPLE
B S AR HE B group and geographical region. — Employees
TV Al ~ AR AR BT RL AR s AR R B b s 43 10 48 B Composition
. EMNE
— fE B A
PERFORMANCE
DATA SUMMARY
e 32 6 SRS
KPIB1.2 Employee turnover rate by gender, age group and OUR PEOPLE
B o AR AR 1R B .2 geographical regions — Employees
F PR I~ AR B A R B b 1 ) o 0 R B TR R Composition
AN B
— fE B AL
PERFORMANCE
DATA SUMMARY
3N E SRS
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guidelines Aspects Section/Remarks
A i B 1R AR A U W 52 P BR B - b R A IR O R 91 i Tk
B. Social
Fin
Aspect B2 Health and Safety
J& i B2 it B L% &2
General Disclosure Information on: OUR PEOPLE
— R B A B R 2 A AR IR 5 e OR B AR B ke S i E 1 — Health and Safety
fEHER AN &
— fi R B2 2
a) the policies; and
HUR 5 K
b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
BLST BT A HORSE B AR B IA A R
{91 0 & R o
relating to providing a safe working environment
and protecting employees from occupational
hazards.
KPI B2.1 Number and rate of work-related facilities. PERFORMANCE
o S AR FE BB 2.1 ERRE Y IPANIPN 9 g DATA SUMMARY
e 308 67 S
KPI B2.2 Lost days due to work injury. PERFORMANCE
o S A R B B 2.2 R TAG K TAE H e DATA SUMMARY
REBR W
KPI B2.3 Description of occupational health and safety OUR PEOPLE

7] 6 4 S5 HEB2.3

measures adopted, how they are implemented
and monitored

A2t P PR AP 114 M S fk B B 22 A il - DA AR B L
11 B B T7 ik

— Health and Safety,
Training and
Development

FAMH N B

— f R B2 A BRI
R

Aspect B3

Development and Training

J& B3

B R

General Disclosure

— P R

Policies on improving employees’ knowledge and
skills for discharging duties at work. Description
of training activities.

A B B2 TR BB AT AR BB A A B RE 1Y I
o il 55 0 E By o

OUR PEOPLE
— Training and
Development
AN A
— Br il B g
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guidelines Aspects Section/Remarks
oA B A 2 4 AR T U Wk 22 B BR BT - AL & KA IR il 4R 51 e T RE
B. Social
Cin
Aspect B4 Labour Standards
J& 1 B4 5 THE R
General Disclosure Information on: OUR PEOPLE
— A BE A BB 1E B TR 5 il 25 T LA RPN =
a) the policies; and
BUR s &
b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
TSF B AT A O B0 M BE SR
B H &R
relating to preventing child and forced labour.
KPI B4.1 Description of measures to review employment OUR PEOPLE
B S AR AL R 1 B4 1 practices to avoid child and forced labour KM AN E
il 2 A TS A T (1 4 4 it L e B T Q% o o 55
€T
Aspect B5 Supply Chain Management
J& Ifi BS 3t W g 4 L
General Disclosure Policies on managing environmental and social OPERATING
— R B risks of the supply chain. PRACTICES
IR0 B ) BR BE ROk R B O o — Supply Chain
Management
B
— {HEE A B
KPI B5.1 Number of suppliers by geographical region OPERATING
[5H 9 A9 B BS.1 2 b Lm0 73 14 {46 8 7 4 H PRACTICES
— Supply Chain
Management
B
— I 8 g 3
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KPIs HKEX ESG Reporting Guidelines Aspects Section/Remarks
PR B 8 R 4 BRI LG RER IR RIIE TRk
B. Social
i f
Aspect B6 Product Responsibility
J& i B6 7E i B AE
General Disclosure Information on: OPERATING
— M R A7 B BT H2 AR 7 o R e T Y i R B 2 A RS AR PRACTICES
ﬁ&*&ﬁﬁ%ﬂd&ﬁﬁﬁ@iﬂ@~ — Product
Responsibility
B EY
a) the policies; and — EmEAiL
HUOR s &

b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
LAY B AT A R B0 M BRE A S
1) Bk

relating to health and safety, advertising, labelling
and privacy matters relating to products and

services provided and methods of redress.
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— Anti-corruption
a) the policies; and B H
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b) compliance with relevant laws and
regulations that have a significant impact on
the issuer
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relating to bribery, extortion, fraud and money
laundering.
Aspect B8 Community Investment
J& i B8 I %
General Disclosure Policies on community engagement to understand OPERATING
— R4 % the needs of the communities where the issuer PRACTICES
operates and to ensure its activities take into — Community
consideration the communities’ interests. investment
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Profiles of Directors and Senior Management

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul, aged 47, was appointed as an executive
Director and the chief executive officer of the Company with
effect from 15 November 2016. He obtained a Bachelor of Science
from Columbia University, New York, the United States of
America in May, 1993. Prior to joining the Group, he has worked
in various international investment banks and securities firms and
is experienced in the area of finance and investments. He is (i) a
cousin of Mr. Ng Ting Ho, an executive Director; and (ii) a cousin
of Mr. Ng Ting Kit, a substantial shareholder of the Company.

Mr. Lam Chun Kei (“Mr. Lam”), aged 43, was appointed as an
executive Director with effect from 20 February 2014 and is the
authorised representative and process agent of the Company. He
is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lam
holds a Bachelor Degree in Accountancy from the City University
of Hong Kong. He is a member of the Association of Chartered
Certified Accountants and a Certified Public Accountant of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. Mr. Lam has
over 20 years of experience in accounting, auditing and financial
management and previously worked in an international accounting
firm and listed groups.

Mr. Ng Ting Ho (“Mr. Ng”), aged 34, was redesignated from
a non-executive Director to an executive Director with effect
from 3 July 2018. He is experienced in banking and finance, and
previously worked in various banks and financial institutions.
He is also a director of the subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ng
obtained his Bachelor of Commerce in Finance and Financial
Economics Degree from the University of New South Wales in
2008. Thereafter, Mr. Ng further completed his Master of Science
in Financial Mathematics Degree from the Cass Business School
of the City University in London in 2014. Mr. Ng is (i) a cousin
of Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul, an executive Director; and (ii) the
younger brother of Mr. Ng Ting Kit, a substantial shareholder of
the Company.

ESEhSHERASBHN

PITEF

RIB A BAEATR > - FE — N
T —A+HHEERE AR AR ITE
HRAT BB o B — UL =4 LA
15 35 FI] B £ 7 80 4T 44 R ff b iR £
B - B o A I AR B T T R iR £
XK BB SR AT B 78 o8 AT > 6 iR
4 il T 0 S A R - A ()
HATE R REWEE 22 RG)AL
2 FERREEH A H

BRI ([ T) > BUFA3 > |
CE-NUECH T+ HEERIT AR
THE S AT AN 7 2 AR iUk
SCAEARER o TR 2 AN A A /) 2
o M4 R A Uk TR 2 gt R a8
BT o TR B B R R A R R AT A
Lol =S S TIPS R i T
MRS AR A B A% S B A B T R
A 204 K8 B o Slf7 G AT Rk A — Y B P e
FHEGAT S T AR o

LTI ([RIBAT) > BUF345% 0 H
TE - NFEEHA=ZHEHIERITESRER
A B AT 3 5 o B $RAT T 4 il 4 Sl
A R R TR AT 28R AT M
G AR A o D TR IE AT AR 2N R B B 2 W
H oo QA BT\ BUS B
R B G Tl K 4 Tl A6 T L B - LAY o
HA% > 5 A R E — DU AR A i U,
TR BE R T e 2 e S8 A 4 il R P R
T EAERAR - R B OWMATEF R
WA Z w s s R (D)ARN A Z FEFH
SRAEBE A M -

BRERBEAERAT
—F—\EEH

59



Profiles of Directors and S(enior Management (Continued)

ESEhSHERAS[N

=)

n=

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR

Mr. Zhou Jing (“Mr. Zhou”), aged 60, is the chairman of the
Board. Mr. Zhou was designated from an executive Director to a
non-executive Director with effect from 15 June 2018. Mr. Zhou
joined the Group in May 2013 as the general manager of the
Company. Mr. Zhou obtained a Bachelor of Engineering from
Wuhan Institute of Building Materials (i 1 & 5 f K} T. 35 2
B, now known as Wuhan University of Technology) in December
1982 and subsequently obtained a Master of Technology degree
from Wuhan University of Technology in July 1987. Thereafter
Mr. Zhou had worked in various departments in the Central
People’s Government, the PRC between 1987 to 1994. Mr. Zhou
had served as a factory manager, vice general manager and general
manager in various state-owned enterprises in the PRC from
May 1994 to August 2004. Between August 2004 to April 2013,
Mr. Zhou held various positions in dt 5t HF 1H 28 5 & H R 7
(China Zhong Heng Tai Investment Company Limited), a company
established with the approval of the National Development and
Reform Commission of the PRC (H3E A Rt Al [ B 5% 8% J2
M # Z: B &) and from February 2006 to April 2013, Mr. Zhou
held a concurrent post of general manager of China Zhong
Heng Tai Investment (Suriname) N.V. (H [ F 16 & & (#5
H) AR F), a company established by China Zhong
Heng Tai Investment Company Limited, in Suriname. Mr. Zhou
has more than 10 years’ experience in cultivation, processing
technology research and investment management in the field
of agriculture and forestry. Mr. Zhou was an independent non-
executive director of Sino Vision Worldwide Holdings Limited
(formerly known as DX.com Holdings Limited) (Stock Code:
8086) (“‘Sino Vision”) from September 2016 to August 2017. Mr.
Zhou was also an independent non-executive director of Tech Pro
Technology Development Limited (“Tech Pro”) (Stock Code:
3823) from March 2017 to September 2017. Sino Vision and Tech
Pro are listed on GEM and Main Board of the Stock Exchange
respectively.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Chan Hin Hang (“Mr. Chan”), aged 32, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 13 November
2017. He is also the chairman of the remuneration committee and
the audit committee, and a member of the nomination committee
of the Company. Mr. Chan has over 7 years of accounting
experience. He worked at Deloitte Touche Tohmatsu from
September 2010 to June 2015 and is a member of CPA Australia.
He obtained a Bachelor Degree in Business (Banking and Finance)
from the Queensland University of Technology in 2009. Mr. Chan
was an independent non-executive director of Millennium Pacific
Group Holdings Limited (stock code: 8147) which is listed on
GEM of the Stock Exchange from July 2017 to July 2018. He is
appointed as an independent non-executive director of Huisheng
International Holdings Limited (Stock Code: 1340) on 22 March
2019 which is listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien (“Mr. Yum”), aged 41, was
appointed as an independent non-executive Director with
effect from 13 November 2017. He is also the chairman of the
nomination committee of the Company and a member of the
audit committee and the remuneration committee. Mr. Yum has
more than 9 years of management experience in the corporate
and financial industry. He has served as a director in several
financial institutions from 2008 to present. Currently, he serves as
a managing director of Ayasa Globo Financial Services Limited,
an affiliated company of Globo Consulting Group, principally
engaged in providing financial services and as a director of
Greenpro Trust Limited, a company principally engaged in
providing a full range of trust services. Mr. Yum graduated with
a Bachelor of Science in Finance degree from the University of
[llinois at Urbana-Champaign in 2001.
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Mr. Hung Kenneth (“Mr. Hung”), aged 48, was appointed as an
independent non-executive Director with effect from 27 October
2014 and is a member of the audit committee, nomination
committee and remuneration committee. He holds a degree of
Bachelor of Science awarded by Woodbury University in June
1995. Mr. Hung has extensive experience in the entertainment
industry. From March 2008 to September 2010, Mr. Hung
was the China business development director for Golden Sun
Films Distribution Ltd. From October 2010 to June 2012, Mr.
Hung was the chief operation officer for Top Action Culture
Development Co. Ltd. From July 2012 to October 2013. Mr.
Hung was the business development director for Star Alliance
Movies (Beijing) Co., Ltd. Mr. Hung was the chairman of Sino
Vision from September 2016 to May 2017 and an executive
director of Sino Vision from May 2017 to November 2017. Mr.
Hung was an executive director of Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings
Limited (formerly known as Interactive Entertainment China
Cultural Technology Investments Limited) (Stock Code: 8081)
from February 2014 to August 2018 and is an independent non-
executive director of IR Resources Limited (Stock Code: 8186),
all of which are companies listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Ms. Chan Lai Ping (“Ms. Chan”), the company secretary of the
Company, joined the Group since August 2014. Ms. Chan holds
a degree of Bachelor of Business Administration (Honours)
in Accounting from Lingnan University in Hong Kong. She
is a member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Ms. Chan has over ten years of experience in
accounting, auditing and financial management and previously
worked in international accounting firms before joining the
Company.
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Mr. Lam Ka Hang, the director of China Demeter Securities
Limited, joined the Group since September 2016. He is
responsible for overall business development, operations and
management of China Demeter Securities Limited. He has over
20 years of experience in securities and futures businesses, and
has worked in a number of securities firms. He has expertise in
brokerage operations, sales management and market operations of
securities and futures businesses. He is the Committee Member
of Hong Kong Securities Professionals Association and Life
Honorary President of Hong Kong Institute of Financial Analysts
and Professional Commentators Limited. He is a responsible
officer recognised by the Securities and Futures Commission
(the “SFC”) for engaging in the Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 4 (Advising on securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management)
regulated activities. He was also a responsible officer recognised
by SFC for engaging in the Type 2 (dealing in futures contracts)
regulated activities from 2006 to 2015.

Mr. Chan Chi Fung, the vice president and a director of China
Demeter Securities Limited, joined the Group since October 2016.
He has approximately 14 years of experiences in financial market.
He is responsible for managing day to day trading operation. He
worked in Win Fung Securities Limited from December 2013
to October 2016 and his last position with Win Fung Securities
Limited was a director and was responsible for managing day to
day trading operation. He is also a responsible officer recognised
by the SFC for engaging in the Type 1 (dealing in securities),
Type 4 (Advising on securities) and Type 9 (Asset Management)
regulated activities.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 17.50A(1) OF THE
GEM LISTING RULES

Changes in information of Directors since the date of the 2018

interim report of the Company are set out below:

Details of changes

64

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul, chief executive officer of the
Company, has been provided an housing allowance of
HK$1,200,000 to compensate or otherwise subsidise the
cost of housing and accommodation for a calendar year with
effect from 31 August 2018.

The Director’s fee of Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul has been
adjusted to HK$120,000 per month with effect from 1
January 2019.

The Director’s fee of Mr. Ng Ting Ho has been adjusted to
HK$67,500 per month with effect from 1 January 2019.

The Director’s fee of Mr. Lam Chun Kei has been adjusted to
HK$48,000 per month with effect from 1 January 2019.

Mr. Kenneth Hung ceased to be an executive director of
Hang Tai Yue Group Holdings Limited (formerly known
as Interactive Entertainment China Culture Technology
Investments Limited) (Stock Code: 8081), shares of which
are listed on GEM of the Stock Exchange, with effect from
13 August 2018.

Mr. Chan Hin Hang has been appointed as an independent
non-executive director of Huisheng International Holdings
Limited (Stock Code: 1340) on 22 March 2019, shares of
which is listed on Main Board of the Stock Exchange.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Corporate Governance Re ort

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate
governance and to instituting procedures to ensure integrity,
transparency and quality of information disclosed thereby
enhancing the value of the Company for its shareholders.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is dedicated to maintaining and ensuring high
standards of corporate governance practices and the corporate
governance principles of the Company are adopted in the best
interest of the Company and its shareholders.

The Company’s corporate governance practices are based on
the principles, code provisions and certain recommended best
practices set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the “CG
Code”) as set out in Appendix 15 to the GEM Listing Rules.

The Company has complied with all the code provisions of the CG
Code during the year ended 31 December 2018.

CODE OF CONDUCT REGARDING SECURITIES
TRANSACTIONS BY DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the required standard of dealings as set
out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of the GEM Listing Rules as the code of
conduct regarding securities transactions by the Directors.

The Company has made specific enquiry to all Directors and the
Directors have confirmed that they have complied with all the
required standard of dealings as set out in Rules 5.48 to 5.67 of
the GEM Listing Rules during the year ended 31 December 2018.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of the
Company and for overseeing the business of the Group. The
Board has delegated authority and responsibility to the senior
management for the day-to-day operations of the Group. Key
matters will remain as the responsibility of the Board whose
approval will be required. In addition, the Board has also
delegated responsibilities to various management committees.
Details of those committees are set out in this corporate
governance report.
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Corporate Governance Report (Continued)
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The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2018 and up to
the date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul (Chief Executive Officer)

Mr. Lam Chun Kei

Mr. Ng Ting Ho (redesignated from non-executive Director on
3 July 2018)

Non-executive Director:

Mr. Zhou Jing (Chairman)
(redesignated from executive Director on 15 June 2018)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
Mr. Hung Kenneth

Details of the members of the Board, including the relationship (if
any) between the Board members, are provided under the section
headed “Profiles of Directors and Senior Management” of this
annual report.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

During the year ended 31 December 2018, all Directors, namely,
Mr. Zhou Jing, Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul, Mr. Lam Chun Kei, Mr.
Ng Ting Ho, Mr. Chan Hin Hang, Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
and Mr. Hung Kenneth had participated in continuous professional
development with respect to directors, duties, relevant
programmes and seminars or had perused reading materials
and updated information in relation to business and industrial
development. The Directors had provided the relevant training
records to the Company.

The Company is committed to arranging and funding suitable
training to all Directors for their continuous professional
development. Each Director is briefed and updated from time to
time to ensure that he is fully aware of his roles, functions, duties
and responsibilities under the GEM Listing Rules and applicable
legal and regulatory requirements and the governance policies of
the Group.

66 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

BWE_Z—NFT+_HA=Z+—HIFE
LEEBEARRETIE AN ERNT

PiTES:

SR (TTE A )

(INCE- e

RIEWEE (R F - /FEEH=H
H I HAT AT

FEPATES:

JE e A ()
(i —F—/4ENH+HHH
H AT # FH AT

BT g

BRATAT S
fEse ek
L ER &

EHGME (BIFEREGNE 2
& () ZREIE HOR A sy [ 5
Lemi i BN Bl A ] — i

PR R

BHE - FZ—/)4FE+_H=+—HIL#HF
. AapESR RS EL R0kt
A MR BRSEAE ~ SRAERE e~ BRATAT S
A AT SR B MR B A N 2
FBHHE R E 2 Fr s g R - A B ER
T KWt a € > oA B A B v 2 M AT 3k
Ji& 2 B E M OB R R E R e B E AR
7 ] B AR BE B SR 8% o

KAFB NI AR 2 R
TP 2 80 R B A8 % - K
AN IR A8 LA ik S e B R > DAREAR
5242 0 7% HAR $E GEM I v B3 ~ %88 A i
] Je B A5 R DL S AR SR B IR BUR TR T
Z 0 Bk EE - Bk MOEAT -



Corporate Governance /Fj\e ort gontinued;

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer are
segregated. Mr. Zhou Jing is the chairman of the Board. The
chairman is chiefly responsible for managing the Board. Mr. Ng
Man Chun Paul is the chief executive officer of the Company who
takes charge of the supervision of the execution of the policies
determined by the Board. The chairman also chairs the Board
meetings and briefs the Board members on the issues discussed at
the Board meetings.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Throughout the year ended 31 December 2018, the Board has
met the requirements of Rules 5.05 and 5.05A of the GEM
Listing Rules of having a minimum of three independent non-
executive Directors (representing at least one-third of the Board)
with at least one of them possessing appropriate professional
qualifications and accounting and related financial management
expertise.

Independent non-executive Directors are required to give an
annual confirmation of their independence to the Company
pursuant to Rule 5.09 of the GEM Listing Rules. This practice has
been observed and the Company considers the independent non-
executive Directors to be independent.

TERM OF APPOINTMENT OF NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

For further details of the terms of appointment of the non-
executive Director and independent non-executive Directors,
please refer to the section headed “Directors’ Report — Directors
and Directors’ service contracts” of this annual report.
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BOARD MEETINGS AND BOARD COMMITTEES
MEETINGS

31 Board meetings were held during the year ended 31 December
2018. The Directors use their best endeavour to ensure that for
all Board meetings to be held, Board minutes are kept by the
company secretary of the Company (the “Company Secretary”),
and be open for inspection by the Directors. Every Director is
entitled to have access to the board papers and related materials
and have unrestricted access to the advice and services of the
Secretary, and have the liberty to seek external professional advice
if so required.

The Board has established three Board committees, namely
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination
Committee.

The attendance of the Directors at the Board meetings and the
general meetings are as follows (the date of change mentioned
below related to the change of the Directors):

EHOTRLAEF TR TR

BEF - ) E+A=+—HILFEE
BT T3IREFGE R -EFHFNRE
MAEMERTNERTTR HFTT
ML E B AN F 2 AT RE (T4 6
F ) RAE T s S A B o 45 3 S A
2 B S SO AR B E R IR ETAE R
Z PR B R 2 A R = R
B RN R B BT SR A HER
Eo

EHGOR L =MEFLZRE G WFZ
ZEG -FMEEGRIRAEZAET-

o B A R L
1R Tk B ) R
SEAB)

No. of meetings
attended/eligible to attend

R G EKEA R R B
Annual Special
Board General General
Meeting Meeting Meeting
Y Bt 3K Jit 3
Names of Directors HEHEEA "k  HEXE  WHIIKE®
Executive Directors: HiTES:
Mr. Zhou Jing (redesignated to JAdh el (R =& — NEAA
non-executive Director on 15 June 2018) THAREAFUTHESE) 16/16 171 0/0
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul BB 31/31 1/1 0/0
Mr. Lam Chun Kei P 5 A 31/31 1/1 0/0
Mr. Ng Ting Ho (redesignated from S (R ZF - NELA
non-executive Director on 3 July 2018) = HAFRATESERML) 17/17 0/0 0/0
Non-executive Directors: FHITESE:
Mr. Zhou Jing (redesignated from JAdb e O ZF — N4ERH
executive Director on 15 June 2018) +HH ERATESERT) 15/15 0/0 0/0
Mr. Ng Ting Ho (redesignated to REWEE (R ZF—NFELH
executive Director on 3 July 2018) —“H#EANITEDS) 14/14 1/1 0/0
Independent non-executive Directors: Bk pirE S
Mr. Chan Hin Hang BT AT e 31/31 11 0/0
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien &R AE 29/31 11 0/0
Mr. Hung Kenneth WE R A 31/31 1/1 0/0
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

Audit Committee of the Board was established on 26 October
2011, written terms of reference were adopted in compliance
with the GEM Listing Rules. The main functions of the Audit
Committee of the Board is to recommend to the Board on the
appointment, reappointment and removal of the external auditors;
to approve the remuneration and terms of engagement of the
external auditors as well as any questions of resignation or
dismissal of such auditors; to review the quarterly, interim and
annual reports and accounts of the Group; and to oversee the
Company’s financial reporting, risk management and internal
control procedures.

The Audit Committee of the Board consists of three independent
non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Chan Hin Hang (chairman
of the Committee), Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien and Mr. Hung
Kenneth.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Audit Committee
held 6 meetings. The Audit Committee has reviewed the final
results for the year ended 31 December 2018 and also the
quarterly and interim results during the year ended 31 December
2018.

The members and attendance of the Audit Committee for the year
ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Name of Audit Committee members

ERZHEORBELA

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
B AT AT Jo

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
fEse&E et

Mr. Hung Kenneth
R BEA
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T KR R 2 T TR B R R o
TEEEG TR AMEBL - E
T Ko A% 1b TR A A% SR ) o A
B 5 v AN A R 2 T < % 2
Aok > Sl B 3 B A/ I A B e AT
BE A B 2 ATl R B AR S 2 &
B R AR B R E G KRB
2N )RR R R~ R A R R A S B AR
I o

EHEFRZREGNABCTH =48
FATE S BIBATAT B (ZEEE
J) AR S IR R A

HE - ZF—)E+H=+—HILHF
B> BREEGFE NG BT ANIRE -
FRZAGCHFMEEZ -F—/F 1+
H=1T—HIEFEZ RKINEE LSS
F— EF A=+ —HIEE B
LR UES

BRE__E— NE+_A=+—HILEE
ZEEZEGNE LHEFEENMT

Number of
meetings attended/
eligible to attend

IR ¥
GR:g 3N RV

6/6

4/6

6/6
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REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Remuneration Committee of the Board was established on
26 October 2011. Written terms of reference were adopted in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The Remuneration
Committee of the Board, with the majority of its members being
independent non-executive Directors, is mainly responsible for
making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration policy
of the Company. The Remuneration Committee has to consult
the chairman and/or the chief executive officer of the Company
on their proposals relating to the remuneration of other executive
Directors. The Remuneration Committee may seek independent
professional advice as it considers necessary in respect of its
function.

The Remuneration Committee of the Board consists of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely Mr. Chan Hin Hang
(chairman of the Committee), Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien and
Mr. Kenneth Hung.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Remuneration
Committee held 3 meetings. It reviewed the remuneration policy
of the Company, assessed the performance of the executive
Directors and senior management and recommended specific
remuneration packages of the Directors and senior management
to the Board with reference to the level of responsibilities of the
individual Director, the scope of operation of the Group as well as
the prevailing market conditions.

70 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

HNE R &

HREGZIMEEGCO RN T ——F T
H =N HE > B AR A GEM LT
HR RN 2 35 T T I R M A R o B R ey
M2 B & 2 K5 i B 25 M8 S FE AT

Ho FEA T A 7 H I EUR 7]
5 R o & B & E at HiA
AT E B 2 B Rk AR N F R K
SRFEITBABNE R -FMEE €
A 7E HRR A A 7k LR RS > G
SLHERE

EFFHME B G =AML IERATE
FHAATEE (ZREEN) EEEL
e R R B e e AL

BE_F-NFE+_HA=t+—HIEE
B Z B e BT SRk o HAg st A
N ) I EROSRE  REAG AT S AR A
g 2 KRB DL I 2 A0 F R K
S~ A A [ 5 I DL R 3 IRE T D
3R A P )RR E BTN AE G 1
R EEE R



Corporate Governance /Fj\e ort gontinued;

The members and attendance of the Remuneration Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Name of Remuneration Committee members

Bz BB kA

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
B AT AT Jo sk

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
fEse&E ek

Mr. Kenneth Hung
R B EA

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Nomination Committee of the Board was established on 26
October 2011. Written terms of reference were adopted in
compliance with the GEM Listing Rules. The Nomination
Committee of the Board is responsible for reviewing the structure,
size and composition of the Board, identifying suitable candidates
for directorship, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive Directors, and making recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed appointment and re-appointment.

PHREIGHS (18
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Number of
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eligible to attend
iR 8 e
AL

3/3
3/3

3/3
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The Nomination Committee consists of three independent non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
(chairman of the Committee), Mr. Chan Hin Hang and Mr. Hung
Kenneth.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Nomination
Committee of the Board held 2 meetings and has reviewed the
structure, size and composition of the Board.

The members and attendance of the Nomination Committee for
the year ended 31 December 2018 are as follows:

Name of Nomination Committee members

RAZHERBENA

Mr. Chan Hin Hang

B AT AT Jo

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
fEse&E et

Mr. Hung Kenneth
SR it
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REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

Pursuant to the code provision B.1.5 of the CG Code, the
remuneration of the members of senior management (comprising
executive Directors, non-executive Directors and senior
management) of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2018
by band is as follows:

Nil to HK$1,000,000
2 #1,000,0007C

HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000
H#E1,000,001 70 £ # %1,500,00070

HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000
H#E 1,500,001 70 £ #: %2,000,00070

Further particulars in relation to Directors’ remuneration and the
five highest paid individuals are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements respectively.
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Number of
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N

A7 158 5 S T < % A6 B e 7 A 2 LA
BORE > 23 1l O AR A T S AR M 12
13

BREMREGIRAT
- :%f}\fﬁ’i’iﬁ 73



Corporate Governance Report (Continued)

PHREBHS (&)

BOARD DIVERSITY POLICY

The Board has adopted a board diversity policy (the “Board
Diversity Policy”) to set out the approach to achieve diversity on
the Board.

In order to achieve a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company continuously seeks to enhance the effectiveness of the
Board and to maintain high standards of corporate governance
and ensures that the Board has a balance of skills, experience and
diversity of perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the
Company’s business. The Company will also take into account
its own business model and specific needs from time to time in
forming its perspectives on the Board diversity. The Company will
endeavour to ensure that the diversity of Board is achieved and
appointments of Directors are in the best interest of the Company
and its shareholders.

Measurable objectives

Selection of candidates to be appointed to the Board and the
continuation of those appointments will be based a range of
objective factors, including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, race, skills and professional
experience. The ultimate decision will be based on merit and
contribution that the selected candidates will bring to the Board.
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Implementation and monitoring

The Nomination Committee is primarily responsible for
identifying suitable qualified candidates to become members of
the Board. In assessing potential candidates of the Board, the
Nomination Committee will give adequate consideration to the
diversity perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity Policy.

The Nomination Committee will review the Board Diversity
Policy from time to time to ensure the effectiveness of the Board
Diversity Policy. The Nomination Committee will discuss and
propose any amendments to the Board Diversity Policy as it
thinks fit, and recommend any such amendments to the Board for
consideration and approval.

As at the date of this report, the Board’s composition taking into
account the diversity perspectives as set out in the Board Diversity
Policy are summarised as follows:

. Continuetd))
oS (8

it M B

REuEZEGTEARMEHES NG ERK
RIENRBEFGNE - R ERE G
BEE N M ZHEM AT HE
EFFZUILBORFrEm Z oL =R -

14 2% Bl A e B 3 2 o b
LAl PR KRE - 4R 4 & B g N ' Rl
iy e R R A S MMM E R G LT
L BUR Z BT > Sl 17 26 3 & $1 AR B 1B
AT L AL -

AR H > R S i £ 5 A BOR B
L S VL EHI AR R U
T

Board diversity perspective

EFEFZUHE

Designation Executive Director Independent Non-Executive Director
kAt AT E L I AT
Age Group 46-50 56-60
A 20 5
Length of Service (year) 5 6
5 0 (4)
brofessional ) - . Fi Film and
rofessional experience Aanagemen LB Entertainment
AL 3 £ I I
Educational Background Science Engineering Accountancy
HEH S £ I it
| | | |
0 1 2 3 4 5 6 7
Number of directors
#HHEHHAH
NOMINATION POLICY 2 44 BUR

The nomination policy has been adopted by the Board with
effect from 1 January 2019. Any subsequent amendment of
the nomination policy shall be reviewed by the Nomination
Committee and approved by the Board.
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General Provisions

1.1

1.2

The Nomination Committee has formulated a
nomination policy (the “Nomination Policy”)
to standardise and enhance transparency for the
nomination procedures and the process and criteria
adopted by the Nomination Committee in selecting
and recommending candidates as Directors, in order
to ensure that the Board shall have a balance of skills,
experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to

the requirements of the Company’s business.

The Nomination Committee shall be responsible for
reviewing the Nomination Policy and disclosing the
same in the corporate governance report to ensure
full compliance with the CG Code, the GEM Listing
Rules, the Bye-laws of the Company and other relevant
provisions.

Selection criteria for nominating a Director

2.1

The selection criteria for assessing the suitability of a
proposed candidate as a Director which shall be taken
as reference by the Nomination Committee are listed

below:

(a) integrity and reputation;

(b) skill, accomplishment and experience relevant to
the Company’s business;

(c) commitment in respect of available time;

(d) existing and potential conflicts of interest;

(e) diversity of the Board, including but not limited to

gender, age, cultural and educational background,
or professional experience of the Directors;
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(f) not being prohibited by law from being a Director;
and

(g) any other factors as the Nomination Committee
may deem fit to consider in the best interests of
the shareholders of the Company.

The above selection criteria are not exhaustive nor
conclusive. The Nomination Committee has the
discretion to nominate any person as it considers
appropriate.

3. Procedures for nomination of a Director

3.1

3.2

Any Director may nominate a candidate for
appointment, election or re-election as a Director by
the Board or at a general meeting. Upon obtaining the
required information from the candidate as listed above,
the Nomination Committee shall evaluate whether such
candidate is qualified to be appointed, elected or re-
elected into the Board based on the criteria as set out
above and the relevant GEM Listing Rules and the
policies of the Company.

The Nominate Committee shall convene a meeting
to discuss and consider the recommendation of the
candidate to the Board for appointment, election or re-
election as a Director.

Please refer to the section headed “Procedures for Shareholders

to propose a person for election as a Director” of this report

for procedures for shareholders’ nomination of any proposed

candidate for election as a Director.

2.2
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Directors are responsible for performing the corporate
governance duties as to develop and review the Company’s
policies and practices on corporate governance, make
recommendations to the Board, review and monitor the
Company’s policies and practices on compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements. Also, the Directors are responsible for
reviewing the Company’s compliance with the CG Code and its
disclosure requirements in the Corporate Governance Report and
developing, reviewing and monitoring the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and directors;
and reviewing and monitoring the training and continuous
professional development of directors.

The Board has reviewed the Group’s policies and practices on
corporate governance practices and compliance with legal and
regulatory requirements including compliance with the CG Code
for the year ended 31 December 2018.

INTERNAL CONTROL AND RISK MANAGEMENT
Summary

The Company and the Group have engaged a consultant to conduct
a review on the Group’s internal control environment and report
to the Audit Committee and management for the purpose of
evaluation of the documentation, effectiveness and efficiencies
of the control of the Group. The Audit Committee has reviewed
the Company’s risk management and internal control systems
in respect of the year ended 31 December 2018. The Board
has conducted a review of the internal control system and the
effectiveness of it operations of the Company and its subsidiaries
for the year ended 31 December 2018, including financial,
operational and compliance control, and risk management
functions. That will ensure that the Directors will oversee and
monitor the Group’s overall financial position so that the interests
of the shareholders are well protected and covered. The Board
assessed the effectiveness of internal control by considering the
reviews performed by the consultant. The Board and the Audit
Committee considered that the risk management and internal
control system are effective and adequate during the year. The
Company complies with the code provisions relating to internal
control contained in the CG Code.
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Risk Management Philosophy

Risk taking is a necessary and accepted part of the Company’s
business. Effectively managing risk is a competitive necessity
and an integral part of creating shareholder value through good
business practices designed to ensure that the Company achieves
its strategic, business and governance objectives, and protects its
corporate reputation, values and integrity.

Risk management applies to all aspects of the Company’s business
and forms a critical part of developing strategic plans, preparing
operational plans and budgets, completing detailed project
approval requests and designing and managing project plans.

Risk Management Responsibility

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the oversight
of the Company’s risk management and internal control systems
and reviewing their effectiveness. Such systems are designed to
manage rather than eliminate risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The Board, through the Audit Committee, is responsible for
reviewing and assessing the major risks facing the Company and
reviewing, approving and monitoring the Company’s approach to
addressing such risks annually.

Under its terms of reference, the Audit Committee is responsible
for the oversight of the Company’s financial reporting system,
risk management systems and internal control systems. The Audit
Committee oversees the risk management process and reviews the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
by conducting the following procedures:

. reviewing the Company’s financial controls, and unless
expressly addressed by a separate board risk committee,
or by the Board itself, to review the Company’s risk
management and internal control systems;

. discussing the risk management and internal control systems
with management to ensure that management has performed
its duty to have an effective systems; this discussion should
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include the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the
Company’s accounting and financial reporting function;

considering major investigations findings on risk
management and internal control matters as delegated by the
Board or on its own initiative and management’s response to
these findings;

reviewing the Group’s financial and accounting policies and
practices;

reviewing the external auditors’ management letter, any
material queries raised by the auditor to management about
the accounting records, financial accounts or systems of
control and management’s response;

reviewing arrangements employees of the Company can use,
in confidence, to raise concerns about possible improprieties
in financial reporting, internal control or other matters. The
Committee should ensure that proper arrangements are in
place for fair and independent investigation of these matters
and for appropriate follow-up action;

acting as the key representative body for overseeing the
Company’s relations with the external auditor;

ensuring that the Board will provide a timely response to the
issues raised in the external auditor’s management letter;

conducting exit interviews with any director, manager,
financial controller or internal credit control manager upon
their resignation in order to ascertain the reasons for his
departure;

preparing work reports for presentation to the Board and
to prepare summary of work reports for inclusion in the
Group’s interim and annual reports;

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

at L B AR RE T R B R~ B
TG R R A8 > DA B 8 9l AR A
BT )

JESE = ZR YR B 48 b A R
o 7 P L TR B P R K A
A5 SR A L S A A A R A [

Rl A< 2 [ () IS S IBUR SR
s

RSN AZ B S TR B Y R
2N DL B BRI )~ A% BT & T
A Bk~ BB R BB 2 AR A 1) B
i 412 Hh 9 A Ao 2K B ) % A L A
Y [m] A

Mt A 2x /) R B AT I ok b B B
e~ R B A A D T T RE R AR
WA IEE AT R 4R th B 2 %P - &
B iR A EH AL A
P58 57 14 9 A R 2 PR R R UE
WATH

W AT A S =) Bl A1 B A% SRl 22 ] 0
FTENE AEEE H M
1% ;

e (R S g S I [ RSP I A S A
T BRE  CHRAZE DU ST BRI )
SRk =

T AR 2 AT A 2 2~ A T A
S PR A A 4 ) T I 5 4%
LA BN BT A R R

LT AR e S BB 5 AT
LEHGERN  RETIRALHD
Hh ) % A R



Corporate Governance /Fj\e ort gontinued;

. considering the appointment of any person to be a committee
member, auditors and accounting staff either to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional committee member, auditors and
accounting staff or dismissal of any of them;

. reporting to the Board on the matters set out in paragraphs
C.3.1 to C.3.7 of the CG Code; and

. considering other matters, as defined or assigned by the
Board from time to time.

Inside Information

The Board assesses the likely impact of any unexpected and
significant event that may impact the price of the Shares or their
trading volume and decides whether the relevant information is
considered inside information and needs to be disclosed as soon
as reasonably practicable pursuant to Rules 17.10 and 17.11 of
the GEM Listing Rules and the Inside Information Provisions
under Part XIVA of the SFO. Executive Directors also may
have responsibility for approving certain announcements and/or
circulars to be issued by the Company under powers delegated by
the Board from time to time.

Risk Management and Internal Control Process

During 2018, the Company engaged a consultant who conducted
an interview with key personnel and senior management of
the Group, reviewed the internal control manual and related
documents and performed site visit to observe the daily operation
to understand the Company’s risk management and internal
control system. The findings on internal control and enterprise risk
management were summarised and was distributed to the Audit
Committee for its review. The Audit Committee concluded that
the Company had in place effective and adequate risk management
and internal control systems. The Company has ensured that the
risk management and internal control provisions under the CG
Code have been complied with. The Board, has confirmed that the
adequacy of the resources and staff qualifications and experiences
of the Company’s accounting and financial reporting functions
during its annual review on the risk management and internal
control systems.
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Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management based

on (i) the severity of the impact of the risk on the Company’s

financial results; (ii) the probability that the risk will occur; and

(iii) the velocity or speed at which a risk could occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the risks

as follows:

Risk elimination — senior management may identify and
implement certain changes or controls that in effect eliminate
the risk entirely.

Risk mitigation — senior management may implement a risk
mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood, velocity or
the severity of the risk to an acceptable level.

Risk retention — senior management may decide that the
risk rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable for the
Company and that no action is required. The risk would
continue to be monitored as part of the risk management
program to ensure the level of risk does not increase to an
unacceptable level.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the risks

as follows:

D)

32

Credit risk management

For loans granted by the Group, the Credit Committee will
hold meetings on a monthly basis to review the repayment
record of the loan interests and loan principals. The Credit
Committee will assess the credit quality of the outstanding
loan portfolio and see if provision needs to be made for non-
performing loans.

The Credit Committee will regularly report to the Board
relating to the repayment record of the loan interests and
loan principals in the loan portfolio, its components and
other matters, which need to be bought to the attention of the
Board.
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Corporate Governance /Fj\e ort gontinued;

Given that the targeted customers of the Group’s money
lending business are well-heeled and reputational individuals
and well-established companies, in the case of provision
of short-term loans for the purpose of short-term financing
for personal/business needs, the Group will generally
not require collateral as it may not be viable for such
customers to provide collaterals and thus requiring such
would only deter them. Moreover, for short-term loans, the
creation and release of collaterals would create unnecessary
administrative cost to the Group. Nevertheless, the Group
would apply the established credit approval policy and
process to assess each and every potential customer such
that, the Group would only approve any loans on the
condition that the Group is of the view that any provision
of loan will not constitute a high credit risk and the Group
would usually require customers to provide signed and post-
dated bank cheques with payments in accordance with tailor
made repayment schedules.

We are exposed to credit risks during the course of our
business in providing financing services to our customers for
trading on a margin basis.

The credit assessment of a customer is performed during
account opening through enquiry and collection of
information so as to verify the customer’s net worth and
income, and evaluate their risk profile by understanding their
financial condition, investment preferences and investment
experience. We did not independently obtain credit
information from third parties (such as any credit reports
on our customers) during our credit assessment process.
However, given that (i) our financing service are provided
with listed securities pledged as collaterals; (ii) margin ratio
is assigned for each individual securities; (iii) marginable
amount of each of our customer is determined based on
(a) the market value of securities held under the securities
trading account; and (b) the margin ratio for each securities;
and (iv) our margin call policy and trading limit set for each
securities trading account would limit the maximum loss
due to customer’s default, our Directors consider that our
credit assessment procedures are appropriate and sufficient
to manage our credit risk.
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Business and operational risk management

The Credit Committee is responsible for the assessment of
the business and operational risks and implementation of
credit policies. Monthly meetings are held among Credit
Committee members and regular meetings are held between
the Credit Committee and the Board to review the operating
activities of the money lending business.

We have established internal reporting procedures to report
any suspected case (including but not limited to employee
misconduct and fraud). We have formulated credit policies
and operational procedures (which are continuously
updated), and implemented initiatives which include:

—  segregating duties between credit assessment, loan
file reviews and loan approval to establish checks and
balances in the loan approval processes;

—  checking and recalculating loan repayment schedules
upon loan settlement to ascertain the accuracy of
interests charged in accordance with the stated effective
interest rates;

— adopting staff handbook which documented our
requirements on employees’ code of conduct and
contained reporting policy as a procedure guideline for
staff to report fraud or suspicious fraud case, if any;

— adopting information security guidelines to prevent
unauthorised access to our information system and
to reduce the operational risk caused by failures of
information technology systems by maintaining backup
data for the key data processing systems; and

—  strengthening our anti-money laundering monitoring
efforts via verification of identity, record keeping,
recognition of suspicious transactions, reporting of
suspicious transactions and staff education and training.
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Liquidity risk management

The Group has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework to meet the Group’s short,
medium and long-term funding and liquidity management
requirements. The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor
current and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity
requirements in the short and long term. Specifically, in
conducting the money lending business, our management
will monitor our Group’s cash inflow and outflow on a
weekly basis to ensure the accuracy of cash collection
and deployment and that there is no shortfall in cash
which may interrupt our Group’s business. The Group will
maintain sufficient cash buffer to meet the working capital
requirement and liquidity needs for our business operations
in the coming months. The Group’s major liquidity needs
mainly include the settlement of operating expenses such
as office rental and employees’ remuneration. For the year
ended 31 December 2018, the Group had not experienced
any shortfall in cash for meeting the above liquidity needs.

We are required to maintain at all times the liquid capital
which is not less than the minimum requirement as set out
under the financial resources rules and financial return (the
“FRR”). Our accounts department is responsible for the
preparation of the financial returns and the computation of
liquid capital in accordance with the requirements under
the FRR. The monthly financial returns are submitted to
our responsible officers for review and approval before
submission to the Securities and Future Commission (the
“SFC”) no later than three weeks after each calendar month.
Our accounts department also conducts the liquid capital
computation on a daily basis which is reviewed by our
responsible officers to ensure that we are able to comply with
the FRR requirement on an ongoing basis.

During 2018, our Group did not have any material non-
compliance with the minimum liquid capital requirement as
set out by the SFC.
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Legal and regulatory risk management

The credit approval policy and process as described in the
paragraph headed “Credit policy and loan approval process”
above has been designed to ensure that the Group’s money
lending business operates in accordance with the Money
Lenders Ordinance and applicable laws.

The Credit Committee has adopted suitable documentation
and procedures in the application and assessment process to
calculate the effective interest rate of all loan applications
and ensure that the procedures are in compliance with the
Money Lenders Ordinance. The Credit Committee and the
Board will, from time to time, review such documentation
and procedures to ensure the documentation and procedures
to be in compliance with the relevant laws and regulations.

Depending on the nature of food and beverage business of
the Group, the following are the principal types of licences
that may be required for the operation of our restaurants in
Hong Kong:

(a) Food business licence, including restaurant licence for
restaurant operation, restricted food permits for sales of
live fish, shell fish, sashimi and oysters to be eaten in a
raw state, and food safety licence for food importation
and distribution which are required to be obtained
before commencement of the relevant food business
operation: and

(b) Liquor licence, which is to be obtained before
commencement of sale of liquor in the restaurant
premises.
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Corporate Governance /Fj\e ort gontinued;

We are required to obtain certain licences in relation to
our restaurant operations in Hong Kong. We have obtained
all relevant licenses and permits that are material to our
operation in Hong Kong. Our consultant keeps track of
the expiry dates of relevant licences and timely applies for
renewal. Our restaurants will only commence operations
after obtaining or renewing the relevant licences and/or
permits. During the year, we had not been involved in any
unsettled safety and licensing related violations, the outcome
of which we believed might materially and adversely affect
our business, operation and financial position.

On the operational level, the Group has complied with the
Personal Data (Privacy) Ordinance (Chapter 486 of the Laws
of Hong Kong) and the guidelines recommended by the
Office of the Privacy Commissioner for Personal Data when
collecting and processing data from students. The Group has
also paid attention to the Copyright Ordinance (Chapter 528
of the Laws of Hong Kong) when preparing and delivering
teaching materials. Besides, the Group has complied with
the Education Ordinance (Chapter 279 of the Laws of
Hong Kong) in application of applicable certificates for
running school, the Child Care Services Ordinance (Chapter
243 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in application certificate
for running child care centre and the Trade Descriptions
Ordinance (Chapter 362 of the Laws of Hong Kong) in
preparation and publication of advertisements.

On the human resources level, the Group has abided by the
Employment Ordinance (Chapter 57 of the Laws of Hong
Kong), Employees’ Compensation Ordinance (Chapter 282
of the Laws of Hong Kong), Minimum Wage Ordinance
(Chapter 608 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (Chapter 485 of
the Laws of Hong Kong), equal opportunity legislations
(including Sex Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 480 of the
Laws of Hong Kong), Disability Discrimination Ordinance
(Chapter 487 of the Laws of Hong Kong), Family Status
Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 527 of the Laws of Hong
Kong) and Race Discrimination Ordinance (Chapter 602
of the Laws of Hong Kong) and Occupational Safety and
Health Ordinance (Chapter 509 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
to safeguard the health, safety, interests and benefits of the
Group’s employees.

Other details of the Group’s compliance with relevant
laws and regulations are set out in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of this
annual report.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board has adopted a policy on payment of dividend (the
“Dividend Policy”) in compliance with code provision E.1.5 of
the CG Code, with effect from 1 January 2019. Declaration and
payment of dividends by the Company is subject to compliance
with applicable laws and regulations including the laws of
Bermuda and the Bye-laws of the Company.

Dividends may be paid out by way of cash or by other means that
the Directors consider appropriate. Declaration and payment of
any dividends would require the recommendation of the Board
and will be at its discretion. In addition, any final dividends for a
financial year will be subject to the approval of the shareholders.
A decision to declare or to pay any dividends in the future, and
the amount and rates of such dividends, will be subject to, among
other things, the Group’s results of operations, cash flow, financial
conditions, operating and capital requirements and other factors
which the Directors consider important.

The Board will review the Dividend Policy from time to time and
may exercise its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend
and/or modify the Dividend Policy at any time as it deems fit and
necessary. There is no assurance that dividends will be declared or
paid in any particular amount for any given period.

COMMUNICATIONS WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company provides information in relation to the Group
to the shareholders in a timely manner through a number of
formal channels, including quarterly, interim and annual reports,
announcements and circulars. Such published documents together
with the corporate information of the Group are also available on
the Company’s website (http://www.chinademeter.com).

The shareholders’ meeting provides a useful channel for
shareholders to communicate directly with the Board which
the Directors are available to answer questions related to the
Company’s affairs.
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The procedures to elect Directors were uploaded to the Company’s
website (http://www.chinademeter.com).

The latest version of the Company’s bye-laws can be downloaded
from the website of the Company or the Stock Exchange website.

The Company will continue to improve the communication with
investors and to provide them more opportunities to understand
the business of the Company.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the amount of fees in
respect of audit services and non-audit services paid/payable to
the Group’s auditors, Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited, Certified
Public Accountants, and the resigned auditor, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited, Certified Public Accountants, was set out
below:
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is an employee of the Group and has day-
to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. During the year ended
31 December 2018, the Company Secretary complied with the
qualification and training requirements under the GEM Listing
Rules.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

Procedures for shareholders to convene a special general
meeting

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company,
shareholders holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company can convene a special general meeting by
depositing a requisition in writing to the Directors or the Company
Secretary of the Company for the purpose of requiring the
convening of the special general meeting. The written requisition
shall be deposited to the Company’s office at Unit 1002, 10/F,
China Insurance Group Building, 141 Des Voeux Road Central,
Central, Hong Kong.

Procedures for shareholders to send enquiries to the Board

The Company is committed to regular and proactive
communication with its shareholders. It has adopted a policy of
disclosing clear, adequate and relevant information to Shareholders
in a timely manner through various channels. The Company has
complied with the GEM Listing Rules by posting announcements,
notices, quarterly, interim and annual reports as well as
shareholders’ circulars on the respective websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company (http://www.chinademeter.com).

Shareholders are encouraged to communicate with the Company
for any enquiries in relation to the Group, or for putting forward
any proposals at a shareholders’ meeting:

Address: Unit 1002, 10/F,

China Insurance Group Building,

141 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong

(852) 2116 1218

(852) 2151 1872

The Board of Directors/

The Company Secretary

Telephone no.:
Fax no.:
Attention:
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Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as
a Director

The following procedures are subject to the Company’s Bye-laws
and applicable legislation and regulations.

If a shareholder, who is duly qualified to attend and vote at the
general meeting convened to deal with appointment/election of
Director(s), wishes to propose a person (other than the member
himself/herself) for election as a Director at that meeting, he/she/it
can deposit a written notice to the following address:

Head office and principal place of business of the Company in
Hong Kong

Unit 1002, 10/F, China Insurance Group Building, 141 Des Voeux
Road Central, Central, Hong Kong

In order for the Company to inform all shareholders of that
proposal, the written notice must state the full name of the person
proposed for election as a Director, his/her biographical details
as required by Rule 17.50(2) of the GEM Listing Rules, and be
signed by the shareholder concerned together with a written notice
of the person proposed for election as a Director indicating his/her
willingness to be elected.

Procedures for shareholders to put forward proposals

Pursuant to Article 58 of the Bye-laws of the Company, any one or
more shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the requisition
not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at general meetings of the Company
shall at all times have the right, by written requisition to the Board
or the Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business
specified in such requisition, and such meeting shall be held
within two months after the deposit of such requisition.
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PHREBHS (&)

Save as the procedures for shareholders of the Company to
convene a general meeting as set out above, there are no
other provisions allowing shareholders of the Company to put
forward proposals at the general meeting under the Bye-laws
of the Company or under the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda.
Shareholders of the Company may follow the procedures set
out above to convene a special general meeting for any business
specified in such written requisition. The written requisition must
state the resolution, accompanied by a statement of not more than
1,000 words with respect to the matter referred to in the proposed
resolution, signed by all the shareholders concerned. The written
requisition shall be deposited at Unit 1002, 10/F, China Insurance
Group Building, 141 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong
Kong, the head office of the Company, for the attention of the
Board or the Company Secretary.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities in the
preparation of the Company’s consolidated financial statements
for each financial year which give a true and fair view of the
state of affairs of the Company and in presenting the quarterly,
interim and annual financial statements, and announcements to
shareholders, the Directors aim at presenting a balanced, cleared
and comprehensive assessment of the Company’s performance,
its current position and future prospects. The respective
responsibilities of the Directors and auditors of the Company in
respect of the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
are set out in the independent auditors’ report on pages 112 to 121
of this annual report.
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The directors (the “Directors”) of the Company present their
report and the audited consolidated financial statements of the
Company and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) for the year ended 31
December 2018.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The
activities of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are set out in
note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

Save as discussed in the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of the annual report, which forms part of this
Directors’ report, there were no significant changes in the nature
of the principal activities of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2018.

SEGMENT INFORMATION

An analysis of the Group’s performance by principal activities
and geographical locations of operations for the year ended 31
December 2018 is set out in note 6 to the consolidated financial
statements.

RESULTS

The financial performance of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2018 and financial position of the Group as at the year
end date are set out in the consolidated financial statements on
pages 122 to 126 of the annual report.

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any dividend in
respect of the year ended 31 December 2018 (2017: Nil).
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BUSINESS REVIEW

Below is a business review of this Directors’ report as required
by Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of
the Laws of Hong Kong). The discussion on a fair review of
the Group’s business, financial key performance indicators and
performance and indication of future development of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2018 is set out in the sections
headed “Chairman’s Statement” and “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of the annual report. A discussion of Group’s
relationships with its key stakeholders, and environmental
policies and performance is contained in the section headed
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the annual
report. These discussions form part of this Director’s report.

Key risks and its management

The Group is principally engaged in (i) feedstock products
business; (ii) money lending business; (iii) financial services
business; (iv) securities investment business; (v) food and
beverage business; (vi) alcoholic beverage distribution business;
and (vii) provision of children education services.

Key risks
(1) Reliance on key personnel

The effective operations and future success of the Group’s
business are depending, to a significant extent, on the
capability, experience and continued efforts of our key
management personnel. If the Group is unable to attract,
retain and motivate the necessary key management
personnel, the business and operation conditions of the
Group may be disrupted and the results and financial
positions of the Group may be materially or adversely
affected.

(2) Reliance on close relationship with the Group’s
customers

The success of the Group relies heavily on good relationship
with its customers. If the Group fails to maintain the current
level of business relationship with its customers and retain
them in its sales and distribution network, the sales, financial
condition and operating results of the Group may be
adversely affected.
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Change in requirements for feedstock products

The success of Group’s feedstock products business depends
on, to a large extent, the formulae and the quality products
that appeal to the mass market. However, regulations
relating to the ingredients of feedstock products may change
over time. If the Group is unable to source or unable to
successfully develop products according to the changes in
regulations or customers’ preference, the demand for the
feedstock products of the Group may decrease.

Dependence of the Group’s revenue on the PRC market

The People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) is currently the
Group’s key market for its products. There is no assurance
that the PRC domestic market gap between supply and
demand in the industry and the local demand for the Group’s
products will sustain. In the event that local or domestic
demand for the Group’s feedstock products decreases and the
Group is not able to expand its business to other markets, the
Group’s business, financial condition and results operations
may be adversely affected.

Potential adverse impacts of events on raw materials

Potential adverse impact of the unfavourable weather
conditions and natural and man-made disasters on the raw
materials of the Group’s feedstock products agricultural
products such as corn, bran meal, soybean meal and wheat
bran are the major raw material components of the Group’s
feedstock products. The harvest of such agricultural products
may be adversely affected by natural disasters including,
but not limited to, drought, floods, prolonged periods of
rainfall, hailstorm, windstorms, typhoons and hurricanes,
fire, diseases, landslides, insect infestation, pests, volcanic
eruption or earthquakes, as well as man-made disasters such
as environmental pollution, arson, accidents, civil unrest or
acts of terrorism. The occurrence of any of natural or man-
made disasters may diminish the supply of raw materials
used for the production of the Group’s feedstock and thus
may result in a significant increase of the Group’s cost and
has an adverse affect on the Group’s profitability.
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Major financial risk exposed to the Group

The Group is exposed to financial risks, including credit,
interest rate, liquidity and other price risks. The Group
actively and regularly reviews these risks and will adopt
measures, if needed, to control and mitigate these risks.

Risks relating to the money lending business

The money lending business of the Group is exposed to
default from the Group’s customers, which involves the risk
of loss due to the inability or unwillingness of customers
to meet their contractual obligations. If the customers of
the money lending business of the Group fail to meet their
contractual obligations, the Company may incur additional
costs to collect the loan principal and corresponding
interests. To mitigate this risk, the board of Directors (the
“Board”) has set up the Credit Committee with relevant
experience of this business segment and report to the board
of the Company directly. The Credit Committee has full
authority to deal with all credit matters. The members of
the Credit Committee are appointed by the Board and the
quorum of the Credit Committee is at least two committee
members. The credit policy of the Group’s money lending
business is subject to the review and amendments by the
Credit Committee and the Board from time to time in line
with changes in market environment.

Risk relating to the financial services business

The financial services business of the Group is subject to
the performance of the Hong Kong securities market and
the performances of the Group’s competitors which are
beyond its control and the Group cannot assure that our
historical level of income can be sustained. In addition, non-
compliance with extensive regulatory requirements could
cause the Group to incur fines, restriction on financial
service activities or even suspension or revocation of some
or all of the licences for carrying on the Group’s business
activities.
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Also the Group’s brokerage services involved active

interactions between its staff and customers and therefore

it is subject to human errors, which the Group has to bear

the losses resulting therefrom. For placing and underwriting

business, the Group exposed to business risks in case the

securities underwritten by the Group are undersubscribed or

the placing exercises are failed to complete.

Risk relating to the food and beverage business

(a)

(b)

Uncertainties on obtaining or renewing the licences and
permits for the Group’s operations

The Group is required to obtain and maintain various
type of licences, including (i) general licences and (ii)
liquor licence and other approvals or permits, including
restricted food permits for its restaurants operation
in Hong Kong. Most of the requisite licences are
usually valid for one to two years and the licences are
required to be renewed before their expiry to comply
with the relevant requirements and ensure that business
operation can be continued without any disruption.

The Group may experience difficulties or failures in
obtaining or renewing the necessary approvals, licences
and permit for new restaurants in a timely manner or at
all for factors beyond its control.

Rely on individual to hold all the liquor licences of
restaurants

All of the liquor licences of the Group’s restaurants
were held by individuals.
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Pursuant to Regulation 15 of the Dutiable Commodities
(Liquor) Regulations, any transfer of a liquor licence
must be conducted in the prescribed form with the
consent of the liquor licence holder. In case of illness
or temporary absence of the liquor licence holder, the
secretary of the Liquor Licensing Board may in his/
her discretion authorize any person to manage the
licenced premises under Regulation 24 of the Dutiable
Commodities (Liquor) Regulations, upon application
by the liquor Licence holder. For any application for
cancellation of the liquor licence made by the holder of
liquor licence, one must make an application for new
issue of a liquor licence to the Liquor Licensing Board.
In case of death or insolvency of the liquor license
holder, his/her executor or administrator or trustee
may carry on the business in the licence premises until
the expiration of the licence under section 54 of the
Dutiable Commodities Ordinance.

If the relevant liquor licence holder in each of the
Group’s restaurants refuses to give consent to a transfer
application when a transfer is required, or fails to make
an application in respect of his/her illness or temporary
absence or makes a cancellation application without
consent, or if an application for new issue of a liquor
licence is required in case of death or insolvency of the
relevant employee, the relevant restaurant may have to
cease it sale of liquor for the time being, in which case
may adversely affect its business and profitability.
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(10) Difficulties in recruitment and retention of the Group’s
employees

The success of the Group depends in apart upon the Group’s
ability to attract, retain and motivate a sufficient number
of qualified employees, including teacher, restaurant staff,
chefs and kitchen staff. Highly service-oriented and qualified
individuals are in relatively short supply in Hong Kong and
competition for these employees is intense. Any failure to
employ and retain enough qualified employees could delay
planned new restaurant openings, cause untenable teacher-
to-pupil ratio to meet the statutory requirement or result
in higher employee turnover, either of which could have a
material adverse effect on the Group’s business and results of
operations. In addition, competition for qualified employees
could also require the Group to pay higher wages, which
could result in higher labour cost.

For a discussion of how the Group would tackle with the
management of the material risks, please refer to the paragraphs
headed “Internal Control and Risk Management” in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report” of the annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH RELEVANT RULES AND
REGULATIONS

The Group recognises the importance of compliance with
regulatory requirements and the risk of non-compliance with
relevant requirements could lead to adverse impact on business
operation and financial position of the Group. The Board as a
whole is responsible to ensure the Group is in compliance with
relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact on the
Company. During the course of the business operations, the Group
shall comply with different laws and regulations, further details
of which are discussed in the sections headed “Management
Discussion and Analysis”, “Corporate Governance Report” and
“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” of the annual
report, the discussion of which forms part of this Directors’
report. For the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group was in
compliance with these said laws and regulations.
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MAJOR PROJECTS AND EVENTS

Details regarding major projects undertaken by the Group and
events that have taken place during the year under review are
incorporated under the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” of the annual report.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of the Company’s principal subsidiaries as at 31
December 2018 are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

FIVE-YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the published results of the Group for the last
five financial years is set out in the section headed “Five-years
Financial Summary” of the annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movement in property, plant and equipment of
the Group are set out in note 16 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 35 to the consolidated financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There is no provision for pre-emptive rights under the Company’s
bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige the
Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
shareholders.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2018, neither the Company
nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, sold or redeemed any of the
Company’s listed securities.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACT

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group entered into
three management agreements with Global Food Culture Group
Limited (“GFC”), an independent third party of the Company,
dated 16 July 2018, 9 September 2018 and 16 October 2018
respectively in relation to the provision of day-to-day operation,
direction, management and supervision services by GFC to certain
restaurants of the food and beverage business of the Group, for
an initial term from 4 months to 3 years respectively, subject to
compliance with the relevant requirement under the GEM Listing
Rules and termination at any time with 90 days prior notice.

Save as disclosed above, there are no contracts concerning the
management and administration of the whole or any substantial
part of the business of the group were entered into or existed
during the year.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company during the
year are set out in note 44 to the consolidated financial statements.

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year
are set out in the consolidated statement of changes in equity of
the annual report.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Details of movements during the year in the reserves and reserves
available for distribution to the Company’s shareholders of the
Group and the Company are set out in the consolidated statement
of changes in equity of the annual report and in note 44 to the
consolidated financial statements.

MAJOR SUPPLIERS AND CUSTOMERS

During the year ended 31 December 2018, sales amount to the
Group’s five largest customers accounted for approximately
22% of the total sales amount from continuing operations of
the Group, whilst the largest customer of the Group accounted
for approximately 5% of the total sales amount from continuing
operations of the Group. Purchases from the Group’s five largest
suppliers accounted for 52% of the total purchases amount from
continuing operations of the Group, whilst the largest supplier
of the Group accounted for approximately 21.3% of the total
purchases amount from continuing operations of the Group.
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As far as the Directors are aware, none of the Directors or any of
their associates or any shareholders (which, to the best knowledge
of the Directors, own more than 5% of the Company’s issued
share capital) had any beneficial interest in any of the five largest
customers and suppliers of the Group.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

The Group did not have any bank and other borrowings as at 31
December 2018.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

The Directors during the financial year and up to the date of this
report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Zhou Jing (redesignated to non-executive Director on 15 June
2018)

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul

Mr. Lam Chun Kei

Mr. Ng Ting Ho (redesignated from non-executive Director on
3 July 2018)

Non-executive Directors:

Mr. Ng Ting Ho (redesignated to executive Director on
3 July 2018)

Mr. Zhou Jing (redesignated from executive Director on 15 June
2018)

Independent non-executive Directors:

Mr. Chan Hin Hang
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien
Mr. Hung Kenneth

Biographical information of Directors and the senior management
of the Group are set out in the section headed “Profiles of
Directors and Senior Management” of the annual report.
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In accordance with the bye-laws of the Company and compliance
with the requirements of the GEM Listing Rules, Mr. Ng Ting
Ho, Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul and Mr. Hung Kenneth will retire by
rotation and, being eligible, will offer themselves for re-election at
the forthcoming annual general meeting.

Mr. Zhou Jing has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company dated 25 May 2018 and he will serve the Company until
14 June 2019.

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul has entered into a letter of appointment
with the Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from
31 August 2018. The appointment will be terminable by three
months prior written notice given by either side.

Mr. Lam Chun Kei has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from
16 October 2018. The appointment will be terminable by three
month’s prior written notice given by either side.

Mr. Ng Ting Ho has entered into a letter of appointment with the
Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 3 July
2018. The appointment will be terminable by three month’s prior
written notice given by either side.

Mr. Chan Hin Hang has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from
13 November 2018. The appointment will be terminable by one
month’s prior written notice given by either side.

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien has entered into a letter of
appointment with the Company for a fixed term of one year
commencing from 13 November 2018. The appointment will be
terminable by one month’s prior written notice given by either
side.

Mr. Hung Kenneth has entered into a letter of appointment with
the Company for a fixed term of one year commencing from 27
October 2018. The appointment will be terminable by one month’s
prior written notice given by either side.
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None of the directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the Company
which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

INDEMNIFICATION OF DIRECTORS AND OFFICERS

The Company has arranged Directors’ and officers’ liability
insurance throughout the year ended 31 December 2018 to
indemnify the Directors and officers for their liabilities arising
from their lawful discharge of duties. The insurance coverage and
premium is reviewed on an annual basis.

The bye-laws of the Company provide that the Directors for the
time being acting in relation to any of the affairs of the Company
and every one of them shall be indemnified and secured harmless
out of the assets and profits of the Company from and against all
actions, costs, charges, losses, damages and expenses which they
or any of them shall or may incur or sustain by or by reason of
any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of
their duty, or supposed duty, in their respective offices; provided
that this indemnity shall not extend to any matter in respect of any
fraud or dishonesty which may attach to any of said persons.

EMOLUMENTS OF DIRECTORS AND THE FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of emoluments of Directors and the five highest paid
individuals of the Group are set out in notes 12 and 13 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A TRANSACTION,
ARRANGEMENT AND CONTRACT OF SIGNIFICANCE

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance to
which the Company or its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or a connected entity of a director of the Company
had a material interest subsisted, whether directly or indirectly,
subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year.

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ INTERESTS
AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES, UNDERLYING
SHARES AND DEBENTURES

As at 31 December 2018, the interests of the Directors and the
chief executive and their associates in the shares, underlying
shares or debentures of the Company and its associated
corporations, as recorded in the register maintained by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers, were as follows:

Long Positions

The Company

Name of Director Capacity

EHEA 5

Ng Man Chun Paul Beneficial Owner

P Ha AN
Ng Ting Ho Beneficial Owner
S IE T JEE X XEDN
Note:

The percentage of interest in the Company is calculated by reference to the number
of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2018, that is 1,224,236,125.
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Other than as disclosed above, none of the Directors, chief
executive nor their associates had any interests or short positions
in any shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company
or any of its associated corporations as at 31 December 2018 that
was required to be recorded pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO,
or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers.

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARE OR
DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the section headed “Share Option
Schemes” and “Directors’ and Chief Executives’ Interests and
Short Positions in Shares, Underlying Shares and Debentures”
above, at no time during the year was the Company or any of its
holding companies or subsidiaries a party to any arrangements
which enabled the Directors, their respective spouse or minor
children to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares
in or debentures of the Company or any other body corporate.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

As at 31 December 2018, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company, pursuant to section 336 of the SFO
shows that the following persons/entities, other than a Director
or chief executive of the Company, had notified the Company at
relevant interests and short positions in the issued share capital of
the Company:

Long Positions

Name of Shareholder Capacity

[iE S T 5 1

Mr. Ng Ting Kit Beneficial owner
RIEH L Ha A A

China Green (Holdings) Limited (Note 2) Beneficial owner
R AR R (R ARAT (Ma2)  EmBEA A

Notes:

1. The percentage of interest in the Company is calculated by reference to the
number of shares of the Company in issue as at 31 December 2018, that is
1,224,236,125.

2. Based on the notice of disclosure of interest filed by China Green
(Holdings) Limited dated 6 December 2018, these long positions in the
shares are held as to (a) 57,900,000 shares by China Green (Holdings)
Limited as beneficial owner, and (b) 33,680,000 shares by China Green
Beverages (HK) Limited, which is directly wholly-owned by China Green
Beverages (BVI) Limited, which in turn is wholly-owned by China Green
(Holdings) Limited.

Other than as disclosed above, there was no person who had any
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares of the
Company as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 336 of the SFO as at 31 December 2018.
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CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Connected transactions undertaken by the Group that are non

exempt from annual reporting requirement under Chapter 20 of the

GEM Listing Rules during the year and up to the date of report are

set out below:

1.

10

Disposal of a non-wholly owned subsidiary

On 31 January 2018, Rich Sheen International Limited
(“Rich Sheen”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company and the Mr. Li Ho Kwong (“Mr. Li”) entered
into a sale and purchase agreement, pursuant to which Rich
Sheen agreed to sell, and the Mr. Li agreed to acquire, (i) the
sale shares, representing 51% of the issued share capital of
the Treasure Easy Limited (“Treasure Easy”), a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability, and (ii) the
sale loan, representing the entire shareholder’s loan owing
by Treasure Easy to Rich Sheen as at completion date, at an
aggregate cash consideration of HK$20,000. Immediately
prior to completion, the Treasure Easy was a non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company which was owned as to
51% by the Rich Sheen, as to 30% by the Mr. Li and as to
the remaining 19% by two other individuals. Mr. Li, being a
director and a substantial shareholder of the Treasure Easy, is
a connected person of the Company.

Completion took place immediately after the signing of
the sale and purchase agreement and the Treasure Easy has
ceased to be a subsidiary of the Company since then.
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2. Acquisition of 39% equity interest in a non-wholly owned
subsidiary

On 28 September 2018, the Company acquired 39% equity
interests in Tony China Limited (“Tony China”) from
Bo Da Dong Fong Agricultural Development Co., Ltd
(the “Vendor”), a company incorporated in the Republic
of Seychelles with limited liability at a consideration of
HK$10,000,000, (1) as to HK$5,400,000 in cash; and (2) as
to HK$4,600,000 to be settled by the Company to procure
a wholly-owned subsidiary of Tony China to assign and the
Vendor to accept the assignment of all the rights to, interests
in and title of the certain receivables of such subsidiary.

Immediately prior to completion, Tony China was a non-
wholly owned subsidiary of the Company which was owned
as to 51% by the Company, as to 49% by Vendor. The
Vendor is thus a substantial shareholder of Tony China and a
connected person of the Company.

Other than above transactions, during the year, a subsidiary
of the Company, China Demeter Securities Limited, received
the commission income and interest income from Directors, a
substantial shareholder, a director of a subsidiary, associates
of connected persons of the Company and companies which
directors of such companies are also a substantial shareholder of
the Company and a director of the subsidiary. Such related party
transactions fall under the definition of “connected transactions”
pursuant to Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules. Particulars of
such related party transactions are disclosed in note 43(a) to the
consolidated financial statements. The Directors confirm that the
Company has complied with the relevant disclosure requirements
in accordance with Chapter 20 of the GEM Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN A COMPETING BUSINESS

Mr. Hung Kenneth, an independent non-executive Director, was
an executive Director of Hang Tai Yue Group Holding Limited
(formerly known as Interactive Entertainment China Cultural
Technology Investments Limited) (Stock Code: 8081) from
February 2014 of August 2018, which is a company listed on
GEM whose principal businesses include money lending business
in Hong Kong, which may compete with the Group’s money
lending business.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors nor their respective
associates had any business which competes or may compete with
the business of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the publicly available information and to the best of the
Directors’ knowledge, information and belief, the Company has
maintained a sufficient public float as throughout the year ended
31 December 2018.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company has adopted and committed to the code provisions
of the Corporate Governance Code contained in Appendix 15 to
the GEM Listing Rules and has prepared the corporate governance
report, which is set out in the section headed “Corporate
Governance Report” of the annual report.

SIGNIFICANT SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

Significant subsequent events are set out in note 45 to the
consolidated financial statements.

DONATION

During the year, the Group made charitable and other donations
amounting to HK$83,000.
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AUDITORS

During the year, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited, who acted
as auditor of the Company for the past four years, resigned with
effect from 7 December 2018 and Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
was appointed as auditor of the Company. A resolution will be
submitted to the forthcoming annual general meeting for approval
by the shareholders of the Company to re-appoint the auditor,
Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited.

On behalf of the Board

Zhou Jing
Chairman

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019
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Independent Auditor’s Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF

CHINA DEMETER FINANCIAL INVESTMENTS LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands and continued in Bermuda
with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 122 to 325, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2018, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income, the
consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2018, and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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Independent Auditor’s Report Continuedg

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group
in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional
Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We believe that the
audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
o it 7 % 3 0H

Impairment of loans and interest receivables

HEE W B 5k e AR 0 fEE

Refer to key sources of estimation uncertainty in note 4
and the disclosures of loans and interest receivables in
note 27 to the consolidated financial statements.
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The adoption of HKFRS 9 has fundamentally changed
the Group’s accounting for loss impairment by replacing
HKAS 39’s incurred loss approach with a forward-
looking expected credit loss (“ECL”) approach.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter
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Our audit procedures included:

T B A A% 7 AL

— We understood, evaluated and validated the key
controls over impairment assessment of loan and
interest receivables, which relates to management’s
identification of events that triggered the provision
for impairment of loan and interest receivables and
estimation of the amount of provisions.
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— We inspected the loan and pledged agreements
entered into between the Group and the borrowers,
and other relevant information relating to the
borrowers as assessed by the Group.
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Independent Auditor’s Report Continuedg

KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

The measurement of ECL requires the application of
significant judgement and increased complexity which
include the identification of exposures with a significant
deterioration in credit quality, and assumptions used in
the ECL models for exposures assessed individually,
such as the expected future cash flows and forward-
looking macroeconomic factors.
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We focused on this area because the carrying amount
of loan and interest receivables is significant to the
consolidated financial statements, the identification
of whether exposures triggered deterioration in credit
quality and the estimation of the individual impairment
amount require the use of significant judgments and
estimates.
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We circulated auditor’s confirmations to test the
existence of the loan and interest receivables as at
the end of the reporting period. We also checked
the accuracy of the aging of loan and interest
receivables as at the end of the reporting period by
tracing to loan agreements.
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We assessed the reasonableness of the Group’s
ECL model and the criteria for assessing if there
has been a significant increase in credit risk and so
allowances for financial assets should be measured
on a lifetime ECL basis. We also assessed
recoverability of the loan and interest receivables
with reference to borrowers’ interest repayment
records and principal repayment subsequent to the
yearend date and up to the date of this report, and
traced the repayments to the bank statements.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS (Continued)

Key audit matter
o it 7 % 3 0H

Impairment assessment of goodwill

Py 28 0ot {H ¥ A

Refer to key sources of estimation uncertainty in note
4 and the disclosures of goodwill in note 19 to the
consolidated financial statements.
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At 31 December 2018,
impairment assessment to the goodwill attributable

the Group carried out an

to the financial service business, alcoholic beverage
distribution business and children education business
and no impairment loss of goodwill of was recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2018.
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For the purpose of assessing impairment, goodwill
was allocated to cash-generating unit (“CGU”) of the
respective business, and the recoverable amount of
the CGU was determined by management based on
value-in-use calculation using cash flow projection.
In carrying out the impairment assessment, significant
management judgement was used to determine the key
assumptions, including operating margins, terminal
growth rate and discount rates, underlying the value-in-

use calculation.
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

F AP vl 7 2 4 Ao i AL B S 9 A T IR

Our audit procedures included:

T B A A% 7 AL

assessing value-in-use calculation methodology
adopted by management;
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assessing the reasonableness of key assumptions
(including operating margins, terminal growth rate
and discount rate) based on our knowledge of the
business and industry and using valuation expert;
and
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checking the mathematical accuracy of the value
in use calculation in the management’s impairment

assessment.
— R U AT L T 0 £ O 0
1 B A o



Independent Auditor’s Report Continuedg

OTHER MATTER

The consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2017 were audited by another independent
auditor whose report dated 23 March 2018 expressed a modified
opinion on those consolidated financial statements due to a scope
limitation on the fair value measurement of certain unlisted fund
investment as reported under the available-for-sale investments
(Note 23A) with a carrying amount of HK$7,188,000 as at 31
December 2017, the qualification is subsequently resolved and
property dealt within the consolidated financial statements.

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that
there is a material misstatement of this other information, we
are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THOSE
CHARGED WITH GOVERNANCE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation
of consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine
is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the
Group’s financial reporting process.

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report
is made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with section 90
of the Bermuda Companies Act 1981 and for no other purpose.
We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to
any other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that
an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect
a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence
the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.
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Independent Auditor’s Report Continuedg

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

—  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control.

—  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the
audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

—  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

—  Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors” use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our
conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to
the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.
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Independent Auditor’s Report (Continued)
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also: (Continued)

- Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures,
and whether the consolidated financial statements represent
the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

—  Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related
safeguards.
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Independent Auditor’s Report Continued;

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with those charged with
governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditor’s report is Tong Wai Hang.

Baker Tilly Hong Kong Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 22 March 2019

Tong Wai Hang

Practising Certificate Number P06231
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Consolldated Statement of Proflt or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

meBEmRHE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — %

NS e

Continuing operations
Revenue
Sales of feedstock products
Alcoholic beverage distribution business
Food and beverage business
Dividend income from
listed equity instruments
Loan interest income
Provision of children education services
Provision of financial services

Total revenue
Cost of sales and services

Gross profit
Other income, other gains and losses

Selling and distribution costs

General and administrative expenses

Fair value loss on financial assets through
profit or loss

Impairment loss of available-for-sale
investment

Impairment loss of goodwill

Share of loss of a joint venture

Finance costs

Loss before tax
Income tax (expense)/credit

Loss for the year from continuing
operations

Discontinued operations
Profit for the year from discontinued

operations

Loss for the year
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China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

2018 2017
ZENE FE L
HK$’000 HKS$’000
W T oo ki o aPTH
36,473 32,110
10,133 -
12,494 .
113 204
10,662 7,305
1,182 .
2,366 13,774
73,423 53,393
(47,526) (31,251)
25,897 22,142
(7,238) 26,361
(326) (259)
(49,865) (37,220)
(7,603) (87,506)

- (6,680)

- (13,844)
(1,801) (759)
(38) (1,104)
(40,974) (98,869)
(320) 40
(41,294) (98,829)
- 1,050
(41,294) (97,779)




Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Co gehenswe IncomeiContln
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

2018 2017
“EZ-NE —EFLEHF
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000

B 5 T T T

Other comprehensive (expense)/income il 2 T ( B 3%) W 2

Items that may be reclassified B 1% v GE B 40 B E
subsequently to profit or loss: a2 HH :
Exchange differences on translating MBIV EBEEZ
foreign operations BEE 58,25 %1 (1,474) 2,107
Share of other comprehensive (expenses)/ JEML —H A& MSEZ
income of a joint venture HAth 2180 (B Z)
I %t 22 41 225
Reclassification adjustments relating to AAE B 2 A 3
foreign operations disposed of ZHH O FE A R
during the year 10 - (1,830)
(1,515) 502
Items that will not be reclassified to AFA G EH 5 E
profit or loss: Ha ZHH :
Change in fair value of financial assets ey U EEFEA HAth 2
at fair value through other comprehensive [ 2t 2 A8 T H 2
income N B R A E) (14,416) -
Other comprehensive (expense)/income A A B H At 2 T
for the year (BASZ) i 2k (15,931) 502
Total comprehensive expense for the year 7S 4F B 4 i b % 48 % (57,225) (97,277)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to 72 w] B A HE i
owners of the Company AAENE (HEE) i
— from continuing operations — 2 A FR A (40,542) (99,021)
— from discontinued operations — R H A& ISR - 534
(40,542) (98,487)
(Loss)/profit for the year attributable to  JE ¥ it HE %3 JE 1
non-controlling interests AAENE (HE18) i F
— from continuing operations — K A RS S (752) 192
— from discontinued operations — OIS ER - 516
(752) 708
(41,294) 97,779)

seengnnasy 193



Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income (Continued)
GeoEmRNEthEBRG R (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

Total comprehensive (expense)/income

attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interests

Loss per share
— for continuing and discontinued
operations
Basic (HK cents)

Diluted (HK cents)

— for continuing operations
Basic (HK cents)

Diluted (HK cents)

Notes

!

VSNSRI ]
(BASZ) /W aik -

—ARAFHEA N

— IR FE RO £

B I i 48 15
— A R X

B L5

FA (AL

W (AL

— K [ R KL
FA AL

B (AL

1 24 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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2018 2017
ZE—NE O F L
HK$’000 HK$’000
T ou ik e aT
(55,819) (98,135)
(1,406) 858
(57,225) (97,277)
(3.56) (11.17)
(3.56) (11.17)
(3.56) (11.23)
(3.56) (11.23)




Consolidated Statement of Financial Po§jtion
ER OISR RN R

At 31 December 2018 it —~FE—/N4F+ - H=+—H

Non-current assets

Property, plant and equipment

Prepaid lease payments

Goodwill

Intangible asset

Investment in a joint venture

Loans and interest receivables

Available-for-sale investments

Financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income

Other assets

Deferred tax assets

Current assets

Inventories

Trade receivables

Loans and interest receivables

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss

Tax recoverable

Trust bank accounts

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities

Trade and other payables
Amount due to a joint venture

Current tax liabilities

Net current assets

Total assets less current liabilities
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Bl MB e FHIEH
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JREASF R sk B LAt
JE A5t 3 IH
MEAT— ] &8 32
HIH
B 5 JH £ AR

B B

B 7 W B LR

Notes

Bt

16
18
19
20
22
27
23A

23C

24
32

25
26
27
28
23B

29
29

30

31

2018 2017
E-NE —ZEF L
HK$’000 HK$ 000
A BT T
13,827 7,334
842 911
20,200 -
500 500
1,732 3,574
8,030 11,939

- 25,947

7,125 -
3,167 12,412

- 88
55,423 62,705
4,297 2,343
17,516 22,457
79,391 85,041
11,526 15,716
24,831 14,983

- 57
22,996 28,954
68,576 94,293
229,133 263,844
37,832 37,936
56 -

171 10
38,059 37,946
191,074 225,898
246,497 288,603
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position (Continued)
REMFIRIRE (8)

At 31 December 2018 it —~&E— /4 - H=1—H

2018 2017
—EF-NE T L4
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
Bt 53 W T oo T T
Capital and reserves & A K it e

Share capital B A 33 12,242 9,936
Reserves fiti ff5 231,174 267,799

Equity attributable to owners EN/NECIE: RN g o
of the Company 243,416 277,735
Non-controlling interests IE 2 B HE 75 3,081 10,868
Total equity HE 25 48 3R 246,497 288,603

The consolidated financial statements on pages 122 to 325 were  *B122EH B325H 24 A M@k N —
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 22 ~ F—JLHF = H .+ " H&HE F oL X

March 2019 and signed on its behalf by: FHETEE > M T A E R AR E
~ Director ~ Dircector
EH EH
Mr. Ng Ting Ho Mr. Lam Chun Kei
RIE B Sk B £ S 2k
1 2 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

Annual Report 2018



Balance at 1 January 2017

(Loss) profit for the year

Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive income (expense)

for the year

Issue of shares upon exercise of
share options (Note 33(:)

Issue of placing shares (Note 33(i))

Transaction costs attributable to
issue of shares

Share of effects of equity transaction of

ajoint venture (Note 22)

Recognition of equity-settled share-based

payments (Note 35)
Lapse of share options

Acquisition of a non-controlling interest

of a subsidiary (Note 39)

Balance at 31 December 2017

Effect of change in accounting policy

(Note 2)

Adjustments at | January 2018 (Restated)

Loss for the year

Other comprehensive expense for the year
Total comprehensive expense for the year

Issue of shares upon exercise of share

options (Note 33(ii))
Tssue of placing shares (Note 33(i))
Transaction costs attributable to
issue of shares
Lapse of share options

Acquisition of a non-controlling interest

of a subsidiary (Note 39)
Disposal of a non-wholly owned
subsidiary
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39)

Balance at 31 December 2018

A P4 i
RER (B @Al
KERH TG

RERRTIE (3 48

THE R G s TRy
B33y

HIRERDR (W33

HHRBEGZ L AHA

Bl -HAsbERALh 28R

(WzE22)
RERBUAR A B 2 e A 5
[mums)

BREAN
Vi~ ﬁﬁﬁ“ﬂz#rﬂﬁﬁ
(HiE39)

REB- LR

ey

GtBREH YR Wik

WoZ—ME— i~ R frthE
(BE)

KRR
AEEHMRER L

[T £ EhEL

BB ERETRR
(33 )
BORERR (H:336)
BT ORI 2 25 Bk
B R
W —MHE A 2
FRRER ()
HE-HELENEAT
WM AR (k9

REE-NEFZA=F-R
24tk

Consolidated Statement of Char,lﬁg
b= N

Attributable to owners of the Company

es InE

lu" I N\ mnm

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ — 2 — /41 = =+1—H I F ¥

LYk 2N 1]
Available-
for-sale
investments
Foreign  revaluation Retained Attributable
PRC Share currency reserve/ profits to non-
Share Share  Contributed Capital statutory options  translation FVOCI  (accumulated controlling
capital premium surplus reserve Teserve reserve reserve reserve losses) Sub-total interests Total
i
BRER
(174
BRI
it Al
Rk RERA kR )
Bk BBEE MARS  WARE PREERE WRERE MRRSIEE L1 S Tl 4] LA wit
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS 000 HKS'000 HKS 000 HKS'000
BT EET BETx BT EMTx #RTx EWTx EETx EETx #WTx Bk BT
7691 118,769 153,551 61,545 873 - 1406 (112) 17,697 361,420 3791 399,381
- - - - - - - - (98.487) (98.487) 708 (97,7179
- - - - - - 352 - - 352 150 502
- - - - - - 352 - (98.487) (98,135) 858 97211
07 6,901 - - - (1,531) - - - 6,077 - 6,077
1538 13,842 - - - - - - - 15,380 - 15,380
- (638) - - - - - - - (638) - (638)
- - - - - - - - 1,676 1,676 - 1,676
- - - - - 3004 - - - 3204 - 3204
- - - - - (166) - - 166 - - -
- - - - - - - - (11,249) (11,49 (27.951) (39,200)
9,936 138,874 153,551 61,545 873 1,507 1,758 (112) 90.197) 11,735 10,868 288,603
- - - - - - - (13934) 13,934 - - -
9,936 138,874 153,551 61,543 83 1,507 1,758 (14,046) (76,263) 211,135 10,868 288,603
- - - - - - - - (40,542) (40,542) (752) (41,294
- - - - - - (861) (14,416) - (15,277) (654) (15,931)
- - - - - - (861) (14,416) (40,542) (55,819) (1,406) (57,028
461 5495 - - - (1,010) - - - 4946 - 4946
1843 16,605 - - - - - - - 18,450 - 18450
- (865) - - - - - - - (865) - (865)
- - - - - (497) - - 497 - - -
- - - - - - - - (1,031) (1,031) (8,969) (10,000
- - - - - - - - - - 1428 1428
- - - - - - - - - - 1,160 1,160
1224 160,109 153,551 61,545 8 - 897 (28,462) (117,339) 23416 3,081 246,497

@%ﬁﬁ!ﬁ B8BRA
£ }\ﬂfﬂfiﬁ
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
{—] \ =

n-l\é\iﬁﬁ)lltlgﬁ

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

Notes
B
Cash flows from operating activities REEBEZIHERE
Loss before tax: I o i e 48
— From continuing operations — R B RS T
— From discontinued operations — K E &R 10
Adjustments for: KELLTH £ TH i 5 -
Finance costs W5 LA
Interest income FLE YA
Depreciation of property, plant and E Y VN & P
equipment Ireg
Dividend income from fund investments KAREEREZ
Ji B A
Dividend income from available-for-sale A fit i & 2
investments B A
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments T A AR B R T 2 4 B
Gain on disposal of property, B W K&
plant and equipment B A 2 IR
Loss/(gain) on disposal of a subsidiary Hh B — [ B e 2 Wl 2
iR, (dad) 39

Share of loss of a joint venture

Impairment loss of trade receivables

MEAE— G B REZ
[ ZEic
B WS AR K 2 9 (A 1

Impairment loss of loan and interest JRE i B 3K I B 2
receivable ICRIEN 75 =1

Impairment loss of goodwill (k- FR I Fi

Impairment loss of available-for-sale A ERE
investments ICRIEN R =

Reversal of impairment of trade JFEE A R R 2 TRk A 3% [l
receivables

Expense recognised in respect of MR ASE R 2
equity-settled share-based payments JBE A5 A5t 3K B 32

12 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

Annual Report 2018

2018 2017
SENE SELA
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T oo T oo
(40,974) (98.869)
- 1,050
38 1,104
(417) (19)
3,932 2,164
(118) -
- (27,487)
21 21
(19) -
308 (2,867)
1,801 759
2,928 1,342
6,804 103
- 13,844
- 6,680
(57) (128)
- 3,204
(25,753) (99,099)



Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows gContlnuedg
%%é\iﬁﬁllllg% (mE

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

Operating cash flows before movements in

working capital
Decrease/(increase) in other assets

Increase in inventories

Decrease in trade receivables

Increase in deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

(Increase)/decrease in financial asset
at fair value through profit or loss

Decrease in derivative financial
instruments

Decrease/(increase) in loans and
interest receivables

Decrease in trade and other payables

Decrease/(increase) in trust bank accounts

Cash (used in)/generated from operations

Interest received
Interest paid

Income taxes received
Income taxes paid

Net cash (used in)/from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities

B

?“ﬁ iﬁﬁ I K
A JE i 3K /i”‘ﬁﬂ
f/\ﬁfgﬁrﬁr}\i
Ziﬁﬂ‘,‘é%
(Bagm) W
74 4 b T B

& A‘E%Eﬁ‘ EEJE
Wb (s

(BT Friit <
Bl
C A S
SEREAIPS,
. i P 75 i
2 A BT Bt

BB (TR A
Z B &

BREGHH ZHREHE

Distributions received for fund investments %4 % & i 15 2 43 Uk

Distributions received from
available-for-sale investments

Payments for property, plant and equipment ¥ 3£ ~ i[5

Proceeds for disposal of property,
plant and equipment

Purchases of available-for-sale investments

Proceeds of capital return from fund
investments

Proceeds of capital return from
available-for-sale investments

Payments for acquisition of subsidiaries

Net cash inflow on disposal of an indirect

non-wholly-owned subsidiary
Repayment from a joint venture

Net cash outflow on acquisition of additionald H ff %

interest in subsidiaries

A A BCE T A

2453k
?)’ﬂ%ﬁﬂr)\
HEYE- Jﬁﬂﬁ Xz
Jr 15 3k IH
[ =aEr &
HEWEF
i 15 3
T{/\::HE
Z g
Llﬁ(ﬁ%[?ﬁ}%
B — [ [
NEipas:
KEH—MHA

=
R
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>
o
pi

e >
s
Ok Bk 2y 2

B

BWAMHF AT W
NEE

EﬁwmﬁbﬁmmmE
BEDE

40

Net cash (used in)/from investing activities £ &&® (FrH) /Frig

Z B &

Notes

i3

39

39

2018 2017
— )\ 4 — L
HK$’000 HK$’000
W T oo T oo
9,245 (12,182)
(304) (506)
3,663 71,382
(2,868) (199)
(9,848) 135,672
- 64
5,596 (11,355)
(4,118) (14,077)
5,958 (1,956)
(18,429) 67,744
376 19
(38) (50)

- 1,428
(14) (1,861)
(18,105) 67,280
118 -

- 27,487
(8,232) (2,385)
136 -

- (5,316)
4,406 -
- 6,305
(21,996) -
20 1,236
1,200 -
(5,400) -
(29,748) 27,327

BEERBREERA
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)

melRERER (18)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

Cash flows from financing activities
Interest paid
Proceeds from exercise of share options
Proceeds from placing of shares
Payment for transaction cost attributable
to issue of ordinary shares
Decrease in amount due to
a non-controlling interest
Acquisition of additional interest in
a subsidiary
Repayment of other borrowing
Repayment of bank borrowing

Net cash from/(used in) financing
activities

Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at
1 January

m%%%z&%%%
E%T* B
A7 {65 g P 2 BT A9 3R JE
m%&%z%%ﬁ
AT Lﬂxﬁx{ﬁj\ﬁ%hﬁ
5 A AT 3K
JEASH I 2 B HE £ 2 B IE
W
Wi i — [HTR J  m) 2
MR 45
i 3 HL A £ 3K
B 72 SR AT M 3K

il S By T AR, (BT )
Z Bl i

BHerkB&FMHEH
(W) /3 i

B—H—-HZB&Kk
B&%MHEH

Effect of foreign exchange rate changes, net 7| [ %6 5 #f) . 52 28 5 40

Cash and cash equivalents at
31 December

RT+ZH=1+—HZ
Be kB e&HMHEH
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Notes

i3

39

2018 2017

— )\ —F—LHF
HK$’000 HK$ 000
T ik TN
- (1,054)

4,946 6,077
18,450 15,380
(865) (638)

- (29,400)

- (39,200)

- (25,000)

- (470)
22,531 (74,305)
(25,322) 20,302
94,293 73,971
(395) 20
68,576 94,293




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

&

#n © B 5 ¥ R B 5E

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ — 2 — /41 = =+1—H I F ¥

GENERAL

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited (the
“Company”) was incorporated as an exempted company
with limited liability in the Cayman Islands on 22 September
2000 under the Companies Laws of the Cayman Islands.

In 2014, the Company has been deregistered in the Cayman
Islands and duly continued in Bermuda as an exempted
company under the laws of Bermuda and the change of
domicile became effective on 8 May 2014 (Bermuda time).

The shares of the Company are listed on GEM of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The addresses of the registered office of the Company is
located at Clarendon House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton
HM11, Bermuda and its principal place of business in Hong
Kong is located at Unit 1002, 10/F, China Insurance Group
Building, 141 Des Voeux Road Central, Central, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. During the year, the Company and its subsidiaries
(collectively the “Group”) was involved in the following
principal activities:

manufacturing, development and distribution of
feedstock products and related activities in the People’s
Republic of China (the “PRC”);

—  provision of loan financing in Hong Kong;

—  provision of financial services (including advising and
dealing in securities and asset management);

— investment in listed and unlisted securities;
—  provision food and beverage services;

- alcoholic beverage distribution; and

provision of children eduction services.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars (“HK$”), which is the same as the functional
currency of the Company.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REAMERARME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

2.

13

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) for the first time in the
current year:

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments
HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with
Customers and the related
amendments
HK(IFRIC) Foreign Currency Transactions and
— Int 22 Advance Consideration

Amendments to Classification and Measurement of

HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment Transactions
Amendments to
HKFRS 4

Applying HKFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with HKFRS 4
Insurance Contracts

Amendments to
HKAS 28

As part of the Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

Amendments to
HKAS 40

Transfers of Investment Property

Except as described below, the application of the new
and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group’s financial performance
and positions for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 for the first time
in the current year. HKFRS 15 superseded HKAS 18
Revenue, HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the related
interpretations.

The Group has applied HKFRS 15 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect of initially applying this Standard
recognised at the date of initial application, 1 January 2018.
Any difference at the date of initial application is recognised
in the opening retained profits (or other components of
equity, as appropriate) and comparative information has
not been restated. Furthermore, in accordance with the
transition provisions in HKFRS 15, the Group has elected
to apply the Standard retrospectively only to contracts
that are not completed at 1 January 2018. Accordingly,
certain comparative information may not be comparable
as comparative information was prepared under HKAS 18
Revenue and HKAS 11 Construction Contracts and the
related interpretations.

2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REAMERARME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

2.

13

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
(Continued)

The Group recognises revenue from the following major
sources which arise from contracts with customers:

—  Agricultural segment comprises the feedstock products
business in the PRC;

—  Money lending segment comprises provision of loan
financing in Hong Kong;

—  Financial services segment comprises advising and
dealing in securities and asset management;

—  Securities investment segment comprises investment in
listed securities.

— Food and beverage segment in Hong Kong and
Singapore;

—  Alcoholic beverage distribution business comprises
distribution of imported craft beer in Hong Kong and
PRC; and

—  Kindergarten or pre-school education business.
Information about the Group’s performance obligations and
the accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS

15 are disclosed in note 3 respectively.

There was no impact on the amounts recognised in relation
to these assets from application of HKFRS 15.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments

In the current year, the Group has applied HKFRS 9
Financial Instruments and the related consequential
amendments to other HKFRSs. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for 1) the classification and measurement of
financial assets and financial liabilities, 2) expected credit
losses (“ECL”) for financial assets and 3) general hedge
accounting.

The Group has applied HKFRS 9 in accordance with the
transition provisions set out in HKFRS 9, i.e. applied the
classification and measurement requirements (including
impairment under ECL model) retrospectively to instruments
that have not been derecognised as at 1 January 2018 (date
of initial application) and has not applied the requirements
to instruments that have already been derecognised as at
1 January 2018. The difference between carrying amounts
as at 31 December 2017 and the carrying amounts as at 1
January 2018 are recognised in the opening retained profits/
(accumulated losses) and other components of equity,
without restating comparative information.

Accordingly, certain comparative information may not
be comparable as comparative information was prepared
under HKAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and
Measurement.

Accounting policies resulting from application of HKFRS 9
are disclosed in note 3.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

#n & B 5 $R R BT sE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. JERI# T M &5 5T 7 W 4 7% #i
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS LR ([FHHBMEHRERA])
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued) (745 )

Summary of effects arising from initial application of B K B 78 R R R B 99
HKFRS 9 VI ES X1
The table below illustrates the classification and T%%ﬂi‘ﬁﬁﬁiéf%&ﬁﬁmﬁ%w\ M
measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities and HoAh A —F— \4E— H — H W) th 1
other items subject to ECL under HKFRS 9 and HKAS 39 at FH BAAR 35 B s B 85 3 415 HE I 559
the date of initial application, 1 January 2018. 5% X A o T E R S5 309 TR
WG B ERENIEE 008 K EHE -
Financial Available-
assets at for-sales-
FVTPL investment
Available- required by Equity valuation/
for-sale HKAS 39/ instruments FVTOCI
investment HKFRS 9 at FVTOCI reserve
WIEFHE at
) 553955 A Y
B RE M/
WSRO % A R
AR A R e {5 A JE Al
Wh A2 wh A2 LI
AR E S E JE A TH fit 6
Note HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
i aE T T Tk Tk
Closing balance at /AR S v
31 December 2017 +ZH=+—H#
- HKAS 39 IR A B —
Gt 395 25,947 14,983 - -
Effect arising from initial 045 e A ¥ B
application of HKFRS 9 5 3 A 5RO 5% 1 5y - - - (13,934)
Reclassification BHHE
From available-for-sale investments B 7] fit i & i % & (25,947) - 25,947 -
Opening balance REF—NE—H—HH
at 1 January 2018 B0 4 i - 14,983 25,947 (13,934)
13 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd))
RO IRRMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. MEF BT RIET = &M% R

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS LA ([HFHMBEHREEDN])

(“HKFRSs”) (Continued) (%)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued) BB EosE £ ph T H
(#E)

(a) Available-for-sale investments (a) WG ERE

From available-for-sale equity investments to fair value
through other comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”)

The Group elected to present in its other comprehensive
income (“OCI”) for the fair value changes of all its
fund investments previously classified as available-
for-sale investments. These investments are not
held for trading and not expected to be sold in the
foreseeable future. At the date of initial application
of HKFRS 9, HK$25,947,000 were reclassified from
available-for-sale investments to financial assets
at FVTOCI, of which HK$18,759,000 related to
unquoted equity investments previously measured at
cost less impairment under HKAS 39. No fair value
changes relating to those unquoted equity investments
previously carried at cost less impairment were adjusted
to financial assets at FVTOCI and FVTOCI reserve as
at 1 January 2018. The fair value losses of HK$112,000
relating to those investments previously carried at fair
value continued to accumulate in FVTOCI reserve. In
addition, impairment losses previously recognised of
HK$13,934,000 were transferred from accumulated
losses to FVTOCI reserve as at 1 January 2018.

H Al (i) B A 5 B H I
BTN T AT 2
at ([# A A A AR A2
I W g /)

A 4 [ 28 4% A At 2 TE i 55
(1l 4 v W 25 ] ) 2 51 S iy
SBUR AT B R I SR
EI A B - ZERE
A IEFRESC ) B RIS A & 1
A TR G AR B o A ) B
FA A U A5 e 4 e R SR 05
H > ¥ #25,947,0000C B AT i
HEREE N EERA E
HrtAEAM 2wk E 2 2
fll & 7 > H o 118,759,000
JCY R e R AR R A v g e
5539945 A AR IRk (R i 1 FF
BT AR E o T — N —
H—H > 3 48 55 i 4% AR AS i ok
HABRKIE AR EN
FH B2 o B (8 58 ) R 2 S 4%
AMEEFTAHAM 2T 2 &
Fll & E A s B (E R A KA
2 THT A 3 falh A o SEHTHE A SUAE
HA IR E S A EEE R
¥ 112,00000 4 48 7% 12 2> o fE
(B wF A HAth 2 T 0k 5 o A 22
Fho s A A =T — N —H—
H > 5l A 8 1) e (B 48 2 s T
13,934,00070 B 2 71 5 48 5 15
F RN OB A T A Ho A 2 T i
i [t 45
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

2.

13

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(b) Financial assets at FVTPL

(c)

The Group has reassessed its investments in equity
securities classified as held for trading under HKAS
39 as if the Group had purchased these investments
at the date of initial application. Based on the facts
and circumstances as at the date of initial application,
HK$14,983,000 of the Group’s investments were held
for trading and continued to be measured at FVTPL.

There was no impact on the amounts recognised in
relation to these assets from the application of HKFRS
9.

Impairment under ECL model

Except for loans and interest receivables, the trade
receivables in agricultural business and financial
services business, the Group applies the HKFRS 9
simplified approach to measure lifetime ECL for
all trade receivable of other business by assessing
aggregately based on provisional matrix estimated
by reference to the internal credit rating or past due
analysis plus looking forward information. The lifetime
ECL of trade receivables in agricultural business and
financial services business is to be assessed individually
with the same basis as mentioned.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

W R 6T B A5 T 2 A v B i
e (T 7 i S 5 e e S )

(#)

o 0 SRS ek T R

(%

(b) AL RAEE G 1 a5 192 &

(c)

E

AL O A AR A
W e E R ZE 3998 0 B A R 1E
BHEMNBRAB S HE M
ALEE R RE R H I E IEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (Continued)

(¢) Impairment under ECL model (Continued)

Except for those which had been determined as credit
impaired under HKAS 39, ECL for other financial
assets at amortised cost, including trust bank account,
bank balances and deposit and other receivables, are
assessed on 12-month ECL basis as there had been
no significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions

The amendments clarify the following:

(a) In estimating the fair value of a cash-settled share-
based payment, the accounting for the effects of vesting
and non-vesting conditions of a cash-settled share-
based payment should follow the same approach as for
equity-settled share-based payments;

WE W% 6T A v BB A e
(T B H e ) R
S e o E RS RT A (A

A B B e R S SRR ek T H
(#)

(c) HHF B8 BT 1Y it
(#)

BRZSF AR A RIS 39
SRR E R E R E 2 HE
B > T B A T 2 Ho A
e (B (R RESRAT RS
SRAT & B B die 4 DA B HAth B i
IH) WS SR 1R 51512
il A FEHE B 1R A ST
FEAl > JELEL B 1 A e R DA
{5 5 JL gt Sl B K T

A 0 0 5 o R 298 (I ETAR)
JBe B 5k 58 o 2 43 8 Bt

AZMERT AR G DA R 4% JA -

(a)  JAEFF AR A &5 DA A 2 5
BEEAS X 2 A (IR > i 3 DA
B4 455 DU 03 o FERREAS Y
i g I FF v A 2 B
i P B B P DA RS R 4
DA ARy o HE B A R [R] — T
%
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

2.

14

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement of Share-based Payment Transactions
(Continued)

(b) Where tax law or regulation requires the Group to
withhold a specified number of equity instruments
equal to the monetary value of the employee’s tax
obligation to meet the employee’s tax liability which
is then remitted to the tax authority, that is, the share-
based payment arrangement has a ‘net settlement
feature’, such an arrangement should be classified as
equity-settled in its entirety, provided that the share-
based payment would have been classified as equity-
settled had it not included the net settlement feature;
and

(c) A modification of a share-based payment that changes
the transaction from cash-settled to equity— settled
should be accounted for as follows:

(i) the original liability is derecognised;

(i) the equity-settled share-based payment is
recognised at the modification date fair value of
the equity instrument granted to the extent that
services have been rendered up to the modification
date; and

(iii) any difference between the carrying amount of the
liability at the modification date and the amount
recognised in equity should be recognised in profit
or loss immediately.

There was no impact on the amounts recognised in relation
to these assets from application of Amendments to HKFRS
2.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKAS 28 As part of the Annual
Improvements to HKFRSs 2014 — 2016 Cycle

The amendments clarified that the election to measure at fair
value through profit or loss an investment in an associate or a
joint venture that is held by an entity that is a venture capital
organisation, or other qualifying entity, is available for each
investment in an associate or joint venture on an investment-
by-investment basis, upon initial recognition.

There was no impact on the amounts recognised in relation
to these assets from application of Amendments to HKAS
28. As part of the Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2014 —
2016 Cycle.

2.

W P 59 6T B 28 46 6T A o B 5
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2.

14

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSSs”) (Continued)
Impacts on opening consolidated statement of financial
position arising from the application of all new standards,
amendments and interpretation
As a result of the changes in the Group’s accounting policies
above, the opening consolidated statement of financial
position had to be restated. The following table show the
adjustments recognised for each of the line items affected.
Line items that were not affected by the changes have not
been included.
31 December
2017
(Audited)
e Sl s
+oA
(RFB)
HK$’000
T T
Non-current assets T Y
Available-for-sale investments ot 25,947
Financial assets at FVTOCI ey B (R A A A T AR 2
THERE -

Note: For the purposes of reporting cash flows from operating activities
under indirect method for the year ended 31 December 2018,
movements in working capital have been computed based on opening
statement of financial position as at 1 January 2018 as disclosed
above.
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My A E BRI R C 'S - T
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o R BB NIAE IR 64
FEA o

1 January

2018

HKFRS 15 HKFRS 9 (Restated)
Bl HEME  SF AR
ety 3 ] et 3 1) —H—H
H15% 9%k (B &)
HKS$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
kil T W
- (25,947) -

- 25,947 25,947
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2. WEFBiaT & &8T5 %

HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS B ([FHH M B ])
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued) (#E)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not yet T H W R A 3z B el R B IEET
effective T Us W5 e o e H)
The Group has not early applied the following new and 7 4 8] 3 e B ELRE R 5 2 AR AEL
amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not yet W AR 2R B2 B RT B BB T A s B
effective: A HER
HKERS 16 Leases' s B e HE
BRI 1657
HKERS 17 Insurance Contracts’ T B R 547
e A5 178
HK(IFRIC) - Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments’ s (PRI ran g
kR PNHEE
ZE®)
— b B398
Amendments to HKFRS 9 Prepayment Features with Negative T B 12 B S R
Compensation’ MR 5595 V- 1-4
(EFTA)
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Asset between an e B G AT & 4 ] 5
and HKAS 28 Investor and its Associate or Joint Venture’ HEHI 551058 K EETEZHZ BE

FEaatel  HELE
#2898 (BT A)

Amendments to HKAS 19 Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement’ ket FFEIEHT 45
199 A
(BiTA)
Amendments to HKAS 28 Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint iR Al Y AL e ol 3
Ventures' $8%% (BT &) ZRA#ER
Amendments to HKFRSs  Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 T ERE BB IR AR
Cycle' BRI (BT A) TE—hER
ZE-LFERH
9 JE 2
! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2019. ! NZFE—JUE—H —HE R EZ
A J3E 10T T AR R o
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2021. 2 AR T —AF—A—HERDERAGZ
AT B [ AR A0
3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to be 3 F 2 H Bl LU B i 2 4F B Y A
determined. e
Except for the new and amendments to HKFRSs mentioned R T SCRTHIOB =T S RS AE RT A s A 5%
below, the directors of the Company anticipate that the AR HE R Ab > A 2N w) EE 55 TE I HE T
application of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs BT oA B R T B B AE BT A s I 5 R
will have no material impact on the consolidated financial T HE N A ] LR ARG AN e L 5 A
statements in the foreseeable future. BREALEEREE
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2.

14

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

HKFRS 16 introduces a comprehensive model for the
identification of lease arrangements and accounting
treatments for both lessors and lessees. HKFRS 16 will
supersede HKAS 17 Leases and the related interpretations
when it becomes effective.

HKFRS 16 distinguishes lease and service contracts on
the basis of whether an identified asset is controlled by a
customer.

Distinctions of operating leases and finance leases are
removed for lessee accounting, and is replaced by a model
where a right-of-use asset and a corresponding liability have
to be recognised for all leases by lessees, except for short-
term leases and leases of low value assets.

The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost (subject to certain exceptions)
less accumulated depreciation and impairment losses,
adjusted for any remeasurement of the lease liability. The
lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the
lease payments that are not paid at that date. Subsequently,
the lease liability is adjusted for interest and lease payments,
as well as the impact of lease modifications, amongst others.
For the classification of cash flows, the Group currently
presents upfront prepaid lease payments as investing cash
flows in relation to leasehold lands for owned use and those
classified as investment properties while other operating
lease payments are presented as operating cash flows. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, lease payments in relation to lease
liability will be allocated into a principal and an interest
portion which will be presented as financing cash flows by
the Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

Under HKAS 17, the Group has already recognised an
asset and a related finance lease liability for finance lease
arrangement and prepaid lease payments for leasehold lands
where the Group is a lessee. The application of HKFRS 16
may result in potential changes in classification of these
assets depending on whether the Group presents right-of-use
assets separately or within the same line item at which the
corresponding underlying assets would be presented if they
were owned.

Other than certain requirements which are also applicable
to lessor, HKFRS 16 substantially carries forward the lessor
accounting requirements in HKAS 17, and continues to
require a lessor to classify a lease either as an operating lease
or a finance lease.

Furthermore, extensive disclosures are required by HKFRS
16.

As at 31 December 2018, the Group has non-cancellable
operating lease commitments of HK$23,161,000 as disclosed
in note 40. A preliminary assessment indicates that these
arrangements will meet the definition of a lease. Upon
application of HKFRS 16, the Group will recognise a right-
of-use asset and a corresponding liability in respect of all
these leases unless they qualify for low value or short-term
leases.

2.
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14

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (Continued)

In addition, the Group currently considers refundable rental
deposits paid of approximately HK$4,982,000 as rights and
obligations under leases to which HKAS 17 applies. Based
on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use the
underlying assets, accordingly, the carrying amounts of such
deposits may be adjusted to amortised cost. Adjustments
to refundable rental deposits paid would be considered
as additional lease payments and included in the carrying
amount of right-of-use assets. Adjustments to refundable
rental deposits received would be considered as advance
lease payments.

The application of new requirements may result in changes
in measurement, presentation and disclosure as indicated
above. Furthermore, the Group intends to elect the modified
retrospective approach for the application of HKFRS 16
as lease and will recognise the cumulative effect of initial
application to opening retained profits without restating
comparative information.

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax
Treatments

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23 sets out how to determine the accounting
tax position when there is uncertainty over income tax
treatments. The interpretation requires an entity to determine
whether uncertain tax positions are assessed separately or as
a group; and assess whether it is probable that a tax authority
will accept an uncertain tax treatment used, or proposed to be
used, by an entity in its income tax filings.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of
Amendments to HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 will have a material
impact on the Group’s consolidated financial statement in
future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle

The annual improvement packages amended the following
four standards.

HKAS 12 Income Taxes

The amendments clarify that an entity should recognise the
income tax consequences of dividends in profit or loss, other
comprehensive income or equity according to where the
entity originally recognised the transactions that generated
the distributable profits. This is the case irrespective
of whether different tax rates apply to distributed and
undistributed profits.

HKAS 23 Borrowing Costs

The amendments clarify that if any specific borrowing
remains outstanding after the related asset is ready for its
intended use or sale, that borrowing becomes part of the
funds that an entity borrows generally when calculating the
capitalisation rate on general borrowings.

HKFRS 3 Business Combinations

The amendments clarify that when an entity obtains control
of a business that is a joint operation, the entity applies the
requirements for a business combination achieved in stages,
including remeasuring its previously held interest in the joint
operation at fair value. The previously held interest to be
remeasured includes any unrecognised assets, liabilities and
goodwill relating to the joint operation.
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APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”) (Continued)

Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle (Continued)

HKFRS 11 Joint Arrangements

The amendments clarify that when a party that participates
in, but does not have joint control of, a joint operation that is
a business obtains joint control of such a joint operation, the
entity does not remeasure its previously held interest in the
joint operation.

The directors do not anticipate that the application of
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements to HKFRSs
2015 2017 Cycle will have no immaterial impact on the
Group’s consolidated financial statements in future.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. In
addition, the consolidated financial statements include
applicable disclosures required by the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the GEM of the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (“GEM Listing Rules”) and by the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end of
each reporting period, as explained in the accounting policies
set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on such
a basis, except for share-based payment transactions that
are within the scope of HKFRS 2 “Share-based Payment”,
leasing transactions that are within the scope of HKAS 17,
and measurements that have some similarities to fair value
but are not fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS
2 “Inventories” or value in use in HKAS 36 “Impairment of
Assets”.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset take into
account a market participants ability to generate economic
benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by
selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use.

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based on
the degree to which the inputs to the fair value measurements
are observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair
value measurement in its entirety, which are described as
follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity
can access at the measurement date;
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices

included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

d Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or
liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the

financial statements of the Company and entities (including

structured entities) controlled by the Company and its

subsidiaries. Control is achieved when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

o is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.
The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if

facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one
or more of the three elements of control listed above.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When the Group has less than a majority of the voting rights
of an investee, it has power over the investee when the voting
rights are sufficient to give it the practical ability to direct
the relevant activities of the investee unilaterally. The Group
considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing
whether or not the Group’s voting rights in an investee are
sufficient to give it power, including:

. the size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative
to the size and dispersion of holdings of the other vote
holders;

. potential voting rights held by the Group, other vote
holders or other parties;

. rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

. any additional facts and circumstances that indicate that
the Group has, or does not have, the current ability to
direct the relevant activities at the time that decisions
need to be made, including voting patterns at previous
shareholders’ meetings.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Basis of consolidation (Continued)

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains
control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Group loses
control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income and expenses
of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of during the year are
included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income from the date the Group gains
control until the date when the Group ceases to control the
subsidiary.

Non-controlling interests in subsidiaries are presented
separately from the Group’s equity therein, which represent
present ownership interests entitling their holders to a
proportionate share of net assets of the relevant subsidiaries
upon liquidation.

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company and
to the non-controlling interests even if this results in the non-
controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses
and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries

Changes in the Group’s interests in existing subsidiaries that
do not result in the Group losing control over the subsidiaries
are accounted for as equity transactions. The carrying
amounts of the Group’s relevant components of equity
and the non-controlling interests are adjusted to reflect
the changes in their relative interests in the subsidiaries,
including re-attribution of relevant reserves between the
Group and the non-controlling interests according to the
Group’s and the non-controlling interests’ proportionate
interests.

Any difference between the amount by which the non-
controlling interests are adjusted, and the fair value of the
consideration paid or received is recognised directly in
equity and attributed to owners of the Company.

When the Group loses control of a subsidiary, the assets and
liabilities of that subsidiary and non-controlling interests (if
any) are derecognised. A gain or loss is recognised in profit
or loss and is calculated as the difference between (i) the
aggregate of the fair value of the consideration received and
the fair value of any retained interest and (ii) the carrying
amount of the assets (including goodwill), and liabilities of
the subsidiary attributable to the owners of the Company.
All amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that subsidiary are accounted for as
if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities of the subsidiary (i.e. reclassified to profit or loss
or transferred to another category of equity as specified/
permitted by applicable HKFRSs). The fair value of any
investment retained in the former subsidiary at the date
when control is lost is regarded as the fair value on initial
recognition for subsequent accounting under HKFRS 9/
HKAS 39, or when applicable, the cost on initial recognition
of an investment in an associate or a joint venture.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group in exchange for control of the
acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally recognised
in profit or loss as incurred.

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,
except that:

o deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements are
recognised and measured in accordance with HKAS 12
“Income Taxes” and HKAS 19 “Employee Benefits”
respectively;

. liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entered into to
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
“Share-based Payment” at the acquisition date (see the
accounting policy below); and

. assets (or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 “Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations” are
measured in accordance with that standard.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

3.

EREG R BOR (4)
E 3 ALl

W B S ) PR T WS 2k AR < A S
B & U i 2 AU R U E(E
B T A B A 2 A 4R T P e
B AR B2 I B O 7 A A
FE PR 2 B A A B S T W
7 22 P i RE B 847 22 JBERE I Wi
WA e AE A 2 B FH S o WO AR B
AR — B AR R TE AR 4 T e R o

TR WS Bl FL A BT A T A
Pl R B AR HL O Fu B (B R IfE
THIHH BRI

o REBIHEE KB DR
B A A 2 P A B A R R
g F AR A o e IS 1258
([PriFHd)) B 7 s & wt e Al
B19%% ([ A #7 A1) TR K

&S

o BT 2 B A AR PR AR
A B BT 5L 3 A5 2 HR O R
W 7 2 AR A K % PR AR
o 15 B A L i
SRR 7 o U 5 o Y B 52
e (T S0)) wHE (T
SCEERFEUR) 5 &

o MR R AR R E R A S R
([FF1E i B 2 FF It B) & K
AL A B FE T ) B
EHEZEE (B EHAE)
MR % JH AR LI 5 i o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-controlling
interests in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer’s
previously held equity interest in the acquiree (if any) over
the net amounts of the identifiable assets acquired and
the liabilities assumed as at acquisition date. If, after re-
assessment, the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling interests in
the acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously
held interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-controlling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation
are initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice
of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-transaction
basis. Other types of non-controlling interests are measured
at their fair value.

When the consideration transferred by the Group in a
business combination includes assets or liabilities resulting
from a contingent consideration arrangement, the contingent
consideration is measured at its acquisition-date fair value
and included as part of the consideration transferred in
a business combination. Changes in the fair value of the
contingent consideration that qualify as measurement period
adjustments are adjusted retrospectively. Measurement
period adjustments are adjustments that arise from additional
information obtained during the “measurement period”
(which cannot exceed one year from the acquisition date)
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Business combinations (Continued)

The subsequent accounting for the contingent consideration
that do not qualify as measurement period adjustments
depends on how the contingent consideration is classified.
Contingent consideration that is classified as equity is not
remeasured at subsequent reporting dates and its subsequent
settlement is accounted for within equity. Contingent
consideration that is classified as an asset or a liability is
remeasured to fair value at subsequent reporting dates, with
the corresponding gain or loss being recognised in profit or
loss.

When a business combination is achieved in stages, the
Group’s previously held equity interest in the acquiree is
remeasured to fair value at the acquisition date (i.e. the date
when the Group obtains control), and the resulting gain or
loss, if any, is recognised in profit or loss. Amounts arising
from interests in the acquiree prior to the acquisition date
that have previously been recognised in other comprehensive
income and measured under HKFRS 9/HKAS 39 would be
accounted for on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had disposed directly of the previously held equity
interest.

If the initial accounting for a business combination is
incomplete by the end of the reporting period in which the
combination occurs, the Group reports provisional amounts
for the items for which the accounting is incomplete. Those
provisional amounts are adjusted retrospectively during the
measurement period (see above), and additional assets or
liabilities are recognised, to reflect new information obtained
about facts and circumstances that existed at the acquisition
date that, if known, would have affected the amounts
recognised at that date.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as established at the date of acquisition of the
business (see the accounting policy above) less accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units (“CGUs”) (or
groups of cash-generating units) that is expected to benefit
from the synergies of the combination, which represent the
lowest level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGU) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGU) to which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
is less than its carrying amount, the impairment loss is
allocated first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on the
carrying amount of each asset in the unit (or group of CGU).

On disposal of the relevant cash-generating unit, or any of
the CGU within the group of CGU, the attributable amount
of goodwill is included in the determination of the amount
of profit or loss on disposal. When the Group disposes of an
operation within the cash-generating unit (or a CGU within
a group of CGU), the amount of goodwill disposed of is
measured on the basis of the relative values of the operation
(or the CGU) disposed of and the portion of the CGU (or the
group of CGU) retained.

The Group’s policy for goodwill arising on the acquisition of
an associate and a joint venture is described below.
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3.

15

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Subsidiaries

Subsidiaries are entities over which the Group has the power
to control the financial and operating policies so as to obtain
benefits from their activities. The existence and effect of
potential voting rights that are currently exercisable or
convertible are considered when assessing whether the Group
controls another entity. Subsidiaries are fully consolidated
from the date on which control is transferred to the Group.
They are excluded from consolidation from the date that
control ceases.

Investments in subsidiaries presented in the statement of
financial position included in note 44 are stated at cost
less any impairment losses. The results of subsidiaries are
accounted for by the Company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Investments in joint ventures

A joint venture is a joint arrangement whereby the parties
that have joint control of the arrangement have rights to
the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint control is the
contractually agreed sharing of control of an arrangement,
which exists only when decisions about the relevant activities
require unanimous consent of the parties sharing control.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

The results and assets and liabilities of joint ventures are
incorporated in these consolidated financial statements
using the equity method of accounting, except when the
investment, or a portion thereof, is classified as held for sale,
in which case it is or the portion so classified is accounted
for in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current Assets
Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations. Any retained
portion of an investment in a joint venture that has not been
classified as held for sale shall be accounted for using the
equity method. The financial statements of joint ventures
used for equity accounting purposes are prepared using
uniform accounting policies as those of the Group for like
transactions and events in similar circumstances.

Under the equity method, an investment in a joint venture
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter to
recognise the Group’s share of the profit or loss and other
comprehensive income of the joint venture. Changes in net
assets of the joint venture other than profit or loss and other
comprehensive income are not accounted for unless such
changes resulted in changes in ownership interest held by
the Group. When the Group’s share of losses of joint venture
exceeds the Group’s interest in that joint venture (which
includes any long-term interests that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the joint venture), the
Group discontinues recognising its share of further losses.
Additional losses are recognised only to the extent that the
Group has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made
payments on behalf of the joint venture.
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3.

16

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

An investment in a joint venture is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the investee
becomes an associate or a joint venture. On acquisition of the
investment in a joint venture, any excess of the cost of the
investment over the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
identifiable assets and liabilities of the investee is recognised
as goodwill, which is included within the carrying amount
of the investment. Any excess of the Group’s share of the
net fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities over
the cost of the investment, after reassessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group ceases to have significant influence over
joint control over a joint venture, it is accounted for as a
disposal of the entire interest in the investee with a resulting
gain or loss being recognised in profit or loss. When the
Group retains an interest in the former joint venture and
the retained interest is a financial asset within the scope
of HKFRS 9/HKAS 39, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value is regarded
as its fair value on initial recognition. The difference
between the carrying amount of the joint venture and the
fair value of any retained interest and any proceeds from
disposing the relevant interest in the joint venture is included
in the determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
joint venture. In addition, the Group accounts for all amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive income in
relation to that joint venture on the same basis as would
be required if that joint venture had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. Therefore, if a gain or loss
previously recognised in other comprehensive income by
that joint venture would be reclassified to profit or loss on
the disposal of the related assets or liabilities, the Group
reclassifies the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) upon disposal/partial disposal of
the relevant joint venture.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Investments in joint ventures (Continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in a joint
venture but the Group continues to use the equity method,
the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the proportion of
the gain or loss that had previously been recognised in
other comprehensive income relating to that reduction in
ownership interest if that gain or loss would be reclassified
to profit or loss on the disposal of the related assets or

liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with a joint venture of the
Group, profits and losses resulting from the transactions with
the joint venture are recognised in the Group’s consolidated
financial statements only to the extent of interests in the joint

venture that are not related to the Group.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers (upon application of

HKFRS 15 in accordance with transitions in note 2)

Under HKFRS 15, the Group recognises revenue when
(or as) a performance obligation is satisfied, i.e. when
“control” of the goods or services underlying the particular

performance obligation is transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of

distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Revenue recognition (Continued)

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

. the customer simultaneously receives and consumes the
benefits provided by the Group’s performance as the
Group performs;

d the Group’s performance creates and enhances an asset
that the customer controls as the Group performs; or

. the Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a customer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
contrast, a receivable represents the Group’s unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group’s obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is
due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
contract are accounted for an presented on a net basis.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Over time revenue recognition: measurement of progress
towards complete satisfaction of a performance obligation

Output method

The progress towards complete satisfaction of a performance
obligation is measured based on output method, which is to
recognise revenue on the basis of direct measurements of the
value of the goods or services transferred to the customer
to date relative to the remaining goods or services promised
under the contract, that best depict the Group’s performance
in transferring control of goods or services.

Revenue recognition (prior to 1 January 2018)

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the amount of revenue can be
reliably measured; when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
have been met for each of the Group’s activities, as described
below.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Goods, services, interests and dividends

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration
received or receivable. Revenue is reduced for estimated
customer returns, rebates and other similar allowances.

Revenue is recognised when the account of revenue can be
reliably measured, when it is probable that future economic
benefits will flow to the Group and when specific criteria
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below.

Revenue from the sale of goods is recognised when the S B T TR WA AE B 2 AT BT
goods are delivered and titles have passed. F T W RS IR e R o

Revenue from provision of services is recognised when
services are rendered.

Commission from securities dealing are recognised on the
transaction date when the relevant contracts are executed.

Placing and underwriting commission are recognised in
accordance with the terms of the underlying agreements or
deal mandates when the relevant significant acts have been
completed (i.e. when shares are allotted).

Clearing and handling fee income are recognised when the
services have been rendered.

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the
rights to receive payments have been established.

Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Leasing

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the leases transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance leases are recognised as assets of
the Group at their fair value at the inception of the lease or,
if lower, at the present value of the minimum lease payments.
The corresponding liability to the lessor is included in the
consolidated statement of financial position as a finance
lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs (see the accounting policy below). Contingent rentals
are recognised as expenses in the periods in which they are
incurred.

Operating lease payments, including the cost of acquiring
land held under operating leases, are recognised as an
expense on a straight-line basis over the lease term, except
where another systematic basis is more representative
of the time pattern in which economic benefits from the
leased asset are consumed. Contingent rentals arising under
operating leases are recognised as an expense in the period in
which they are incurred.

In the event that lease incentives are received to enter into
operating leases, such incentives are recognised as a liability.
The aggregate benefit of incentives is recognised as a
reduction of rental expense on a straight-line basis, except
where another systematic basis is more representative of
the time pattern in which economic benefits from the leased
asset are consumed.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEEFHEBIE ()
Leasing (Continued) ME ()
Leasehold land and building & 1+ 1 Rt 5=

When the Group makes payments for a property interest
which includes both leasehold land and building elements,
the Group assesses the classification of each element
separately based on the assessment as to whether
substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to
ownership of each element have been transferred to the
Group, unless it is clear that both elements are operating
leases in which case the entire property is accounted as
an operating lease. Specifically, the entire consideration
(including any lump-sum upfront payments) are allocated
between the leasehold land and the building elements
in proportion to the relative fair values of the leasehold
interests in the land element and building element at initial
recognition.

To the extent the allocation of the relevant payments can be
made reliably, interest in leasehold land that is accounted
for as an operating lease is presented as “prepaid lease
payments” in the consolidated statement of financial position
and is amortised over the lease term on a straight-line basis.
When the payments cannot be allocated reliably between the
leasehold land and building elements, the entire property is
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generally classified as if the leasehold land is under finance GEHE N8
lease.
Foreign currencies hh ¥

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recognised at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the dates
of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary items denominated in foreign currencies are
retranslated at the rates prevailing at that date. Non-monetary
items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on the date
when the fair value was determined. Non-monetary items
that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign
currency are not retranslated.
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Continued)

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise, except for exchange differences on monetary items
receivable from or payable to a foreign operation for which
settlement is neither planned nor likely to occur (therefore
forming part of the net investment in the foreign operation),
which are recognised initially in other comprehensive
income and reclassified from equity to profit or loss on
disposal or partial disposal of the Group’s interests in

associates/joint ventures.

For the purposes of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s
operations are translated into the presentation currency of
the Group (i.e. Hong Kong dollars) using exchange rates
prevailing at the end of each reporting period. Income
and expenses items are translated at the average exchange
rates for the period, unless exchange rates fluctuate
significantly during that period, in which case, the exchange
rates prevailing at the dates of transactions are used.
Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated in equity under the
heading of translation reserve (attributed to non-controlling

interests as appropriate).

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the retained interest becomes a
financial asset), all of the exchange differences accumulated
in equity in respect of that operation attributable to the

owners of the Company are reclassified to profit or loss.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Foreign currencies (Continued)

In addition, in relation to a partial disposal of a subsidiary
that does not result in the Group losing control over
the subsidiary, the proportionate share of accumulated
exchange differences are re-attributed to non-controlling
interests and are not recognised in profit or loss. For all
other partial disposals (i.e. partial disposals of associates
or joint arrangements that do not result in the Group losing
significant influence or joint control), the proportionate share
of the accumulated exchange differences is reclassified to
profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation
are treated as assets and liabilities of that foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the end
of each reporting period. Exchange differences arising are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to
get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost
of those assets until such time as the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Employee benefits

Retirement benefit costs

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
service entitling them to the contributions.

Obligations for contributions to retirement plans, including
contributions payable under the Hong Kong Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance and the PRC central
pension scheme, are recognised as an expense in profit or
loss as incurred.

Short-term employee benefits

Short-term employee benefits are recognised at the
undiscounted amount of the benefits expected to be paid
as and when employees rendered the services. All short-
term employee benefits are recognised as an expense unless
another HKFRS requires or permits the inclusion of the
benefit in the cost of an asset.

A liability is recognised for benefits accruing to employees
after deducting any amount already paid.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEGEIECR (4H)

Share-based payment arrangements
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted to employees

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others
providing similar services are measured at the fair value of
the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-settled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking into
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straight-line basis over the vesting period, based on the
Group’s estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share options
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share options reserve.
For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share options reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When share options are forfeited after the
vesting date or are still not exercised at the expiry date, the
amount previously recognised in share options reserve will
be transferred to retained profits/accumulated losses.

Share options granted to consultants

Equity-settled share-based payment transactions with
parties other than employees are measured at the fair value
of the goods or services received, except where that fair
value cannot be estimated reliably, in which case they are
measured at the fair value of the equity instruments granted,
measured at the date the entity obtains the goods or the
counterparty renders the service. The fair value of the goods
or services received are recognised as expenses (unless the
goods and services qualify for recognition as assets).
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before tax
because of items of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Group’s liability for current tax is calculated
using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable temporary
differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised
for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that
it is probable that taxable profits will be available against
which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.
Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not recognised if
the temporary difference arises from the initial recognition
(other than in a business combination) of other assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the initial recognition of goodwill.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and
associates, and interests in a joint ventures, except where
the Group is able to control the reversal of the temporary
difference and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred tax assets
arising from deductible temporary differences associated
with such investments and interests are only recognised to
the extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient
taxable profits against which to utilise the benefits of the
temporary differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the
end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rate
that are expected to apply in the period in which the liability
is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilities.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Taxation (Continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied by the same taxation authority and the Group intends
to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate to items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.
Where current tax or deferred tax arises from the initial
accounting for a business combination, the tax effect is
included in the accounting for the business combination.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, including buildings and
leasehold land (classified as finance leases) held for use
in the production or supply of goods or services, or for
administrative purposes (other than construction in progress),
are stated in the consolidated statement of financial position
at cost less subsequent accumulated depreciation and
subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Cost includes professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready for
intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same basis
as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets (other than construction in progress) less their residual
values over their estimated useful lives, using the straight-
line method as follows:

Buildings Over the shorter of
term of lease or 5%

Leasehold improvements Over the shorter
of term of lease or

20%

Plant and machinery 10%
Furniture, fixtures and office equipment 20 - 33.33%
Motor vehicles 10 - 25%
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Property, plant and equipment (Continued)

The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on a
prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over
their expected useful lives on the same basis as owned
assets. However, when there is no reasonable certainty that
ownership will be obtained by the end of the lease term,
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the lease term and
their useful lives.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately

Intangible assets with finite useful lives that are acquired
separately are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Amortisation for
intangible assets with finite useful lives is recognised on
a straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives. The
estimated useful life and amortisation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate being accounted for on a prospective
basis. Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives that are
acquired separately are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Intangible assets (Continued)

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination are
recognised separately from goodwill and are initially
recognised at their fair value at the acquisition date (which is
regarded as their cost).

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assets acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are reported
at cost less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as intangible assets
that are acquired separately. Intangible assets acquired in a
business combination with indefinite useful lives are carried
at cost less any subsequent accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when no
future economic benefits are expected from use or disposal.
Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an intangible
asset, measured as the difference between the net disposal
proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset, are recognised
in profit or loss when the asset is derecognised.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above)

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its tangible and intangible assets
with finite useful lives to determine whether there is any
indication that those assets have suffered an impairment loss.
If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the
relevant asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any).

The recoverable amount of tangible and intangible assets are
estimated individually, when it is not possible to estimate
the recoverable amount individual, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which
the asset belongs. When a reasonable and consistent basis
of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating unit, or otherwise
they are allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating
unit for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis
can be identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Impairment of tangible and intangible assets other than
goodwill (see the accounting policy in respect of goodwill
above) (Continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit)
is reduced to its recoverable amount. In allocating the
impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated first to
reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if applicable)
and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis based on
the carrying amount of each asset in the unit. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit. An
impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
increased to the revised estimate of its recoverable amount,
but so that the increased carrying amount does not exceed
the carrying amount that would have been determined had
no impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Cost of inventories are determined on a weighted
average method for agricultural business and on first-
in first-out method for food and beverage segment and
alcoholic beverage distribution segment. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for inventories less all
estimated costs of completion and costs necessary to make
the sale.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and
demand deposits, and short-term highly liquid investments
that are readily convertible into known amounts of cash,
are subjected to an insignificant risk of changes in value,
and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable
on demand and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial
position, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand,
at banks and securities brokers, including term deposits, and
assets similar in nature to cash, which are not restricted as to
use.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past event,
it is probable that the Group will be required to settle that
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount
of the obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate
of the consideration required to settle the present obligation
at the end of the reporting period, taking into account the
risks and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When
a provision is measured using the cash flows estimated
to settle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows (where the effect of the
time value of money is material).

When some or all of the economic benefits required to settle
a provision are expected to be recovered from a third party,
a receivable is recognised as an asset if it is virtually certain
that reimbursement will be received and the amount of the
receivable can be measured reliably.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when
a group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions
of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially
measured at fair value except for trade receivables
arising from contracts with customers which are initially
measured in accordance with HKFRS 15 since 1 January
2018. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities
at fair value through profit or loss) are added to or deducted
from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction
costs directly attributable to the acquisition of financial
assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocating interest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rate is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts (including
all fees and points paid or received that form an integral
part of the effective interest rate, transaction costs and other
premiums or discounts) through the expected life of the
financial assets or financial liability, or, where appropriate,
a shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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3.

18

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest/dividend income is recognised on an effective
interest basis for debt instruments.

Financial assets

Classitication and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (upon application of HKFRS 9 in accordance with
transitions in note 2)

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

3.

FRGEBOR (4)
S TR (4)

AEE TR S > FE BB A
5 T R 0 e ME e 3 o

& B E

B E AR T (ERIE
it 2768 JE JE I 2 vt Y 5 e T A
FIYE)

W B 2l L B
5 A

o RUWRAKBHEREABED
ZEBEANTFE 22 ME
K

« BAGRESIRARE A ELZ
B4 U A I SO AR & i R
EREAEHE -

2T SR 2 i AR IR A
FRAE (BT A A 2 i i R

o NV DUICHCE 0 B R
B < R 2 A Y S A
ANFAZEMERE &

« BHRESIARE A EEZ
B4 i B 20 SR A B T i R
R A I E -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in OCI if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3.

18

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a financial

asset that are required to be measured at the amortised cost
or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so eliminates or
significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.

(1)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost and debt instruments/
receivables subsequently measured at FVTOCI. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of a financial asset,
except for financial assets that have subsequently
become credit-impaired (see below). For financial
assets that have subsequently become credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the amortised cost of the financial asset
from the next reporting period. If the credit risk on the
credit-impaired financial instrument improves so that
the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

3.

FRGEBOR (4)
ST R ()
BB E (4)

BLA > A £ [ A AN AT fi Jo] 4 E —
TEUZR 9 {819 AR 4% 8 SR B (E R A
A 2 TS R el DA%
AREEF ARG R A A
CECR LIRS SN TR SR
Bie o

OBE: 11 % &I PN

LA P 5 A R B 2
B DA AR A B EREA
At 2 Th W d B 2 RS TR
/MEWGHRIR TN = > FLE A%
BRSSPI A TS
Fe 3 < il AR TR (LR
PR B AR B B
WEZ S @EE (T30 BR
Gh o UHAR HBUE B E 2 &
il AT o FLE A T % 8
o U < T
JIAS T B R 3 e o i £
B E L 2 A5 B R B
W R B A E AN BUE
B E > FLEIA B E &
ANt R R TRl A 1) o A
I > % 36 <l A AR T (.
JRE BT ) A e T



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

(i1)

(iif)

Equity instruments designated as at FVTOCI

Investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are
subsequently measured at fair value with gains and
losses arising from changes in fair value recognised in
OCI and accumulated in the FVTOCI reserve; and are
not subject to impairment assessment. The cumulative
gain or loss will not be reclassified to profit or loss on
disposal of the equity investments, and will continue to
be held in the FVTOCI reserve.

Dividends from these investments in equity instruments
are recognised in profit or loss when the Group’s
right to receive the dividends is established, unless the
dividends clearly represent a recovery of part of the
cost of the investment. Dividends are included in the
“Other income, other gains and losses” line item in
profit or loss.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and is
included in the “other gains and losses” line item.
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3.

18

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2)

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on financial
assets which are subjected to impairment under HKFRS
9 (including trade receivables and loan and interests
receivables). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
date to reflect changes in credit risk since initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”)
represents the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to
result from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting date. Assessment are done based on the
Group’s historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors
that are specific to the debtors, general economic conditions
and an assessment of both the current conditions at the
reporting date as well as the forecast of future conditions.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEGEIECR (4H)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables. The ECL on these assets are assessed
individually for debtors with significant balances and/
or collectively using a provision matrix with appropriate
groupings should tailor to reporting entity’s specific facts
and circumstances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12-month ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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3.

18

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a
default occurring on the financial instrument as at the
date of initial recognition. In making this assessment,
the Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

In particular, the following information is taken
into account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the financial instrument’s external (if available) or
internal credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant increase
in the credit spread, the credit default swap prices
for the debtor;
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are expected
to cause a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations;

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in
the operating results of the debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change
in the regulatory, economic, or technological
environment of the debtor that results in a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet
its debt obligations.

Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 365 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information that
demonstrates otherwise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(1)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Despite the foregoing, the Group assumes that the
credit risk on a debt instrument has not increased
significantly since initial recognition if the debt
instrument is determined to have low credit risk at the
reporting date. A debt instrument is determined to have
low credit risk if i) it has a low risk of default, ii) the
borrower has a strong capacity to meet its contractual
cash flow obligations in the near term and iii) adverse
changes in economic and business conditions in the
longer term may, but will not necessarily, reduce the
ability of the borrower to fulfil its contractual cash flow
obligations. The Group considers a debt instrument to
have low credit risk when it has an internal or external
credit rating of ‘investment grade’ as per globally
understood definitions.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(i1) Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more

events of default that have a detrimental impact on

the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset

have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-

impaired includes observable data about the following

events:
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(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

(b)

©

(d)

(e)

borrower;

a breach of contract, such as a default or past due
event;

the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the borrower
a concession(s) that the lender(s) would not
otherwise consider;

it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation;or

the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(iii) Write-off policy

(iv)

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect
of recovery, for example, when the counterparty
has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years past
due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets written
off may still be subject to enforcement activities under
the Group’s recovery procedures, taking into account
legal advice where appropriate. A write-off constitutes
a derecognition event. Any subsequent recoveries are
recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the respective
risks of default occurring as the weights.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

3.

EREG R BOR (4)

ST R ()

BB E (A)

T T (AR A Y A 2708
BT B 8 55 i o R 9 UE )

(#)

(iii)

(iv)

T B 3

A ERBR LB FIA
i B IR LR AR
Weml # B (s o BT e
ETE R R EAWERT)
B ({5 7% B2 5 ME WA T R 3
R R AR (LA R B A
T ) > AN SR T A
FE o MRIEAS B2 1] i [u] 2SI
Mk E e (@A) - 2
S <5 P L T BT A2 B BRI
5l 1) 260 SR o i A IR e
TIH o AT Ay ELAR Wi lml 7E R 25
RS o

L GIER Y U 9S8

HME R ERNE R AEN
MR AL R (AZEKR
RAEIE) S AEE & Jal g 1) 1K) B
RV AR SR KRR TS IR
R K T I P R 0 e ) R
R AT AL - TS R IR A T
il F e 08 i ME 25 AE - 2
> LABE A 4 10 3 By 2 HE
fifE E



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

(iv) Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in

accordance with the contract and the cash flows that the

Group expects to receive, discounted at the effective

interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or cater

for cases where evidence at the individual instrument

level may not yet be available, the financial instruments

are grouped on the below basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s

trade and other receivables,

finance lease

receivables and amounts due from customers are

each assessed as a separate group. Loans to related

parties are assessed for expected credit losses on

an individual basis);

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

. External credit ratings where available.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9
with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure
the constituents of each group continue to share similar
credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset unless the financial asset is
credit impaired, in which case interest income is calculated
based on amortised cost of the financial asset.

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (before application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial asset is (i) held for trading, (ii) it is designated
as at FVTPL, or (iii) contingent consideration that may be
received by an acquirer as part of a business combination.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3.

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

Impairment of financial assets (upon application HKFRS 9

with transitions in accordance with note 2) (Continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL (Continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of

selling in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of

identified financial instruments that the Group manages

together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term

profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a

hedging instrument.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

A financial asset other than a financial asset held for trading
(or contingent consideration that may be received by acquirer
as part of a business combination) may be designated as at
FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial asset forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any
gains or losses arising on remeasurement recognised in profit
or loss. The net gain or loss recognised in profit or loss
excluded any dividend or interest earned on the financial
asset and is included in the revenue.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEGEIECR (4H)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Available-for-sale financial assets

Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivatives
that are either designated as available-for-sale or are not
classified as (a) loans and receivables, (b) held-to-maturity
investments, or (c¢) financial assets at FVTPL.

Equity and debt securities held by the Group that are
classified as Available-for-sale financial assets and are
measured at fair value at the end of each reporting period
except for unquoted equity investments whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured. Changes in the carrying amount
of Available-for-sale debt instruments relating to interest
income calculated using the effective interest method,
and changes in foreign exchange rates, if applicable are
recognised in the profit or loss. Dividends on Available-for-
sale equity instruments are recognised in profit or loss when
the Group’s right to receive the dividends is established.
Other changes in the carrying amount of Available-for-
sale financial assets are recognised in other comprehensive
income and accumulated under the heading of available-for-
sale investments revaluation reserve. When the investment is
disposed of or is determined to be impaired, the cumulative
gain or loss previously accumulated in the available-for-sale
investments revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit or
loss.

Available-for-sale equity investments that do not have a
quoted market price in an active market and whose fair value
cannot be reliably measured are measured at cost less any
identified impairment losses at the end of each reporting
period.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets
with fixed or determinable payments that are not quoted in
an active market. Subsequent to initial recognition, loans and
receivables (including other assets, trade receivables, loan
and interest receivables, deposits and other receivables, trust
bank accounts and cash and cash equivalents) are measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method, less any
impairment.

Interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate, except for short-term receivables where the
recognition of interest would be immaterial.

Impairment on financial assets

Financial assets, other than those at FVTPL, are assessed for
indicators of impairment at the end of each reporting period.
Financial assets are considered to be impaired when there is
objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset,
the estimated future cash flows of the financial assets have
been affected.

For Available-for-sale equity investments, a significant or
prolonged decline in the fair value of the security below its
cost is considered to be objective evidence of impairment.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd))
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEGEIECR (4H)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment on financial assets (Continued)

For all other financial assets, objective evidence of
impairment could include:

. significant financial difficulty of the issuer or
counterparty; or

. breach of contract, such as a default or delinquency in
interest or principal payments; or

. it becoming probable that the borrower will enter
bankruptcy or financial re-organisation; or

. disappearance of an active market for that financial
asset because of financial difficulties.

Objective evidence of impairment for a portfolio of
receivables could include the Group’s past experience of
collecting payments, an increase in the number of delayed
payments in the portfolio past the average credit period,
observable changes in national or local economic conditions
that correlate with default on receivables.

For financial assets carried at amortised cost, the amount of
the impairment loss recognised is the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of estimated
future cash flows discounted at the financial asset’s original
effective interest rate.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment on financial assets (Continued)

For financial assets carried at cost, the amount of the
impairment loss is measured as the difference between
the asset’s carrying amount and the present value of the
estimated future cash flows discounted at the current market
rate of return for a similar financial asset. Such impairment
loss will not be reversed in subsequent periods.

The carrying amount of the financial asset is reduced by
the impairment loss directly for all financial assets with the
exception of trade receivables, where the carrying amount is
reduced through the use of an allowance account. Changes
in carrying amount of the allowance account are recognised
in profit or loss. When a trade receivable is considered
uncollectible, it is written off against the allowance account.
Subsequent recoveries of amounts previously written off are
credited to profit or loss.

When an available-for-sale financial asset is considered to be
impaired, cumulative gains or losses previously recognised in
other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit or loss
in the period.

For financial assets measured at amortised cost, if, in a
subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss
decreases and the decrease can be related objectively to an
event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is reversed through
profit or loss to the extent that the carrying amount of the
investment at the date the impairment is reversed does not
exceed what the amortised cost would have been had the
impairment not been recognised.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd))
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEGEIECR (4H)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment on financial assets (Continued)

In respect of available-for-sale equity investments,
impairment losses previously recognised in profit or loss
are not reversed through profit or loss. Any increase in fair
value subsequent to an impairment loss is recognised in other
comprehensive income and accumulated under the heading of
available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve. In respect
of available-for-sale debt investments, impairment losses are
subsequently reversed through profit or loss if an increase in
the fair value of the investment can be objectively related to
an event occurring after the recognition of the impairment
loss.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Debt and equity instruments issued by a group entity
are classified as either financial liabilities or as equity
in accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a
residual interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all
of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL

Financial liabilities are classified as at FVTPL when the
financial liability is (i) held for trading or (ii) it is designated
as at FVTPL or (iii) contingent consideration that may be
paid by an acquirer as part of a business combination to
which HKFRS 3 applies.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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3.  SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)
A financial liability is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
repurchasing it in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group manages
together and has a recent actual pattern of short-term
profit-making; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective as a
hedging instrument.

A financial liability other than a financial liability held
for trading (or contingent consideration that may be paid
by an acquirer as part of a business combination) may be
designated as at FVTPL upon initial recognition if:

. such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a
measurement or recognition inconsistency that would
otherwise arise; or

. the financial liability forms part of a group of financial
assets or financial liabilities or both, which is managed
and its performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with the Group’s documented risk
management or investment strategy, and information
about the grouping is provided internally on that basis;
or

. it forms part of a contract containing one or more
embedded derivatives, and HKAS 39 permits the entire
combined contract (asset or liability) to be designated
as at FVTPL.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEGEIECR (4H)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity instruments (Continued)

Financial liabilities at FVTPL (Continued)

Upon application of HKFRS 9, for financial liabilities
that are designated as at FVTPL, the amount of change in
the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable
to changes in the credit risk of that liability is recognised
in other comprehensive income, unless the recognition of
the effects of changes in the liability’s credit risk in other
comprehensive income would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss. For financial liabilities that
contain embedded derivatives, the changes in fair value of
the embedded derivatives are excluded in determining the
amount to be presented in other comprehensive income.
Changes in fair value attributable to a financial liability’s
credit risk that are recognised in other comprehensive
income are not subsequently reclassified to profit or loss;
instead, they are transferred to accumulated losses upon
derecognition of the financial liability.

Prior to application of HKFRS 9 on 1 January 2018,
financial liabilities designated at FVTPL are stated at fair
value, with any gains or losses arising on changes in fair
value recognised in profit or loss. The net gain or loss
recognised in profit or loss includes any interest paid on the
financial liability and is included in the “other gains and
losses™ line item.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and are
subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the end of the
reporting period. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in
profit or loss immediately unless the derivatives is designated
and effective as a hedging instrument, in which event the
timing of the recognition in profit or loss depends on the
nature of the hedge relationship.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including other payables and accruals,
amounts due to a non-controlling interest and bank and other
borrowings) are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest method.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it transfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another entity.
If the Group neither transfers nor retains substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained interest
in the asset and an associated liability for amounts it may
have to pay. If the Group retains substantially all the risks
and rewards of ownership of a transferred financial asset,
the Group continues to recognise the financial asset and
also recognises a collateralised borrowing for the proceeds
received.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
Financial instruments (Continued)
Derecognition of financial assets (Continued)

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised
cost, the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the sum of the consideration received and receivable is
recognised in profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument
classified as at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
FVTOCI reserve is reclassified to profit or loss.

On derecognition of an investment in equity instrument
which the Group has elected on initial recognition to
measure at FVTOCI upon application of HKFRS 9, the
cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to profit or
loss, but is transferred to accumulated losses.

On derecognition of an available-for-sale financial asset,
the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the
available-for-sale revaluation reserve is reclassified to profit
or loss.

3.

FEERGEBOR (4)
S TR ()
A 1 7E 2 B (A

P A 1 T 3 1 A R Y <
B R > % A R T B 2 Wi
e AR {3 HEVRE 1Y) 22 U 4R 4 TR e

R 1) 7 i U o E JI) R 9 9RAK
T & 1L RERS N FH S 4% U AEREA
HoAth T i 45 09 5 T R B E B
SERTIR 5 A AR FEA H A 2T
4 (9 fif 45 T 2 w9 2 Sl 2Ok 1R
A% BB 2> BB AR AR o

& F1) 7 i B s A E T R 99 A%
TP A 1 T A R T TR 400 A0 ke R B 23
PRI OB (B T A A 2 T i 4 R
B BA THBCER > Seri it 8 &
ERCE R €
AHEF O BERR  HEARG
e ie -

TP f 1L e R T 3t L 6 e O I
ST T A3 b 4 Al i A 2 R 2
at WAt 2k 1R BT 0 S B AR 4R o

BRSMBREERAD
e Nram 20D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REAMERARME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

3.

20

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Related parties

A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(a)

or

(b)

the party is a person or a close member of that person’s
family and that person,

(i) has controls or joint control over the Group;

(i1) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iii) is a member of the key management personnel of
the Group or of a parent of the Group;

the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members of the same
group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the
other entity (or of a parent, subsidiary or fellow
subsidiary of the other entity);

(iii) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the
same third party;

(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other entity is an associate of the third entity;

(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for
the benefit of employees of either the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued) 3. FEGEIECR (4H)

Related parties (Continued)

(b) the party is an entity where any of the following
conditions applies: (Continued)

(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a
person identified in (a);

(vii) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member of the key
management personnel of the entity (or of a parent
of the entity); and

(viii)the entity, or any member of a group of which
it is a part, provides key management personnel
services to the Group or to the parent of the
Group.

Close members of the family of a person are those family
members who may be expected to influence, or be influence
by, that person in their dealings with the entity.

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies, which
are described in note 3, the directors of the Company are
required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an on-going basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if
the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the
revision and future periods if the revision affects both current
and future periods.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Critical accounting judgement in applying accounting
policies

The following is the critical judgement, apart from those
involving estimation (see below), that directors of the
Company have made in the process of applying the Group’s
accounting policies and that have the most significant effect
on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements.

Recognition of deferred taxation

No deferred tax assets have been recognised in respect of the
estimated unused tax losses of the Group of approximately
HK$112,723,000 (2017: HK$103,242,000) due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams. The realisability of
the deferred tax asset mainly depends on whether sufficient
future profits or taxable temporary differences will be
available in the future. In cases where the actual future
profits generated are less than or more than expected, a
material reversal or recognition of deferred tax assets may
arise, which would be recognised in profit or loss for the
period in which such a reversal or recognition takes place.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future,
and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of
the reporting period that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)
Impairment of goodwill

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at least
on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of the value
in use of the Cash-generating units to which the goodwill is
allocated. Estimating the value in use requires the Group to
make an estimate of the expected future cash flows from the
Cash-generating units and also to choose a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value of those cash
flows.

Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Certain of the Group’s financial assets unquoted equity
instruments, amounting to HK$7,125,000 as at 31 December
2018 and (HK$25,747,000 as at 31 December 2017) are
measured at fair values with fair values being determined
based on unobserved inputs using valuation techniques.
Judgement and estimation are required in establishing the
relevant valuation techniques and the relevant inputs thereof.
Changes in assumptions relating to these factors could affect
the reported fair values of these instruments. See note 38.3
for further disclosures.
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CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND
KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

Provision of ECL for trade receivables and loan and
interests receivables

The Group uses provision matrix to calculate ECL for
the trade receivables. The provision rates are based on
internal credit ratings as groupings of various debtors
that have similar loss patterns. The provision matrix is
based on the Group’s historical default rates taking into
consideration forward-looking information that is reasonable
and supportable available without undue costs or effort.
At every reporting date, the historical observed default
rates are reassessed and changes in the forward-looking
information are considered. In addition, trade receivables
with significant balances and credit impaired are assessed for
ECL individually.

Impairment loss on loan and interest receivables represent
management’s best estimate of losses incurred in the
loan portfolio at the reporting date under ECL models.
Management assesses whether the credit risk of loan
receivables have increased significantly since their initial
recognition and apply a three-stage impairment model to
calculate their ECL. The Group is required to exercise
judgement in making assumptions and estimates when
calculating loan impairment loss, including any observable
data indicating that there is a measurable decrease in
the estimated future cash flows from loans portfolio and
historical loss experience on the basis of the relevant
observable data that reflects current economic conditions.

The provision of ECL is sensitive to changes in estimates.
The information about the ECL and the Group’s trade
receivables and loans and interest receivables are disclosed
in notes 26 and 27.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

REVENUE

An analysis of the Group’s revenue for the year from

continuing operations is as follows:

Revenue

Sales of feedstock products

Alcoholic beverage distribution business

Food and beverage business

Dividend income from listed equity
investments

Loan interest income

Provision of children education services

Provision of financial services
— Commission from securities dealing
— Placing and underwriting commission
— Interest income from securities clients

— Clearing and handling fee income
— Asset management commission
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SEGMENT INFORMATION

Information reported to the board of directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM”), for the purposes of resource allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on types of
goods or services delivered or provided.

Specifically, the Group’s reportable segments under HKFRS
8 are as follows:

—  Agricultural segment comprises the feedstock products
business in the PRC;

—  Money lending segment comprises provision of loan
financing in Hong Kong;

—  Financial services segment comprises advising and
dealing in securities and asset management;
—  Securities investment segment comprises investment in

listed securities;

— Food and beverage segment in Hong Kong and
Singapore;

—  Alcoholic beverage distribution business comprises
distribution of imported craft beer in Hong Kong and

the PRC; and

—  Kindergarten or pre-school education business.
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SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)

In late June 2017, there was a sharp decline in the share
price of certain stocks held by a subsidiary of the Company,
China Demeter Securities Limited (“CD Securities”) as
collateral securities for its margin clients (“June Incident”).
As a result of the June Incident, a number of CD Securities’
accounts receivable arising from margin financing business
became undercollateralised. Following the June Incident and
the deterioration of CD Securities’ margin loans during and
after the June Incident, CD Securities received a letter from
the Securities and Futures Commission (“SFC”), wherein
the SFC, among other things, had raised concern about
certain issues on CD Securities’ margin loan operations
and requirements under the Code of Conduct for Persons
Licensed by or Registered with the Securities and Futures
Commission (“Code of Conduct”). In such connection, the
SFC had instructed CD Securities to temporarily refrain
from providing further margin lending to its clients and
refine its margin financing policy. Hence, the interest
income from Securities clients and commission from
securities dealing decreased accordingly. CD securities had
undertaken to the SFC to address the concerns satisfactorily
within a reasonable period of time. In late October 2018,
CD Securities has reinforced control measures to ensure
compliance with its revised internal control policies and
procedures for its securities margin financing activities and
the Code of Conduct.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SEGMENT INFORMATION (Continued)
Geographical information

The Group’s continuing operations are located in the PRC,
Hong Kong and Singapore.

Information about the Group’s revenue from continuing
operations from external customers is presented based on the
location of operations. Information about the Group’s non-

6.

SrER (A7)
Hl I 5 OB

AR B 2 A S L R R
A 1 BT o

SN PEP SRS Fit e
B5 Z N ERE TS 4% 7 48 i 7E 3 4]
o AR SR 2 JE B E B R4k

current assets is presented based on the geographical location B T AE LB R o
of assets.
Revenue from
external customers Non-current assets (Note)
R’ AAERE P Z WA FE i B & A (B EE)
2018 2017 2018 2017
“F-NE _F b ZE-NE —F-LF
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
W T T T #WT T BT T
PRC H 36,473 32,110 4,249 5,563
Hong Kong i 36,455 21,283 30,232 3,182
Singapore CIIE 495 - 2,620 3,574
73,423 53,393 37,101 12,319

Note: Non-current assets excluded those relating to discontinued operations,

financial instruments and deferred tax assets.

Information about major customers

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017, no
customers from continuing operations contributed over 10%
of the total revenue of the Group.

WEF S - AL B R B B A R A
M5~ 4 b T B R R S B E A
#o

HREREFZER

REECFE - NFELR FE L
T A=t H IR M A
ReE S5 55 BRUL AR 42 B Al A
10% VA | -

BREMIBEERAD
e aeg 217



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

#n & B 5 $R R BT sE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

7.  OTHER INCOME, OTHER GAINS AND LOSSES 7. FeABCOA ~ 3t W tE R s 1R
2018 2017
—F-N\E ZE L4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T
Bank interest income SRAT AL A 76 19
Interest income from joint venture KEGEREZ
FLE WA 341 -
Dividend income from fund investments HEEREZRERA 118 27,487
Gain on disposal of property, HEYE - RE Kk 2 I s
plant and equipment 19 -
Impairment loss of loan and JRE A B K B A L 2
interest receivables (Note 27) BEE R (KE27) (6,804) (103)
Impairment loss of trade JFRE A R R 2 TR A 18
receivables (Note 26) (Fft5E26) (2,928) (1,342)
Loss on disposal of subsidiaries B E A A 2 EE (308) -
Reversal of impairment loss of JFRE A R R 2 T A s 8 43 [
trade receivables (Note 26) (Bt 5E26) 57 128
Sundry income A TE e A 829 187
Consultancy and referral fee income as ) S A B A 1,338 -
Net foreign exchange gain/(loss) TR E Y i DRER il 24 (15)
(7,238) 26,361
8. FINANCE COSTS 8. WA
Continuing operations FERBEY
2018 2017
“E N\ XL
HK$’000 HK$’000
T oo
Interest on bank and other borrowings SRAT S HoAth 8 £ 5 5 38 1,104

2 1 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd))
RO IRRMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) 9. FifABiMZ, (R)
Continuing operations FEREEY
2018 2017

B -N\E “Z—-LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
wWTo B TT

Current tax: HIRCE R
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Hh B AR 2 BT 45 B0 - 7
Hong Kong Profits Tax Ry ) 232 50
232 57
Over-provision in prior years: 8 A I R R A
Hong Kong Profits Tax G IREY ) - (20)
Deferred tax charge/(credit) (Note 32) RAEBIH T 7 (HiE )
( B 5E32) 88 (77)
Total income tax expense/(credit) A48 4 TR 2 I 15 B
recognised in profit or loss BH S (4% ) AEAH 320 (40)

BREMIBEERAD
R ragw 219



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REAMERARME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

9.

22

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued)
Continuing operations (Continued)

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No. 7) Bill 2017
(the “Bill”) which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates
regime. The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and
was gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime, the first HK$2 million of profits
of the qualifying group entity will be taxed at 8.25%, and
profits above HK$2 million will be taxed at 16.5%. The
profits of group entities not qualifying for the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime will continue to be taxed at a flat rate
of 16.5%.

Accordingly, starting from the current year, the Hong Kong
profits tax is calculated at 8.25% on the first HK$2 million
of the estimated assessable profits and at 16.5% on the
estimated assessable profits above HK$2 million.

Under the Law of the People’s Republic of China on
Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT Law”) and Implementation
Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the PRC
subsidiaries is 25% for both years.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions is calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

P Bt S (k%) (4)
FERERY (H)

BN oEFE - NFE=ZH -+ —H > FiE
Sk g — L ERE (&
W) (BT MRl 5% (T B il
F 1) > Ha) A 8% 6 A 5B 6
JE ol HE R —F— /NFE=H
ol WVANZ - 3 R R )
FI 7 i o AR T A R A5 B R
> BB A 1 i 2,000,000
JC Hi A 5 $58.25% 11 B R AR > 1
3k 152,000,0007T B9 i A IG5
16.5% 0 Bl S BOBL o« A 45 5 W 51l
FIAS 0 A 110 4 19 B 2 s ) 519
MEH16.5% 2 F) — Bl R EBOBLIAE -

R > B AR 4 B S > 7 36 R 45 B T
8 # 2,000,000 7T Z Al 5 HERRBL
it M 2 8.25% %] 5 » 37 e it s W
2,000,000 Z f 51 1 &R B i A 2
16.5%%H 5

HRPE e AR A B £ 26 i 15 8
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

INCOME TAX EXPENSE/(CREDIT) (Continued) 9.

Continuing operations (Continued)

The income tax credit for the year can be reconciled to the
loss before tax per the consolidated statement of profit or
loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

Loss before tax from
continuing operations

Tax at Hong Kong Profits Tax
rate of 16.5% (2017: 16.5%)

Tax effect of expenses not deductible
for tax purpose
Tax effect of income not taxable
for tax purpose
Tax effect of share of loss of
a joint venture
Tax effect of temporary
differences not recognised
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised

Utilisation of tax loss previously
not recognised
Over-provision in respect of prior years
Income tax of concessionary rate
Tax reduction
Effect on different tax rate of subsidiaries
operating in other jurisdictions

Income tax expense/(credit) for the year
(relating to continuing operations)

nﬂ'

SRR

Bﬁ J—I ( me

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

54

P B X (%)

B (A

AR JE 2 T A B S B A S 4R 4 K
oAt 2 TR A i R 2 R B AT R 2 3

HRANR -
2018 2017
—F—-)NE T L4
HK$’000 HK$ 000
BT ki I
FrERBEETZ
o 6 I s 18 (40,974) (98,869)
Y5 s RIS BB % 16.5%
w2 BiIA
(= F—L4:16.5%) (6,761) (16,313)
ANA Bz L2
B R 2 5,470 6,306
WHMBLZ A Z
Bl W5 5 B (1,701) (4,815)
e — MG EASEZFERZ
B 5 28 297 125
KR BN
BT R 2 175 -
KPR BB ERZ
Bl W5 5 B 3,391 14,749
BAUAERTHRZ
B s 15 - (4)
A A B R RE A - (20)
B ERL R g (151) -
Tl 5 W e - (30)
e LAt =) T I A 2
W J8 2 B R[] B R 2 s 2 (400) (38)
R BB S (4K )
(BLEFEREEBAR) 320 (40)
BRSMBEERA

:n—}\ﬂfiiﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REAMERARME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

10.

22

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS

Animal husbandry business

On 18 January 2017, EMHi " EE 5 AR A F (in
English, for identification only, “Xiamen Dongyu Trading
Company Limited”) (“Vendor”), an indirect non-wholly
owned subsidiary of the Company, and an independent
third party (“Purchaser”) entered into an equity transfer
agreement, pursuant to which the Purchaser conditionally
agreed to purchase, and the Vendor conditionally agreed to
sell, the entire interest in EFEEF A REFEH A PR /A ) (in
English, for identification only, “Wuping Jian Jun Ecology
Breeding Company Limited”) (“Wuping Jian Jun”), a
limited liability company established in the PRC, which is
principally engaged in breeding and sales of live swine in
the PRC, at a consideration of RMB1,100,000. The disposal
constitutes a major transaction for the Company under the
GEM Listing Rules and the resolution thereto was passed by
the shareholders of the Company at a special general meeting
held on 8 March 2017. The disposal was completed in March
2017.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018
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O A% Ik 588 SR
BHOCEH

WFE—tHFE—H+I/NH > AN
] 42 I 4 O 2 W) R P Tl RO
DHEWAF (TEH]) M— 280
55 =07 (T J5 1) 5T o7 B h e 1oy
o B B ARARERE A
B A RS s R @A
EHARAR (TRFEE] > —H
A R ST B A PR R I A R
TEAE AR G B ) 2 RE
> AUME B N R #1,100,0000C ©
£ 3 TE MR P2 GEML_E T AR I R Il AR
NEZ FEAL G PR R O AR
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

nﬂ' ZI Tk $ﬁ Bﬁ J—I ( ng

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued) 10. CRIEREER (&

Animal husbandry business (Continued)

The assets, liabilities and gain on disposal of Wuping Jian

mACEY (A

T H R RO B E

Jun as at the date of disposal are as follows: BfE LI R .
HK$’000
T
The net assets disposed of are as follows: CHEMHmERENT :
Property, plant and equipment L/ ENN N & ] 197
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables 43~ FEA AR SOH: Al B i sk IH 2
Cash and cash equivalents B R Bl EEH 3
Net assets disposed of EHEMNITFERE 202
Gain on disposal: i A
Consideration AL 1,239
Net assets disposed of EHENTFERE (202)
Release of foreign currency exchange reserve 1% 1] B S0, fatf Af 1,830
Gain on disposal H I A 2.867
Net cash inflow arising on disposal: HE B E A 0 B e A I
Cash consideration B4 RE 1,239
Less: cash and cash equivalents disposed of W BB e KBl ESEEE 3)
Net cash inflow W4 m AT 1,236

BREMREGRL

:n—}\ﬂfiiﬁ
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

. \

B R RME (18)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

22

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

Food and beverage business

In November 2017, the Group decided to cease the
operation of food and beverage business as the financial
performance of the business over the past financial year was
unsatisfactory. The cessation of operation was effected in
order to avoid in making further investment in the business.

The profit (loss) for the year ended 31 December 2017 from
the discontinued operations (i.e. animal husbandry and
food and beverage businesses) included in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income are set out below. The comparative figures in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income have been restated to re-present the
results of the animal husbandry business and food beverage
business as discontinued operations.

Revenue LN

Cost of sales and services B TR A
Other income HAb A

General and administrative expenses — R RATBUR
Gain on disposal of the B BB 2 i

animal husbandry business

AEEORILEEER

Profit (loss) for the year from

discontinued operations Tl (F518)
Attributable to: NN I

Owners of the Company UN/NGE: ZEDN

Non-controlling interests TRV R

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

1 0 E' pIRY

li‘ M%%(
£ B BROBE3E B
)5/\47 —tE A REERE

# JJ:,H‘:’@' AR &ﬁ)\ﬂ%%’? J?.t?u
SETS A M AT W BUAE i 2 BB SR BLR
UNFRAR o AN S B B 4K IR S8 R TS
DUt by AR E— o & -

n+)\uT A48 g S HoAh 2 T i A 3R 2
1E #8260 (R & RS DL &
ﬁnn&ﬁ)\ﬂ%ﬂ% ) Z2HEE - F—+
A H =1+ —H Ik WA
(R 18) HOA F 3C o 47 A 18 2 S oAt
ENETE P 3 ' E AR iR
DVE BT 20 O 8RR B ER
DL i B RORL RS 2 264K -

2017
ZE—hAE
Animal Food and
husbandry beverage
business business Total
B R
& MRS OB ST st
HKS$000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
i i T T
- 3,584 3,584
- (5,105) (5,105)
- 22 22
(62) (256) (318)
(62) (1,755) (1,817)
2,807 - 2,867
2,805 (1,755) 1,050
1,431 (897) 534
1,374 (858) 516
2,805 (1,755) 1,050




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

nﬂ' ZI Tk $ﬁ

Bﬁ J—I ( me

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

10. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS (Continued)

Food and beverage business (Continued)

Profit for the year from

discontinued operations include the following:

Depreciation

Cash flows from discontinued operations
Net cash outflow from operating activities

Net cash outflow

AEFCRIEESERZ
i AL G R A& IR
iR

CREREEE IR E
BEEE) 2 B4 W g H

B4 0

10, DRI EEY (&
T SRR E s (A )
2017
SR
Animal Food and
husbandry beverage
business business Total
BBk
B AHCER OB st
HK$°000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
BT BT BT
62 - 62
- (151) (151)
- (151) (151)
BEREMBEEETRA

:n—HEEE
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

#n & B 5 $R R BT sE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

11. LOSS FOR THE YEAR FROM CONTINUING

11, AR ERE R ZIER

OPERATIONS
2018 2017
“F-NE ZF L4
HK$’000 HK$’000
#HT U BT
Loss for the year from continuing operations 4~ 4F B 7 45 482 E B 2

has been arrived at after charging/ RS ERFE A ()

(crediting): A& IAE
Employee benefits expense 1l B 48 A1) B 3¢

(excluding directors’ emoluments) (A6 45 5 5 <)

— Salaries and other benefits — ¥ & S HoAth 45 F 18,302 11,533

— Contributions to retirement benefits — B RAE FI FF 8 A 5k

schemes 762 480

— Equity-settled share-based payments — DUBRAS &5 5 LB Ay

Iy B 2 B B B SE - 1,763
Directors’ emoluments U 4,545 3,906
Total staff costs fE B ni A 4831 23,609 17,682
Cost of inventories recognised as an expense 5o 4 B % 2 17 & W48

(included in cost of sales and services) (FFA BB K R w4 )

(Note a) (Fif5ta) 43,754 29,053
Auditors’ remuneration % S Rl 37 987 1,200
Amortisation of prepaid lease payments FEUAH ARk T 4 21 21
Depreciation of property, ENN & R

plant and equipment 3,932 2,102
Equity-settled share-based payments 7 WU 2 DARCAS %5 8 DA

granted to consultant JBe 1y £y B 2 il A B S - 1,095
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss S RE T 503 (s ) 1R (24) 15
Minimum lease payments paid under MR A%+ S A 2 5848

operating leases in respect of &) 32 AT 2 B AR AH 42

land and buildings (Note b) (Bt EED) 6,880 2,264
Note: R 5 -

a Cost of inventories includes HK$1,699,000 (2017: HK$1,045,000)
relating to staff costs and depreciation, which amounts are also
included in the respective total amounts disclosed separately above
for each of these types of expenses.

b The amount excludes rental expense relating to a staff’s quarter
amounting to approximately HK$840,000 (2017: HK$466,000) which
has been included in “Salaries and other benefits” within employees

benefits expense disclosed above.

22 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

B A I AT B B T RA S AT 85
7 11,699,00070 ( % — L4 ik s
1,045,0007C ) > 7% < %8 JN 6 36 76 2 4%
R 25 DR SR IR b SR T 4 R 2 4%
HAEHN-

SRS B B T = A B ) L 4 B
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S

EMOLUMENTS

Details of the emoluments paid or payable to each of the

directors of the Company and the chief executive are as

follows:

2018

Executive directors
Mr. Zhou Jing (Chairman) (Note (i))
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul

(Chief Executive Officer) (“CEQ”)
Mr. Lam Chun Kei
Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Note (ii) and (iii))

Non-executive director

Mr. Zhou Jing (Chairman) (Note (i))

Independent non-executive directors
Mr. Chan Hin Hang (Note (iv))

Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien (Note (iv))
Mr. Hung Kenneth

ZENE

WHES

FIGEE (F8) (k)

RLBEE (FHAR
(7B MR

Ve St

SRR (I RE Gt e G )

EUfTEE
S (IR Gi) (i) K (vid))
FSEE (E) (B3R

Bk s
BEATAT Ak (W Gv))
EREELE (B
WRREL

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

12 EHREEEGTBAHENE

BT EYNSES e a
BB 2 4 A A

Salaries, Contributions
allowances  to retirement Equity-settled
and benefits benefits  share option ~ Discretionary

Fees in kind schemes expense bonuses Total

L EARSY BIRHA DRESSH
e TEA Adfha WCHER X Tt A AL At
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$000
T LR LR W T T T
- 110 - - - 110
- 1,600 18 - 200 1,818
- 540 18 - 250 808
- 389 18 - 558 965
60 279 8 - 7 354
130 - - - - 130
120 - - - - 120
120 - - - - 120
120 - - - - 120
550 2,918 62 - 1,015 4,545

BRERBEAERAT
—F—\EEH

227



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

zrh
L

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — %

B ¥ H R Bl 5 (£8)

F—NEfZH=A—HILFEE

12. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S FHEETESTHAEBMNS
EMOLUMENTS (Continued) (#)
Salaries,  Contributions
allowances  to retirement ~ Equity-settled
and benefits benefits  share option  Discretionary
Fees in kind schemes expense bonuses Total
R AR BIRER DRAKEL
ik T A WER M fEaL At
HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS’000 HK$'000
EHT T EHTT EHT T BRI BT T EHTT
2017 “E-bE
Executive directors ArES
Mr. Zhou Jing (Chairman) (Note (i) FEA (ER) (HEd) - 240 - - 20 260
Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul (Chief Executive RUBRE (THAR
Officer) (“CEO”) (B &) ) - 1,200 21 173 300 1,604
Mr. Lam Chun Kei MR - 500 18 - 270 788
Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Notes (ii) and (i) SN (JERE Gil) R i) ) - 28 8 173 - 409
Non-executive director FUGESR
Mr. Ng Ting Ho (Notes (i), (i) and (vi)) ~ REWLA (M) (i) & (vi)) 65 270 10 - 50 395
Independent non-executive directors Bk amES
Mr. Chan Hin Hang (Note (iv)) BRATAT R4 (WEEE Giv)) 16 - - - - 16
Mr. Yum Edward Liang Hsien (Note (iv)) R RE (M) 16 - - - - 16
Mr. Lee Kin Fai (Note (v)) FREE (Mt () 104 - - - - 104
Ms. Cheng Lo Yee (Note (v)) WHEELT (HWikw) 104 - - - - 104
Mr. Hung Kenneth WEREE 120 - - - - 120
425 2438 57 346 640 3,906
Notes: R 5 -
(i) Mr. Zhou Jing was redesignated from an executive director to a non- (i) e —F— /\EAH+HH
executive director with effective from 15 June 2018. BT HE LRI TES -
(ii)) Mr. Ng Ting Ho was redesignated from an executive director to a (ii) EWESEE R R —LFARHA TAH
non-executive director with effect from 16 June 2017. BT AR 2 AT E
(iii)  Mr. Ng Ting Ho was redesignated from a non-executive director to an (iii) AR —E - /NFEEAZHHA
executive director with effect from 3 July 2018. 3?5%??%3”??”{?%?:{%3? o
(iv)  Appointed on 13 November 2017. (iv) M_EF—LFET—A+T=HHERT-
(v)  Resigned on 13 November 2017. (v) WoE—LEr— = HEHE
(vi) The emolument shown above included approximately HK$65,000 (vi) bSO I I 4 v 4 s 65,0000 £
for his service as a non-executive director of the Company and AT AN &) FE AT 55 = T 2 118 e s
approximately HK$330,000 in connection with his other service to a Z 4 %) 330,000 70 B 2% — [
subsidiary undertaking. Wi B 2 ) i g S R 0 g R A IR B A
B o
(vii) The emolument shown above included HK$60,000 for his service (vii) B3OS B9 4 rh ik 560,000 0T £ 1%

22

as a non-executive director of the Company and approximately
HK$294,000 in connection with his other service to subsidiaries
undertaking.
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WEAT AN | FEHUAT 8 R T P (L e s 2
Ml 4 > 4935 294,000 70 BEL A 23 — [ B
J§ A ) I 2 SR A Y A IR % A R o



12.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

nﬂ' ZI Tk $ﬁ Bﬁ J—I ( ng

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

The emoluments shown above for executive directors were
mainly for their services in connection with the management
of the affairs of the Company and the Group. The fees for
the non-executive director and independent non-executive
directors were mainly for their services as director of the
Company.

There was no arrangement under which a director or the
chief executive waived or agreed to waive any remuneration
during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017. No
inducement payments to join or upon joining the Group or as
compensation for loss of office were paid or payable to any
director or the chief executive officer for the years ended 31
December 2018 and 2017.

During the year 2017, certain directors were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group under the
share option scheme of the Company. Details of the share
option scheme and basis are set out in note 35.

ERAEETBAEME
(/ggf‘)

b SR TR B AT 9 S I < R B
SRR N T AL E R R
e Bs A Bl < JF AT 5 5 ST R
T FE e T B F IR A L A
EHAR -

N e e Sl/NES S RIS S w2
ToA=tT—HIEFRE R
B E AT EON B R R R A
AT P <2 19 22 B o AR — /AR
L= F—tFE+ZA=+—HIL4F
JEE - Sl 0 ) A o] HE S B AT B
B S SRR A AT i A A 4 B =
AR B [ IR 22 3 B o e O A 1

AR L AT EFCREA
77 ) M e B A 1) A4 [ 4
HE 2 AR5 14 52 W% PR o O IS R T 38
SRR 1 OR B EE3S o

seengnnEsy 99



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

#n & B 5 $R R BT sE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

13. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 13.

The five highest paid employees of the Group during the
year included, two (2017: two) directors of the Company,
details of whose remuneration are set out in note 12 above.
Details of the remuneration for the year of the remaining
three (2017: three) highest paid employees who are neither a
director nor chief executive of the Company are as follows:

he 4 I W E B

JAAS AR BE - AR B T4 B # R B
oA (ZF—LE WA AA
AT AR 2 T R HOR B
SO REL2 o IRAAEERR T =4 (=
F—LF =) WHFARFESE
B EEATHA B Z B # g B 2
G

2018 2017
—B® - NE —F—LEF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
T oo Ik

Salaries allowance and benefits in kind A HEIG B W AE A 4,470 3,619
Contributions to retirement benefits schemes %8 /R 4@ F 51 31 41k 2 54 48
Equity-settled share option expense DA A 55 B 2 B PR HE B =2 - 399

4,524 4,066

The number of the highest paid employees who are not the
directors of the Company whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

Emolument bands P 4 i

Nil — HK$1,000,000 Z 2 15 %1,000,0007T

HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 7 1,000,001 T &
#1,500,0007C

HK$1,500,001 — HK$2,000,000 5 %51,500,001 0T &

# #2.000,0007C

23 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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P <8 A T LA S R 7 AR )
FrmREmFHERAEZBEBA LT

Number of employees
i B\ B
2018 2017
“EBNE DR

- 1
2 _
1 2
3 3




13.

14.

15.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES (Continued)

During the year, no directors nor non-chief executive highest
paid employees were granted share options. For the year
ended 31 December 2017, certain non-director and non-
chief executive highest paid employees were granted share
options, in respect of their services to the Group under the
share option scheme of the Company. Details of the share
option scheme are set out in note 35 to the consolidated
financial statements.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed for ordinary shareholders
of the Company during the year, nor has any dividend been
proposed since the end of the reporting period (2017: Nil).
LOSS PER SHARE

From continuing and discontinued operations

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
from continuing and discontinued operations attributable to

13.

14.

15.

h¥mebileR (4)

N M E H IR E BTG
Z e R B TR - R
X —-tHFE+_HA=+—HILFE
EomTHERLFEEEITHRAR
bl 3= 2= REE NN
F B O S5 A AN AL 2 IR R T
JEE IS HE o U8 S ME 1 1) 2 R R 45
A B R M EE3S o

Ji .

AT JBE Sl 0 i) A 2 ] 9 B B SR IR
AT B UR AT I B - 1 R R LAk
IR IRAT T RS, (2 — B4
o) o

(53 F
o H 5 A A K AR R S

Ao F A N REAGAE A 5 R AEE K
O 4 1R R 05 2 A5 R AR K il

owners of the Company is based on the following data: s E TR PE DL S A
Loss W 16
2018 2017
ZR N\ —F—EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT T
Loss for the year attributable to owners AT I B A B i s 1 2
of the Company for the purposes of basic AN T A N RE AL AR A B
and diluted loss per share i 18 (40,542) (98,487)
Number of shares M0 % H
2018 2017
—F-N\E ZEF—LF
’000 000
T i Tk
Weighted average number of ordinary shares 7l 5 5 I 2 A I #5482
for the purposes of basic and diluted loss 38 JBO N HE - 1 8
per share 1,139,564 881,425
BREMPASRAT

231
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REAMERARME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

15. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 15. #REHE ()
From continuing operations KA FEREEH
The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share from EN/NEIE: PN P RS -
continuing operations attributable to owners of the Company 5 22 o JBCHE A T 4 s 18 T AR 4 LA
is based on the following data: T EPERE
Loss figures are calculated as follows: R AT
2018 2017

SECNE L
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T

Loss for the year attributable to owners AN A HEA AL A AE
of the Company &5 18 (40,542) (98,487)
Less: profit for the year attributable WK &IEREERZ
to owners of the Company EN/NNCIE SN A
from discontinued operations A4 FE i A - (534)
Loss for the year attributable to owners AR B RS T
of the Company for the purpose g A K 1R 2
of calculating basic and diluted loss KN A HEA N AL A AR
per share from continuing operations i 48 (40,542) (99,021)
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above A 4B SCRTRES H L sEE 5
for both basic and diluted loss per share. e FE AR K 48 7 s 12 2 AR [R] o

23 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd))
RO IRRMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

15. LOSS PER SHARE (Continued) 15. BREHE ()
From discontinued operations KEHOHRILREEH
2018 2017
ZE-NE ZEF L
Earnings per share: B A -
— Basic (HK cents) — LA (HEAIl) - 0.06
— Diluted (HK cents) — ¥ Al - 0.06
2018 2017
ZE-NE —F-LHF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
BT BT
Earnings: #F
Earnings for the year attributable to owners #1532k B O & 1E 584 £ 5
of the Company for the purpose AR LR 2
of calculating basic and diluted AN T N RE AL AR A
earnings per share from discontinued el
operations - 534
The denominators used are the same as those detailed above Br 4 B EL - SC R RES) A DL EEE
for both basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share. BB R K R (s 1) 2R E A
[ﬂ o
The computation of diluted (loss)/earnings per share for FrEHE —F - NNER - F—LF
the year ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 did not assume T A =+ —H AR 2 T
the exercise of potential ordinary shares granted under the (18 BRI 3 iR sk i i AR
Company’s share options scheme outstanding at year end 7 ) i PO REE S 2 L LA A R R
since their exercise would have an anti-dilutive effect. A7 2 VB AE A A T > TR B

HiTfBA 2

BREMREGIRAT
Ein:ﬂi%f}\fﬁéiﬁ 233



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

B ¥ H R Bl 5 (£8)

zrh
L

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — %

16. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

23

Cost

Balance at 1 January 2017

Additions

Disposal of a subsidiary (Note 10)

Effect of foreign currency
exchange difference

Balance at 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018

Additions
Disposals
Acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 39)
Effect of foreign currency
exchange difference

Balance at 31 December 2018

Accumulated depreciation and impairment

Balance at 1 January 2017
Depreciation expense
Eliminated on disposal of
a subsidiary (Note 10)
Effect of foreign currency
exchange difference

Balance at 31 December 2017 and
1 January 2018

Depreciation expense

Disposals

Effect of foreign currency
exchange difference

Balance at 31 December 2018

Carrying amounts
Balance at 31 December 2018

Balance at 31 December 2017

BA

REF L~ B2 it
1R
HE—MHE AR (B0
@E#”EZE/

—LEFZAET B R
REF-AE— A ZEi

o
=

i
H
ek
€

W ) (J2E30)
X Va2

F&i-?'éélﬁ?f

BoF— =+~
i

Eﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ
REZ—tF—H—H 28
FrEY

1 — B R 4 ) 4
(FfzE10)

WEH PR

REF-tFEFZAZT—HE
RZF— )= —HZH%
PR

&

X EH Y%

B

e i

REF—VEFZA =R 24

REF-LEFZA=T—HZER

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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—/AE ZH=A—HIEFE

16. Wn3E ~ W s B wk s

Furniture,
fixtures and

JMEFZAZ B2

Leasehold Plant and office Motor

Buildings improvements machinery equipment vehicles Total
- EER

By MEMERE  RERRE  WAERA T ait
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS’000 HK$'000
T T T T T T
28,382 7,071 7,641 1,600 802 45,496
- - 11 31 2,343 2,385
(22,847) (2470) (1,443) - - (26,761)
650 276 529 24 38 1,517
6,185 4,876 6,738 1,655 3,183 22,637
- 6,034 10 1,270 918 8,232
- - - (25) (259) (284)
- 1,980 - 533 - 2513
321) (189) (382) 23) 4) (939)
5,864 12,701 6,366 3410 3818 32,159
(26.294) 4777 (6,007) (950) 612) (38.,540)
(214) (591) (469) (341) (549) (2,164)
22,669 2472 1,423 - - 26,564
(514) (165) (426) (24) (34) (1,163)
(4,353) (3,061) (5,479) (1,315) (1,095) (15,303)
(163) (2,173) (477) (391) (728) (3,932)
- - - 20 147 167
232 128 336 18 ) 736
(4.284) (5,106) (5,620) (1,668) (1,654) (18,332)
1,580 7,595 746 1,742 2,164 13,827
1,832 1,815 1,259 340 2,088 7,334




17.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd))
RO IRRMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

THE COMPANY

Details of the Group’s subsidiaries at the end of the reporting

period are set out below:

Name of subsidiary

i i 2 ] 4%

Bright Peak Investment Limited
FEH AR A

Broad Sound Enterprise Ltd
City Ally Holdings Limited

T S AT PR )

Delight Sky International Limited
BREBARA R

East Gain Enterprise Limited

AR FEHRAF

East Shine Group Limited

Eternal Speed International Limited

B RA

Place of
incorporation/
registration/
operations
kML,
R

British Virgin Islands (“BVI”)
B B B
3 V'sid 2l

BVI

B B B

BVI

B aale

BVI

B B B

BVI

By aale

BVI

B I oyeids

BVI
£ eids

Paid up

issued share
capital/
registered capital
BROHMT

JBe Ak /i A

US$1
1%t
Us$1
1%

USs$1
1%70

Uss$1
1370

Uss$1
1%70

Uss$1
1570

Uss$1
1%70

17. A5 v 3 R A\ Z 5 1

S ERES AT R

=== .
27
Proportion of
ownership
interest held by
the Company
Al i
i A R 5 b
2018 2017
SE N “E

Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly Principal activities

Hi% [i] #% H# M EREH
- 100% - 100% Investment holding

BEER
- 100% - 100% Investment holding

BEER
100% - 100% - Investment holding

BERR
- 100% - 100% Investment holding

BEER
- 100% - 100% Investment holding

BB
100% - 100% - Investment holding

BEER
- 100% - 100% Investment holding

BB

BRERBEAERAT
—F—\EEH
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
RO HRERMEE (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 17. A2 & X E B 2 6 = 1%

THE COMPANY (Continued) (#5)
Proportion of
ownership
interest held by
the Company
A2 Wl i i
Place of Paid up P A i i B
incorporation/ issued share 2018 2017
registration/ capital/ ZB— )\ “EF—Lk
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital Directly  Indirectly Directly  Indirectly Principal activities
G S BROERR
i i 2 ] 2% Ak S JBe Ak /I A HE fil 4% HE M EREH
Fast Creation Group Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
e B IR LT 1% BEER
Golden Harvest Holdings Limited BVI USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
SR BB 17T BB
Keen Profit Development Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
P RBRRATIA A e B IR LT 1% BEER
Profit Network Asia Inc. BVI US$600 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
£ eids 600%: 7 g
Rich Sheen International Ltd BVI US$1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
wREEHRAR e IR L T 1% BEER
Supreme Falcon International Limited ~ BVI USS1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
0 85 B PR AT PR A ) R B I BB
Way Union Development Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
TR BR IR AT LA 7] e IR LT 1% gk
Eternal Code Holdings Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - 100% Investment holding
G e £ AT PR ) B BB B BB
Happy Laughter International Limited ~ BVI US$1 - 100% - - Investment holding
R IR L BB 1% gk
Star Kitchen Catering Group Limited BVI US$1 - 100% - - Investment holding
RERBEERARAR B BB 17T BB
CD Securities Hong Kong HK$103,000,000 - 100% - 100% Licensed to carry on regulated
activity in connected
with dealing in securities,
advising on securities and
asset management
P 2 i 7 ik 7 1103,000,000 75 FERE T A B %7
B et
BRAREEREEZ
ZHEEH
Delight Sky Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$1,000,000 - 100% - 100% Money lending
ERMBARAR Eit 11,000,000 T
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Annual Report 2018



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

17. A 2w 1B E A~ 6 Z 5F 1

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Place of Paid up
incorporation/ issued share
registration/ capital/
Name of subsidiary operations registered capital
kML, BROBR
i i 2 ] 4% AL/ JBe Ak /i A
Tony China Limited Hong Kong HK$40,655,000
HOR B A7 R it 1 1#40,655,0007C
Town Ally Enterprise Limited Hong Kong HKS1
WEREHRAF ik ficki-ab
Town Ally Investment Hong Kong HKS$1
Company Limited
WEREHRAF Fis ficki-ab
Treasure Easy Limited Hong Kong HK$25,000
i i H25.0007C
Way Union Finance Limited Hong Kong HK$100
Rl B A R 7 Fis i 1007T
Belicious (HK) Limited Hong Kong HK$5,000,000
H I s A R 8 ) Eif i 1#5,000,0007C
Nobel Education Organisation Limited ~ Hong Kong HK$15,000,000
St RBFREARAR i 715,000,000
Star Kitchen Catering Hong Kong HKS$1
Group (HK)Limited
ERRAEM (Fi) A IRAR i eV
Xiamen Dongyu Trading PRC US$4,500,000
Company Limited*
B PTT R 5 A IR A 7 i 4,500,0003 7
Longyan Dongyu Bio-feedstock PRC RMB18,000,000
Company Limited*
A TR E R ARAR T AR #18,000,00078
Fujian Oriental Unicorn Agricultural PRC RMB1,000,000
Company Limited*
RERAE R AR 1 B 3% FE A #1,000,0007
F bR A
* English names are translated for identification purpose only

17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF

(#)

Proportion of
ownership
interest held by
the Company
Al i
i A R 5 b

2018 2017

ZENE

Directly
H#

90%

e

Indirectly Directly  Indirectly

[ 4% Bk IH] 1%

- 51% -
100% - 100%
100% - 100%

- - 51%
100% - 100%
100% - -

51% - -
100% - -
90% - 51%
90.4% - 52.96%
90% - 51%

Principal activities
EX 3373

Investment holding

BB

Investments in securities

[Ersiasy

Provision of administrative
services

BRALATBOR T

Food and beverage business

EL VG ES

Money lending
g

Distribution of alcoholic
beverage in Hong Kong
and PRC

7 i T o B B A R

Provision of children
education service

TR £ e

Food and beverage business
TSRS
Investment holding
BEER

Trading, development and
manufacturing of feedstock
products

SR 2 B 5
A8 T

Eco-breeding, animal
pharmaceuticals and
terminal marketing of
agricultural products

A BB - B BEY R R
RS

BREMREGIRAT 23 7
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REAMERARME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

17.

23

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF
THE COMPANY (Continued)

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the results
or assets of the Group. To give details of other subsidiaries
would, in the opinion of the directors, result in particulars of
excessive length.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities
during both years.

The table below shows details of non-wholly-owned
subsidiaries of the Group that have material non-controlling
interest:

Place of
incorporation
and principal Proportion of ownership
place of interests held by the non-
Name of subsidiary business controlling interests
ik B B B e ¢ T W 5 o
VHFJ§ 2+ ) 4% R EX3-£31 ] i HE B 5 L
2018 2017
“E-NE b
Tony China Limited and its ~ Hong Kong and 10% 49%
subsidiaries PRC
(“Tony China Group”)
SR B A R ) B it Rh
LI 2 7l
(THRA M ]
Individually immaterial N/A
subsidiaries with non-
controlling interests
A T P 42 A

M7 3K B 22

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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17.

Loss allocated to non-

A 2wl W E A E Z

(#)

EXRBIIARFZ MG AT EE
AR % 55 W Ja 2 ) Y R A
ZHRBBEE - EFR S M
H At 6 8 2 ] 2 R R 4 T R A
Ttz -

7 A1 4 J3E 1A AL S R Ja 2 W 2 84T
A AT {05 88 5

AR B A E ORI P IR AR A A
A 1 JF A Y e A

Accumulated non-controling

controlling interests interests

I3 B I TR M 4 2 S 4R EHERYE E
2018 2017 2018 2017
SENE CELE CFAR SF LR
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$°000
EW T T T BT
(947) (508) 1,646 12,245
1,435 (1,377)
3,081 10,868




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd))
RO IRRMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

17. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 17. A2 & X E B 2 5 = 3 1%

THE COMPANY (Continued) (#4)
Summarised financial information in respect of Tony China WA PR EEEE F— N E K
Group for the periods ended 31 December 2018 and 2017 is FE—tE+_H=+—HIE¥H =
set out below. The summarised financial information below AW & R L 0 R o LR B
reprsents amount before intragroup eliminations. BRI B R R 4R B R B BT 2 &
%E o
Tony China Group A o ] 4
2018 2017
—F-N\E ZEF—LF
HK$’000 HK$°000
BT ik i AT
Current assets i B 16,783 25,922
Non-current assets IE B & E 4,249 5,516
Current liabilities B A 1 (4,223) (8,469)
Non-current liabilities FE i B 1R - -

BREMREGIRAT
- :i@?f}\ﬂféiﬁ 239



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REAMERARME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

17.

24

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL SUBSIDIARIES OF 17. AXA G T EM B A 7 = S 1H

THE COMPANY (Continued)

Tony China Group (Continued)

Revenue

Cost of sales

Other income, other gains and losses
Expenses

Income tax expense

Loss for the period
Other comprehensive (expense)/income
for the year

Total comprehensive (expense)/income
for the year

(Loss)/earnings attributable to:
— Owners of the Company
— Non-controlling interest

Total comprehensive
(expense)/income attributable to:

— Owners of the Company

— Non-controlling interest

Net cash inflow/(outflow) from
operating activities

Net cash inflow from investing activities
Net cash outflow from financing activities

Net cash inflow/(outflow)

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

Annual Report 2018

(#)
WA v ) B ()

2018 2017

. A S v
HK$’000 HK$’000
wWTT BT

e A 36,472 32,110
BB B (35,782) (31,312)
H At e A ~ A i i B2 e 18 (2,894) 1,692
b X% (2,483) (3,115)
JIT A58 BH - (7)
199 ] e 18 (4,687) (632)
AR A i H A 4 T

(B /A (1,006) 2,130

A2 (B A
AEA (5,693) 1,498

THINLREAMG (R & A

B WNEEIE! ZEDN (3,713) (1,427)
— FEFE R 45 (974) 795
(4,687) (632)
DATR A 2 T
(BSZ) AU A 4%
S WNEEIE SN (4,065) 555
— I 5 IR 4 (1,628) 043
(5,693) 1,498
AL E) 2 B4
WA (W) 4 531 (1,456)
WG B 2 B A A 13 1,225
Bl 3 B 2 B TR S R R (404) -
BEwnA (Hl) F5E 140 (231)




Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd))
RO IRRMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

18. PREPAID LEASE PAYMENTS 18. FE AL E K IH

2018 2017
I LS e v
HK$°000 HK$°000
wWTn W T

Balance at beginning of year ) &5 R 932 908
Amortisation i £ (21) (21
Effect of foreign currency exchange S e 7 B 2 5 B

differences (48) 45
Balance at end of year AR 863 932
Analysed for reporting purposes as: S H M
Current assets (included in deposits, MENEE (FEARS ~ FATIE

prepayments and other receivables) T JEL A JE i 3K I 21 21
Non-current assets I i B 842 911

863 932

The prepaid lease payments are in connection with the land TE A5 B CE B 7 v B 2
use right situated in the PRC under a lease term of 50 years. BS0FE 2z T (d FHREA B o

BRERIASRAT
s rrm 241



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

#n & B 5 $R R BT sE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

19. GOODWILL

Cost
At 1 January

Additional amounts recognised from
business combinations occurring

during the year (Note 39)

At 31 December

Accumulated impairment losses
At 1 January

Impairment loss recognised in the year

(Note 21)

At 31 December

Carrying amounts
At 31 December

20. INTANGIBLE ASSET

Trading right

24 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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A
—H—H

FERELT ZE TS A DR T R R
ZEEANHIE (B EE39)

19. B&#

Bt A=A

5t ek £ A 1R

r—H—H

AF PR e R (e 1R (B RE21)

it -A=+—H

B T fE

it HA=+—H
20.

52 oy B

2018 2017
2N\ ZF—LF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
W T oo T T
15,108 15,108
20,200 -
35,308 15,108
(15,108) (1,264)

- (13,844)

(15,108) (15,108)
20,200 -

2018 2017

m® N CF LA
HK$’000 HKS$000
W T T T
500 500




20.

21.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

INTANGIBLE ASSET (Continued)

Intangible asset comprised the eligibility rights to trade on
or through the Stock Exchange. The trading rights have no
foreseeable limit to the period over which the Group can use
to generate net cash flows. As a result, the trading rights are
considered by the management as having indefinite useful
lives because they are expected to contribute to net cash
inflows indefinitely. The trading rights will not be amortised
until its useful life is determined to be finite. Instead, it will
be tested for impairment annually and whenever there is an
indication that it may be impaired.

At the end of the reporting period, the trading rights with
indefinite useful life are allocated to the financial services
business cash-generating unit (“CGU”) for impairment
assessment (Note 21).

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Goodwill has been allocated to the following CGUs for
impairment testing:

20, IEE&EE (4)

6 T B A S W S T A i I 5T
JIh 28 5y 2 B HEA] o 22 o REBE TR A
A | T A A R B A U R 2 S ]
lf7 40 AT SRR i o R0 - A8 B T R
52 oy REGRAT JHE R AT 6 4R 40 > IR
oy TEL S0 5 516 4 BIR AU B RR T B A
A o 32 oy WETE WL 1 B EL AT TR IR
Z A AN T DU o AR R FRE
AR R A PP 5 3% W1 HL T e Bl (B
HEAT Bl AR Bk o

T R R BE R A T B
e B W] AR 2 52 B RE T o I
IR B S B 2 B AR R
(THEEARM]) (MEk21) -

21. WHGEE - EEE E LY W
Bs B % i 2 B 4 B A B AL DA
U

PR B LT DA B A A A A
A7 AR B

2018 2017
—E-NE EF—LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 AT BT

CGU in alcoholic beverage distribution RS RO 8 26 5 2
business WaEEREN 18,408 -
CGU in education business HBEEH 2B e rEE BN 1,792 -

CGU in financial services business 4 Rl IR 5 SE 5

Z Bl E A A - -
20,200 -

BREMREERAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

21.

24

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

The basis of the recoverable amount of the above CGUs and
their major underlying assumptions are summarised below:

CGU in alcoholic beverage distribution business

The recoverable amount of this CGU was determined based
on value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation were those regarding the discount
rate and growth in revenue and direct costs during the year.
Management estimated the discount rate of 15.45% using
pre-tax rate that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risk specific to the CGU.
Changes in selling price and direct costs were based on past
experience and expectations of changes in the market.

The value in use calculation was derived from cash flow
projection based on the most recent financial budgets for the
next 5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period had been extrapolated using a steady
growth rate of 3% per annum.

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors
considered that the recoverable amount of this CGU was
found to be more than its carrying amount. Accordingly,
no impairment losses on goodwill had been recognised
in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2018.

CGU in children education business

The recoverable amount of this CGU was determined based
on value in use calculation. The key assumptions for the
value in use calculation were those regarding the discount
rate and growth in revenue and direct costs during the year.
Management estimated the discount rate of 18.87% using
pre-tax rate that reflect current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risk specific to the CGU.
Changes in selling price and direct costs were based on past
experience and expectations of changes in the market.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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21. WHGEE - HEE ERYE - W

B B % i < Bl 4 i A B Ao A
Bt (4)

gt B e A L 2 AT i [ 4 R A
e L FL T B B B S A T

RS BKORH 5 89 58 B < B < it A LA

W B 4 A B 2 W (] g R
Tl B A B (B 5T 5 o o A
HERPE N FEE BT 5 A BTN
Sy B DL Rl A B EL AR R
A % o A5 LR ol P B T R SRR A B
15.45% 0 BLR > 5% B0 7 A1 % R s
T 5 3 R T R (P A DA R
B4 7 A L R T LR o B S
& S L A 1 s AL T B A R A 48
B K i B s AL i FE A o

o M T B 20 1 i A A L g 1 o
A R A5 A B I B TR 2 B Ui
T o B S A ) A9 B R
A4 3.% WO 1 E 4 = A EA T HE BT

FR R EER R EHE A I
FEH & AR B 2 mT el i e AR R
R T 5 K o AT L > R 1Y) k(L S
BimnEgzsE —E— N £+ _H
=+ —HIEFEES AR A

EN PN
SREBE R B e A

AHR 4 A BV 2 AT i ] 4 AE T AR
PR A0 (R o R E AT
B2 FEBETIEF N Z R
WA BE R I B A 2 Rk -
J& A G B 2R 55 18.87% > T A% I
B [ A 6 W R R (B 2 T 3 e AL
B 4 e AR B 2 R R 2 R B I
Fil % o B A I L 4 AR 2 8 )y T D)
T KR B K T 3 T ) A o 2y L VEE o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING 21. SR E - EBEERME K

GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

CGU in children education business (Continued)

The value in use calculation was derived from cash flow
projection based on the most recent financial budgets for the
next 5 years approved by management. Cash flows beyond
the 5-year period had been extrapolated using a steady
growth rate of 3% per annum.

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors
considered that the recoverable amount of this CGU was
found to be higher than its carrying amount. No impairment
losses had been recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the year
ended 31 December 2018.

In the opinion of the directors, any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumption would not cause the
carrying amounts of the CGU to exceed their recoverable
amount.

CGU in financial services business

The recoverable amount of this CGU is determined based on
a value in use calculation using cash flow projection based
on financial budgets approved by the management covering
a period of 5 years and pre-tax discount rate of 21% (2017:
20%). Cash flows beyond the 5-year period have been
extrapolated using a steady growth rate of 3% (2017: 3%).
The discount rates used reflects specific risks relating to the
relevant business. Other key assumptions for the value-in-use
calculation relate to the estimation of cash inflows/outflows
which include budgeted revenue and operating costs which
are determined from past performance and management’s
expected market development, and taking into consideration
the temporary refrainment from providing further margin
financing and assessment of timing of implementing
measures in addressing the concerns raised by the SFC
relating to the June Incident.

Bo B % i 2 B 4 B A B AL DA
Wk ()

RERE R B & A
(#)

filf FRAE (BT 55 52 B AR 48 7 L Fg ik
T 2 5T AR AR S AT B B TE 5L T AR
2 B4 i TE U o S AR W 2
B4 O R AR R R
3% -

WREE A EER > EHRBAAB
< 2B LA 2 T i (e T e L
[LTRT= RS AR 13 = AN
A=t HIMF RS G R
i S At 22 THT i i 2% il AR I
8o

ERER S AT E BB AT S
HH AT RE A B B N e B A
V7 PR B TH 768 A0 JHL T o [ <

< Tl IR 5 38 05 2 B 4 A LA

AR B 4 i A LA 2 AT i [ 42 AR TR
P08 (B R 8 7 o (B (B Y
R DA S84 2 T 1L o 2 5 4F 30 B iE
T B By LM 2 B 4 O TE B K BR B
BRI R21% (=& — L4 :20%)
FHE o SER 2 B A TR T S
EWREHIG (—FE—LE3%)
BA o T P B B R I W AH B SE S 2 A
E AR o fif ) (B RO 2 Hofh g2 B
Bk AT RS RA AR
4 T T g S AR > T DL AR
RRB LEHBEN 2 TSR
S FE A R4 R BRI — A R A
Rl LB it i i AR R R B Er i N A
R Y R BT T A IR [ 4% e
E o
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21.

24

IMPAIRMENT TESTING FOR CGUS CONTAINING
GOODWILL, INTANGIBLE ASSET AND PROPERTY,
PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continued)

CGU in financial services business (Continued)

Based on the value in use calculation, the directors
considered that the recoverable amount of this CGU was
found to be less than its carrying amount.

Accordingly, HK$13,844,000 of impairment loss of goodwill
has been recognised for the year ended 31 December 2017.
No further impairment loss was recognised for the year
ended 31 December 2018 as the amount had been fully
impaired.

In the opinion of the directors any reasonably possible
change in any of these assumptions would not cause the
carrying amounts of the CGU to exceed their recoverable
amount.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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21.

WG R I E R W
e B ik i 2 B 4 e 2k BT DA
Bt (4)

< Pl IR 5 3 B 2 B 4 e A B for
(%)

MREE A EER A EHRB B
S A B 2 T A [ R TR AR R
IR

Bk 8% - F—-LtHE+ A
=+ — HIEF R C AR v R A
i 8 #s %513,844,0000C - B & &
— 4+ A =+ —H 1k R
HE— 20 WERR W (E s 1H - T R %
O R BOE -

G M AR A R AT T A
U] RE 5 B B A 8 B A B
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE 22. R—HEEBREZRE
Details of the Group’s investment in a joint venture are as AREFHKR—HEECEZ HEFE
follows: (I

2018 2017

—“EB-N\E L
HK$000  HKS$°000
T WM TOC

Cost of investment in a joint venture G BB A 15,000 15,000
Share of post-acquisition loss JRE A1k Wiz 1 4% T 48 (15,175) (13,374)
Share of other comprehensive income JFRE Ad JHE At 4 T oK A 231 272
Effects of equity transaction —HEERERALY Z

of a joint venture (Note) R (KEE) 1,676 1,676

1,732 3,574

Note: R 5 -
During the year ended 31 December 2017, BLVD Cayman Limited’s mEE—E-LtEF A=+ —HILF
ownership interest in its operating subsidiary was increased from 80% to J% > BLVD Cayman Limited® %5 %5 [ff &
100%. As a result of this equity transaction in the BLVD Group, the Group’s 75 |) B BT RERE 7 (180 % 34 I £ 100%
share of net assets of the BLVD Group was increased by an amount of H A BLVD GroupZ bl i HEZZ 5 » A4k
approximately HK$1,676,000, mainly due to the purchase consideration 9 A5 BLVD Group.Z ¥ & 15 {H 34 i £ s
paid by BLVD Cayman Limited for the additional ownership interest was #1,676,0007C > 1 % {1 jABLVD Cayman
lower than the carrying amount of non-controlling interest acquired. Limitedsh #8417 A HERE &5 177 S A5 09 e fig £

B A T S I 428 T 4 11 MR T (L P 2K

Details of the Group’s joint venture at the end of the A AE F N AR WK 2 A ERE S
reporting period are as follow: mp:
Country of
incorporation/ Principal place Proportions of ownership
Name of entity registration of business interest held by the Group  Principal activities
AL/ AR5 M 4
[ E AL ES FREEE P 47 H i £ FREH
2018 2017
“ENE S CEtF
BLVD Cayman Limited Cayman Islands Singapore 50% 50%  Operating restaurants, cafe and
Ry s takeaway outlets in Singapore

H g A VR BN IR

BREMIBEERAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

22. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 22. RHIGEAREZIRE (H)
Summarised financial information of BLVD Cayman BLVD Cayman Limited % 3 [} /&
Limited and its subsidiaries (“BLVD Group”) 2 a] ([BLVD4E ) 2 B & B

g 2

Summarised financial information in respect of BLVD Group BLVD%E [# 2 B %5 B R 2 6 1) an
is set out below. The summarised financial information N oo DA B BRI B Ay AR A
below represents amounts shown in BLVD Group’s B i 45 YEE T 4 S A BLV DAE [ 45
consolidated financial statements prepared in accordance B W B 3R B 81 7R B9 4 %8 - BLVD
with HKFRS. BLVD Group is accounted for using equity A5 H A 7% 45 A6 RS R TN (R
method in these consolidated financial statements. i 5 AR
BLVD Group BLVD4

2018 2017

ZERNE SRR
HK$’000 HK$’000
wWTL BT

Current assets B 5,243 4,837
Non-current assets Ik B & 14,927 18,348
Current liabilities i) A (16,707) (16,036)
Net assets O E 3,463 7,149

The above amounts of assets and liabilities %l & & M & & 45 0T

include the following: T35 A
Cash and cash equivalents Ba KRB a S EEE 885 633
Current financial liabilities B AR OB

(excluding trade and other JRRE At W 35 B L At JE A 3K T

payables and provisions) &Ll (6,090) (4,246)

24 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd))
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued) 22. R—HIEBEBLEILRE (H)
BLVD Group (Continued) BLVD# E (4F)

2018 2017
ZE-NE EFE—LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T W T oo

Revenue e A 52,997 39,117
Loss for the year attributable [ Eak XEPN

to equity owners A 1R (3,602) (1,389)
Other comprehensive income for the HE 4 A N A A 47 BE HoAth

year attributable to equity owners A TH L A (82) 450
Total comprehensive expense for the HE 2 A A AR 4F

year attributable to equity owners 4 TH B 37 A RH (3,684) (939)
The above loss for the year include the following: RAEJE 7 Bl fE el E N & 18

2018 2017

ZER-NE DR —LF
HK$°000  HKS$’000
BT BT

Impairment loss of intangible assets L& & 2 WEEE 413 -
Depreciation e 4,193 2,308
Interest expense FILE 582 628

BREMREERAD
e wea 249



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

#n & B 5 $R R BT sE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ — 2 — /41 = H =1 —H I F&

22. INVESTMENT IN A JOINT VENTURE (Continued)
BLVD Group (Continued)
Reconciliation of the above summarised financial

information to the carrying amount of the interest in BLVD
Group recognised in the consolidated financial statements:

22, R—HIEEBLEZILRE (H)
BLVD4H (4)

At A s R AR AL B R B T
RINTER ZFABLVD LM 42
M T (B3P IR AR

2018 2017
—F-NE ZF L
HK$’000  HKS$’000
T BT

Net assets of BLVD Group BLVD%E H 2~ & 7 {F 15 3,463 7,149
Proportion of the Group’s AL 1 T G RERE A
ownership interest L 15l 50% 50%

Carrying amount of the Group’s interest in 2<% [# /A BLVD4E [#] ~

BLVD Group HE 2 B T (EL

25 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

nﬂ' ZI Tk $ﬁ Bﬁ J—I ( ng

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

23A. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 23A. 0 it i B R E

Available-for-sale investments comprise: At ER
2017
— LA
HK$°000
BT T

Unlisted investments: I e

Equity securities at fair value AR ITF ($% A SEH) -
Fund investment at fair value HERE (%A A EE) 7,188
Fund investments at cost less impairment e BOE (i BUAS W (H ) 18,759
25,947
a.  The unlisted equity securities at fair value represent a. RN RMEEFEZIF EWIRA

investments in equity securities issued by a private RETE N FLE N AR AT 2 AN E

I L BUE o MR %L N F

company. The directors of the company estimated the

fair value of these securities is nil because of the under
performance of that private company.

The unlisted fund investments at fair value represent
the investments place to a private fund incorporated
in the Cayman Islands. The directors of the company
estimated the fair value by very limited information
available, and therefore, the predecessor auditor has
qualified the fair value in the consolidated financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2017.
Subsequently, the directors of the company received
more information to enrich the calculation, and there is
no material difference on the fair value identified.

A AN FIE RS
g LN B o

/NN I e A S B
BOE 7y B 2 B IS G M AL
R R 2 K o AN
B A R AT 2 Rl
N S AE (R > b - AR AZ BT
EHBE—_F—-LFE+-A
=+ H IR R AR S B R
R 2N BT RPAY - BE
%ﬁ AN FIERIREE L ER

DU R A HEER A
fE (B I TR 2 5 o

secpsarEca o5



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

23A. AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS (Continued)

(©)

As at 31 December 2017, the unlisted fund investments
carried at cost less impairment are held for an identified
long term strategic purpose so the Group does not
intend to dispose them in the foreseeable future. It
is measured at cost less impairment at the end of the
reporting period because the range of reasonable fair
value estimates is so significant that the directors of
the Company are of the opinion that fair values cannot
be measured reliably. The unlisted fund investments
carried at cost less impairment represents the Group’s
investments in private limited partnerships established
in the Cayman Islands. During the year ended 31
December 2017, the Group received distributions
of approximately HK$33,792,000, out of which
approximately HK$6,305,000 was return of capital.
Impairment loss of approximately HK$6,680,000
has been recognised in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income for the
year ended 31 December 2017 as share of net assets
attributable to the Group’s interest in these unlisted
funds was reduced below the Group’s carrying amount
of the investment in the funds.

23B. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

25

PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets mandatorily measured at FVTPL:

23A. Pt IR (4F)

23B.

A FE—tEF_A=+—H>F
TR S B (45 AN i AR Bl
B AKE) 5 F51E B #E 2 = ms H
f4 > BRI A 42 A v] T8 AL 2 R AROR
g R A HE A REEAMNFZ
0 [ WK > DA BOAS 0 F) R A A
Pn] 5E MR A FOAE A > SO i
1 R e A WO (B R R o H AR
WOREA R JE E RS A
SEERBEREE LA E GRS
WoEZRE - REE - —LF
T A Z IR AR E L
B A3 IR % #k #633,792,0007C » H
%9 %56,305,000 70 £ E A IR 8 -
AL NS RS
JRE Ak I I IR A I A A 4R
AR S G IR 2 T E > W (E
B %6,680,000CE A E %
—LEEF A= HILEEZ 4
A48 g B H At 2 T A £ R ERE -

o R AR Z SRS
23

9 i~ REER AR GR R &
il E

2018 2017
R -NE SR LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
#WHTou BT
Listed securities held for trading: FrEEEZ ElieEs
— Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — s b AR 55 24,831 14,983

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

23C.FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

24.

OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

Unlisted investments: FELEHHE:
— Equity securities — AT TR
— Fund investments —He®E

a. The unlisted equity securities at fair value represent
investments in equity securities issued by a private
company. The directors of the company estimated the
fair value of these securities is Nil because of the under
performance of that private company.

b.  The unlisted fund investments at fair value represent the
investments place to a private fund incorporated in the
Cayman Islands.

c.  During the year ended 31 December 2018, the Group
received distributions of approximately HK$4,524,000
from the fund investments, out of which approximately
HK$4,406,000 was return of capital.

OTHER ASSETS

Other assets included statutory deposits with the Stock
Exchange and clearing house amounting to approximately
HK$230,000 (2017: HK$9,475,000) as at 31 December 2018
and are non-interest bearing.

23C. % o> Su (B A wh A 3L At 4 i Wk 4%
Z & il

2018 2017
RN SF b
HK$’000 HK$’000
wWTL BT

7,125 -

7,125 -

a. FEARMEEFEZIE EARA
oz il K i=) NN /NS E SR
JBA RS I 2 B o R AL
NEIEFAME AN F A,
Atz EB R A RBEELE -

b.  fARMEMEFEZIF EHEE
B S B 2 R AL 2
MHEREGZE -

c. MEE_F—NE+_H
=+ — H Ik FEE AR EE
W B 3 4 & 4 il £ i N
4,524,00070 > H o> &) i W
4,406,0007C £ & A IR 42

24, H i

HAhE s h —F—/\F+H
= H AR 5 I S T 20k
P54 41 %230,0000C ( —F—L
A i 59,475,0000C ) 0 BIRFHE. o

BRSMBREERAD
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25.

26.

25

INVENTORIES

Raw materials
Finished goods

TRADE RECEIVABLES

Trade receivables
— Agricultural and other business
Less: allowance for credit losses

— Financial services business
— Dealing in securities
— Cash clients
— Margin clients
— Clearing house

Less: allowance for credit losses

25. itk
2018 2017
SR )E F b
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
R Rl 2,000 1,690
B 2,297 653
4,297 2,343
26. JEWIE K
2018 2017
B -NE R
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
W T T T
JRE WAL B 3K

— RN H A S 19,568 15,221
W AF B 1R (4,036) (1,294)
15,532 13,927

— & Tl IR 5 2E

—HEH &R
—HEEF 35 96
—REBERF 1,966 5,597
— &5 BT - 2,911
2,001 8,604
WG B E a7) (74)
1,984 8,530
17,516 22,457

As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2018, trade
receivables from contracts with customers amounted to
HK$17,516,000 and HK$22,457,000 respectively.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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WoE— )+ H=+—H &
T—/)HF—H—H KAREFHH
2 SR B o 1l 2 s 917,516,000
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd))
RO IRRMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

Agricultural and other business

The following is an aged analysis of trade receivables

net of allowance for credit losses presented based on

the invoice date:

0 —90 days
91 — 180 days

181 — 365 days

0-90K
91-180°K
181-365K

The Group’s trading terms with its customers from the

agricultural business are mainly on credit. The Group

generally allows a credit period of 30-60 days (2017:

60 days) to its trade customers. The Group seeks to

maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables

and the management regularly reviews the overdue

balances.

26. MEWCR K (A

(a) JR3E M At 36 %

PATR B 4% 8% 55 H A 251 2 &40
USERCY FiRt IR el

AR 23 H -
2018 2017
—“EB-N\E L
HK$000  HKS$’000
T WM TOC
8,776 9.217
6,048 4,072
708 638
15,532 13,927

AL B K 2’
F A E IR 5 A4
B R 5 R PR 302
60K (ZF—L4F:60K)Z
5B o AR B2 ] ) SR A 2
R Wi ] 2 MBSO B A L
| E W E A &
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

25

(a) Agricultural and other business (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$9,251,000 (2017: HK$7,818,000) which
are past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past
due balances, HK$2,166,000 (2017: HK$867,000) has
been past due 90 days or more and is not considered as
in default. The Group does not hold any collateral over
these balances.

As at 31 December 2018, The management considers
that the trade receivables that were neither past due nor
impaired relate to a wide range of customers and to be
of a good credit quality.

As at 31 December 2018, Trade receivables which are
past due at the end of the reporting period for which
the Group had not recognised an allowance for credit
losses relate to a number of independent customers that
have a good track record with the Group. Based on past
experience, management believes that no impairment
allowance is necessary in respect of these balances as
there has not been a significant change in credit quality
and the balances are still considered fully recoverable.
The Group did not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over these balances nor did it have a
legal right of offset against any amounts owed by the
Group to the counterparty.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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26. MEWR K (A

(a) JRFERIAMIE ()

N R NEFZH =
H oo 5 A A 42 [ 0 MR K 45
B A R A B E
JRE WA T AR T (E A S
9,251,0007C ( —F — L4 1 i
#7,818,00070) - A EL 41 B 45
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26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(a)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

Agricultural and other business (Continued)

Aging of trade receivables which are past due but not

impaired

Overdue by:
1 - 90 days
Over 90 days

. ] -
1%E90K
H 90K

Movements in the allowance for credit losses

Balance at beginning of the year
Impairment losses recognised on

receivables

Foreign currency translation reserve

Balance at end of the year

) 4 B

90 WK T e

B {E JEs 17

B M ok A

A AR A R

As at 31 December 2018, included in the allowance for

credit losses are individually impaired trade receivables

with aggregate balance of approximately HK$4,036,000
(2017: approximately HK$1,294,000). The individually
impaired trade receivables relate to customers that

were in financial difficulties and the receivables are not

expected to be recovered.

26. MEWCIRK (AE)

(a) JRFERIAMIER (4)

2 8 393 A 9 WA B i ) iR

2018 2017
- )\E T L
HK$’000 HKS$°000
W T BT T
7,085 6,951
2,166 867
9,251 7,818

G EEBAEH
2018 2017
B - NE EF—-LF
HK$’000 HKS$’000
W T BT T
1,294 -
2,928 1,294
(186) -
4,036 1,294

WoE—NETH =+ —
H 5t A G EEEEE 2 &5
F5 AR A C (B B R K > B R
HHRE K91 %54,036,0000C (-
F— LA 4% 1,294,000
TG ) o AR A L I R R Bk B
W R 2 % P A B A B
SR T T AN mT i [

BREMIBEERAD
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

25

(b) Financial services business

The settlement terms of trade receivables arising from
the ordinary course of financial services business of
dealing in securities from cash clients and clearing
house are two days after trade date.

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its
outstanding receivables in order to minimise credit risk
and the overdue balances are regularly reviewed by the
management.

Margin clients are required to pledge securities
collateral to the Group in order to obtain the margin
facilities for securities trading. At 31 December
2018, loans to margin clients are secured by clients’
securities pledged as collateral with market value of
approximately HK$798,000 (2017: HK$956,000).
Management has assessed the market values of the
pledged securities of each individual client who has
margin shortfall at the end of each reporting period.
The margin loans are repayable on demand and bear
variable interest at commercial rates. No aged analysis
is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the aged analysis does not give additional
value in view of the nature of securities margin
business.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)

(b)

Financial services business (Continued)

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of
allowance for credit losses, arising from cash clients
and clearing house, including those which are past due
but not impaired at the end of each of the reporting
period, based on the trade date are as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired $HE 70 1) IR 0 ek (L
Past due but not impaired: 7 3 H R e
Over 3 months 3E A LA B

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$17,000 (2017: HK$22,000) which are
past due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due
balances, HK$17,000 (2017: HK$22,000) has been past
due 90 days or more and is not considered as in default
as the client have no past default history.

As at 31 December 2018, receivables that were neither
past due nor impaired represent unsettled trades
transacted on the last two days prior to the end of each
reporting period and it also relate to a wide range of
independent clients for whom there was no recent
history of default.

As at 31 December 2018, receivables that were past
due but not impaired at the end of the reporting period
relate to independent clients that have good track
records with the Group or are subsequently settled.
When cash clients fail to settle on the settlement date,
the Group has the right to sell the purchased securities
of the respective transaction. Based on past experience,
management believes that no impairment allowance
is necessary after taking into consideration the
recoverability from the purchased securities and past
collection history of each client.

26. WEWOR K (4 )
(b) EmhiRBE ()

R B 5 5 P T 2 A B
5 e 1R B AR 2 RO K
(BLAR A 4% 3 i R C a9
RBUEH ) R 5 H W=
e AT

2018 2017
—ZF)NE CE L
HK$’000 HK$’000
#wW T BT
- 2,911

17 22

17 2,933

AR )NEFZH =+ —
H > 5 A A 42 B FE i R B &5
AR B a2 e
Wi K TE > A AR T E i 617,000
gt (& — L4 i 22,000
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17,00000 ( — & — L 4F ¥
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b H A T R A A A
OBk BGZ KA B EA -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

#n & B 5 $R R BT sE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

26. TRADE RECEIVABLES (Continued)
(b) Financial services business (Continued)

Movements in the allowance for credit losses

Balance at beginning of the year ) & R

Impairment losses recognised 9L B AT T i R
on receivables T AE e 18

Written-off it &5

Amounts recovered during the year AE IR R] 2 FKOE

Balance at end of the year R &S R

At 31 December 2017, approximately HK$48,000
were individually determined and has been made for
cash client with an aggregate outstanding balance of
approximately HK$751,000. The aggregate outstanding
balance of HK$751,000 was written off during the year
ended 31 December 2017. During the year ended 31
December 2018, impairment loss of trade receivables
of HK$57,000 (2017: HK$128,000) was recovered and
reversed and no credit losses was recognised.
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. REWOIR K (A7)

SR B R (A

1= B M5 16 7 i 5 3)

2018 2017
SR NE SRR
HK$’000 HK$’000
wWTL BT

74 905
- 48
- (751)
(57) (128)
17 74

WoE—tE+ A=+ —
H > 5t 34 % 5 Al 2
PR i (F 43 5 40 ¥ 1548,000
TG > A fE R A AR B A T
751,0000C > A 2 —F— L
- H=+—HILFE
I M 5 & R AR R 751,000
TOELIHEY - MR E T — )\
+oH=+—HIEERE ik
HiR 3K 2 W 1H s 18 9 57,000
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27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES

Loans and interest receivables

Loan to and interest receivables from
a joint venture (Note 28)

Less: Allowance for credit losses

Analysed as:
Current
Non-current

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

27. MEWCE K KA S

2018 2017
—“EB-N\E L
HK$’000 HK$’000
i3 ST T T
JRE Wi 5 R % A R 91,487 97,083

KB —HEERER
JRE AT 5 R K A S (B 5E28) 2,841 -
WG B IR (6,907) (103)
87,421 96,980

ST B

b 79,391 85,041
IE B 8,030 11,939
87,421 96,980

The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its

outstanding loans and interest receivables so as to minimise

credit risk. The granting of loans is subject to approval

by the credit committee, whilst overdue balances are

reviewed regularly for recoverability. At 31 December 2018,

loans receivables are charging on effective interest rates

mutually agreed with the contracting parties, ranging from
approximately 5% to 24% (2017: 5% to 14%) per annum.

At 31 December 2018, loans and interest receivables
of approximately HK$8,281,000 (2017: approximately
HK$8,495,000) were secured by a property in Hong Kong.

ENESUES SIS R Y e
FIE SR B A BE 1 > TSR 15
Bl 2 el - I B RARE R
B e e s g7 AR R I A A R
B B AT iR AT AR T o A
— NFE+HA=+—H > EUExK
T w1 4) 77 M T 2 2 H R R SRR
BN TFHEFESE 48 (ZF
— LA SHEE14)H) -

W oE - NE+_H=1+—H
Wi B 3Kk B ]S A W H58,281,0007T
(=F—L4F - AW %8,495,0007T )
o3 AW 2 ) AR o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

27. LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

26

A maturity profile of the loans and interest receivables as at
the end of the reporting period, based on the maturity date,

net of provision, is as follows:

0-90 days
91-180 days
Over 180 days

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

0—90K
91— 180K
180K

27.

W WA sk B MG (A

)

TSR SR $2 2 0 F B0 2 R
AR (1R J35 ) 2] 54 DL an

T
2018 2017
RN E L
HK$’000 HK$’000
T EX i aPTH
39,448 5,241
17,681 17,745
30,292 73,994
87,421 96,980




27.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

nﬂ'

ZI Tk $ﬁ Bﬁ *I ( me

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued) 27.

The aging analysis of loans and interest receivables that are
not considered to be impaired is as follows:

Neither past due nor impaired e 20 1 IR 4 ek
Past due but not impaired 2 W H R (E

As at 31 December 2018, included in the Group’s loans
and interest receivables balance are receivables with
aggregate carrying amount of HK$2,320,000 which are past
due as at the reporting date. Out of the past due balances,
HK$2,296,000 has been past due 90 days or more and is not
considered as in default.

JE WA sk B A U (.

AR 5% Sl S ol (1 - B s B R B LS
ZHRE AT IR

2018 2017
I LS e v
HK$°000 HK$°000
wWTn W T

85,101 96,958
2,320 22
87,421 96,980

WEE—=NFETFZH=1T—H 5
A (8] R AT R R ) A 5 2
s H e E i 2 R KA > R
T (B 2 75 %52,320,0000C © i~ £ %81 1
4EER TR 1 152,296,0000C E 41 1190
R Ph b HeZ sk EABL R -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

zrh
[T AN

B ¥ H R Bl 5 (£8)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

27.

26

LOANS AND INTEREST RECEIVABLES (Continued)

As at 31 December 2018, loans and interest receivables
that were neither past due nor impaired relate to diversified
customers for whom there were no recent history of default.
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no
provision for impairment is necessary in respect of these
loans and interest receivables as there has not been a
significant change in credit quality and the balances are still
considered fully recoverable. Past due but not impaired relate
to loan and interest receivable owed from a customer and was
subsequently settled.

Movements in the Group’s impairment loss recognised of
loan and interest receivables are as follows:

AF A &G B

Balance at beginning of the year
Impairment loss recognised

R &G B

Balance at end of the year

As at 31 December 2018, loans and interest receivables
of approximately HK$6,804,000 (2017: approximately
HK$103,000) was individually impaired. The total amount
of the provision was approximately HK$6,907,000 (2017:
approximately HK$103,000). This was related to a customer
for whom the directors are of the view that the collection of
this loan and interest receivable was not probable.
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27. EWCE AL (;

A NEF A= —H B
R A8 1 A Bl (L 2 IR A e LB
J' BT S A KRR S 2 2 et
FABR - ARXFEERS dRE
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E S (ELSIG S (2 A B Y Bl — 24 %
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LA A R S R R IS R 2
EREEH T

2018 2017
— )\ —EF—LHF
HK$’000 HK$’ 000
T oo Ik
103 -
6,804 103
6,907 103

AE—)ETFZH =+ —H
Wi B 3k K I B A W5 %56,804,000T
(ZF— L4 4% %103,00070)
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER  28. %4 - VAfF 50 K H i e W 2% 06

RECEIVABLES

Prepayments TEAT #KIH
Deposits and other receivables (Note) Fie 4 B HAth BE i 5
Current portion of prepaid lease payments T {5 3 JH

Note:

Included in deposits and other receivables at 31 December 2017 was a
deposit of HK$4,000,000 paid to BLVD Cayman Limited.

On 14 November 2017, Eternal Speed International Limited (“Eternal
Speed”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, and BLVD
Cayman Limited, a joint venture of the Group, entered into the subscription
agreement pursuant to which Eternal Speed has conditionally agreed to
subscribe for, and BLVD Cayman Limited has conditionally agreed to
issue, the subscription shares, at the subscription price of HK$12,000,000.
HK$4,000,000 was paid by the Group to BLVD Cayman Limited as deposit
pursuant to the terms of the subscription agreement. Upon closing, Eternal
Speed will hold 75% of the enlarged issued share capital of BLVD Cayman
limited and BLVD Group will become subsidiaries of the Company.

2018 2017
—F-NE FE -t

HK$’000 HK$’000

T HE T T

1,916 1,932

(Bt &%) 9,589 13,763
11,505 15,695

#B 21 21
11,526 15,716

AR CE-LEFCAS A2 S

Je FoAb E W 3K T £ 32 AT FBLVD Cayman
Limited Z 4% 4 5 14,000,000 7T °

e o N & I Lt N E N N/ =i e 112
A B A A ) AR BE AT BR A ] ( ti(iEJ
EL(BLVD Cayman Limited)4<£E [#] — il &
m%ﬁiﬁ W W > IR UL 5 R ﬁtkﬁ:l‘l
=Rl > MBLVD Cayman Limited 1 £ [7]
BT AR L - BRI AR 2 45 79 12,000,000
TG o A% A2 B AR 4% R 10 1 'k 2 e 3 M BLVD
Cayman Limited 3 17 s #4,000,0007¢ 1F %
4z o NS HAR > SRR BLVD Cayman
limited ¢ 4 K 0 #517 BEA 1975% » HBLVD
A 15195 10 2oy A4 2 ) B B OB D o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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28. DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER

RECEIVABLES (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

Pursuant to the terms of the subscription agreement, the deposit paid by
Eternal Speed to BLVD Cayman Limited shall be treated as a shareholder’s
loan to BLVD Cayman Limited in the event that any of the conditions
precedent is not fulfilled or (if applicable) waived in full at or before
the long stop date. The potential loan advance constitutes a discloseable
transaction of the Company under the GEM Listing Rules and the
subscription as a whole constitutes a major transaction of the Company

under the GEM Listing Rules.

On 15 January 2018, Eternal Speed and BLVD Cayman Limited entered
into the deed of termination pursuant to which the parties have agreed to
terminate the subscription agreement with immediate effect and confirmed
neither party had any claim against the other party in connection with such

termination.

Upon the execution of the deed of termination, Eternal Speed and BLVD
Cayman Limited also entered into a loan agreement to formalise the advance
of a shareholder’s loan in the principal amount of HK$4,000,000 by
Eternal Speed to BLVD Cayman Limited (being the deposit paid under the
subscription agreement) with effect from 15 January 2018, being the date of
the deed of termination. The principal amount of the loan bears interest at a

rate of 9% per annum and is unsecured and repayable on demand.

On 14 December 2018, Eternal Speed and BLVD Cayman Limited entered
into partially repayment acknowledgement letter in respect of the partially
repayment of loan principal of HK$1,200,000 by BLVD Cayman Limited
to Eternal Speed. In respect of the remaining amount of the extended loan
principal of HK$2,800,000 shall be extended by 12 months to 13 December
2019 with effect from 14 December 2018 and reclassified to loan and
interest receivable. The principal amount of the loan bears interest at a rate

of 9% per annum and is unsecured and with one-year repayment term.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

29. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/TRUST BANK

29. BERBEFMHMEE Mt

ACCOUNTS TR P
2018 2017
—EZ-N\NE —“E -t
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
Cash and cash equivalents HekBla%EEH 68,576 94,293
Trust bank accounts FRERITIRF 22,996 28,954
91,572 123,247

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash held by the Group,
deposits placed with securities brokers and short-term bank
deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.
Bank balances that earn interest at floating rate based on
daily bank deposit rates and short term time deposits that
earn interest at the respective short term deposit rates. The
bank balances and short term time deposits are deposited
with creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

B M BB SF (I H RS A5 B
FREL & ~ A7 UM 78 I3 5 AL 2 A7 3K %
JEOS = A8 B LA B3 2 S S SR AT
Tk o R4 AE HSRAT A7 3OM 45 77
SRR 2 2 SRAT A B R A B
A OR] 3 B IUR B 2 J6 3 o 0 A7
Ao SRAT R R S I A S A
TR Sl 4 20 J 46 ek LA B R A7
Y $RAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

29.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS/TRUST BANK
ACCOUNTS (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and cash
equivalents and trust bank accounts of the Group
denominated in RMB amounted to approximately
HK$363,000 (2017: HK$324,000). RMB is not freely
convertible into other currencies, however, under the PRC’s
Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and Administration
of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for
other currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign
exchange business.

The Group maintains trust bank accounts with authorised
financial institutions to receive and hold money deposited
by clients in the course of the conduct of the regulated
activities. These clients’ monies are maintained in one or
more trust bank accounts and bear interest at commercial
rate. The Group has recognised the corresponding trade
payables to respective clients. The Group currently does not
have an enforceable right to offset those payables with the
deposits placed.

29. BIERBEFMHMEE et

TIRP (#4)

A R > AL E A R EHE
Z Bl KRB I H R AEERAT
W5 ) 5 s 1:363,0000C ( —~F—+L
Ak H324,00000) o N RS RE
B H 0 2 A £ W AR AR B
S [ A1 R A B AR 1) B A HEE - B e
K AT HERE BRAR ) > AL E n] i i
HERE HE AT SR SEH O SRAT A% A R
W bt 2 oA B -

A B T R T < N R LA RE AR
FTHR I LU HEAT 32 B8 15 B i e o
W B A B AT K o %S T
JEAE S — M B2 (A 15 RESRATHR S &
i 7 SE A AR o AR B e R
A5H 2% %0 5 FC9 AR B A B o A 2 1
F iy 8 28 o AL R ) 0 5 5 B AR
AL B A7 AT AR 8 o

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 0. JEAF MR a5k B A R 1 35K JH
2018 2017
—E-N\E ZEF L4
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT BT oo
Trade payables JRE At B K
— Agricultural and other business — JR 3 S H A ZE B
(Note (1)) (Bt 5E D)) 5,058 2,894
— Financial services business (Note (ii)) — 4 Pl IR S (Y GE Gi))
Dealing in securities HEEF
— Cash clients —Be%F 16,201 24,243
— Margin clients —REEEF 5,917 5,582
— Clearing house — A 938 -
Asset management & 923 782
Other payables and accruals HCAth B A RO R TE AR 2 8,490 4,435
Contract liabilities HHR R 305 -
37,832 37,936
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

nﬂ' ZI Tk $ﬁ

Bﬁ J-I ( me

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

30. TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES (Continued)

Notes:

(i)

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables from agricultural
and other business, presented based on invoice date at the end of the
reporting period:

0 - 90 days 0%90K
91 — 180 days 91 2180K
Over 180 days 180K

The settlement terms of trade payables arising from the ordinary
course of financial services business of dealing in securities are two
days after trade date.

Trade payables to clients bear variable interest at commercial rates,
and are repayable on demand subsequent to settlement date. No
aged analysis is disclosed as, in the opinion of the directors of the
Company, the aged analysis does not give additional value in view
of the nature of business. At 31 December 2018, the trade payables
amounting to approximately HK$22,996,000 (2017: HK$28,954,000)
were payable to clients in respect of the trust and segregated

bank balances received which are held for clients in the course of

conducting the regulated activities. However, the Group currently
does not have an enforceable right to offset these payables with the
deposits placed.

31. AMOUNT DUE TO A JOINT VENTURE

The amount due was non-trade nature, unsecured, interest-
free and repayable on demand.

WE £F B sk B 3L fth BE Ak JH

(#)

B

() DR AR MR IR A2
AR T HA S B 2 ME A R AR 2 R

B I3 Hr

2018 2017
—F )\ Sk LA
HK$’000 HK$°000
? 7t T oo

BT ki
1,211 1,292
933 163
2,914 1,439
5,058 2,894

(i) WEHELHZ B ET R T
JUT I A 2 AT BRI 2 S5 S W BR /5 28 %)
HZEW K-

JEAT % 7 2 BR3K ﬁ?ﬁ%t@ntﬁ
&E#%B%ﬁ#%ﬁ@t AN
HER L > R M B0 ﬂ@‘l’i’iﬁ
ﬁﬁjtﬂﬁﬁt%”ﬁ%%ﬁ I 4 48 75
éttﬁ W= E A=t
> Kk #22.996,0000C ( —~F—+&
E:%%%mtmwmﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁ’
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32.

27

DEFERRED TAXATION

The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances for
financial reporting purposes:

Deferred tax assets W SiE Bl TEUE

The following are the major deferred tax assets balances
recognised and movements thereon during the current and
prior years:

32.

At 1 January 2017 WoE—tFE—H—H
Credit to profit or loss A H 4R

At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018
Charge to profit or loss R E R

At 31 December 2018
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

DEFERRED TAXATION (Continued)

At the end of the reporting period, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of the estimated unused tax losses
of approximately HK$8,699,000 (2017: HK$10,477,000)
arising from subsidiaries operating outside Hong Kong
which are available for setting off against future taxable
profit of that subsidiary and due to expire within one to
five years and estimated unused tax losses of approximately
HK$104,024,000 (2017: HK$92,765,000) available for offset
against future profits that may be carried forward indefinitely
due to unpredictability of future profit streams.

2. BEBIH (4)

PR WRIE B 2 M EF
5 D A b [ 4848 2 [ J A W 2 Ak & T
R Bl A B TE S 48 40 9 158,699,000 0T
(=& — L4 #%10,477,00000)
(A 18 o T s 80 mT AL 41K 8 5% BT g
A 2 A Pf B Vi RIS i — & LA
TN JE I ) B A< 4 [ 2 Ak 5T oK Bl B
TE I 18 49 5 %5104,024,0000C ( %
— L4 %592,765,0000C) (4 H
5t T s 15 T A 8 A A i ]Sl T
P 1A 5 ) il 5 08 A B T & > R
PR 7% A% BE TE T A% 2 Yok 1] 21 U5 o
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33. SHARE CAPITAL 33. A
Number Share
Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of shares capital
5 1 W H0.0150 Z 5 48 it it 4y 8 H Jie A
000 HK$’000
T & L AT
Authorised: Vg
At 1 January 2017, 31 December 2017 WoEz—-tH—H—H"
and 31 December 2018 “F-tHEFA=1+—H
ZE =) E+H=+—H 100,000,000 1,000,000
Issued and fully paid: OB RHR:
At 1 January 2017 W _EFE—t4E—H—H 769,136 7,691
Issue of placing shares (Note (i)) BATEE Ay (BEEEG)) 153,800 1,538
Issue of shares upon exercise of A7 6 6 P REE A% B AT B0 ( B 5E (i1) )
share options (Note (ii)) 70,660 707
At 31 December 2017 and 1 January 2018 R =F—tHF+-H=1+—HK
—F—N¥—H—H 993,596 9,936
Issue of placing shares (Note (i) BT Iy (BEEG)) 184,500 1,845
Issue of shares upon exercise of A7 fe B e MEE AR B AT B4 (B Rl )
share options (Note (ii)) 46,140 461
At 31 December 2018 R-F-NE+_H=1+—H 1,224,236 12,242

2 7 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

33. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)

Notes:

)

(i)

Issue of placing shares

On 21 April 2017, the Company completed the placing of an
aggregate of 153,800,000 ordinary shares of the Company of
HKS$0.01 each to not less than six placees through placing agent at
HK$0.10 per ordinary share. The net proceeds from the placing of
shares amounted to approximately HK$14,742,000.

On 24 May 2018, the Company completed the placing of an aggregate
of 184,500,000 ordinary shares of the Company of HK$0.01 each
to not less than six placees through placing agent at HK$0.10 per
ordinary share. The net proceeds from the placing of shares amounted
to approximately HK$17,585,000.

Issue of shares upon exercise of share options

During the year ended 31 December 2017, 70,660,000 ordinary
shares were issued upon the exercise of a total of 70,660,000 share
options at exercise price HK$0.086 per share, giving rise to aggregate
net proceeds of approximately HK$6,077,000.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, 46,140,000 ordinary
shares were issued upon the exercise of a total of 46,140,000
share options at exercise price HK$0.1072 per share, giving rise to
aggregate net proceeds of approximately HK$4,946,000.

33. A ()

B3

()

(ii)

AT BB By

W oE—EAENA > ARAFE
58 B8 8 T 65 AR 1) A8 /D i N 44 7R D
A% B T 7 1% s W0, 1000 2 8 45
it 5 A 4£153,800,000 % A8 2 w6l 45 1% i
B0V 50,0170 2 8% 48 I - i 5 % 1 it
15 BT TR B4 2 7 1 14,742,0000T ©

R AETRH A H - AN
SE FE 3 50 QL 1) TR D i AN 44 R D
N A2 A B A A 1% s W0, 1000 2 B A%
Tt 45 4 $£ 184,500,000 % A8 2> 7] 45 JI i
(B 7 %50.0 170 2 3% 48 I o i 45 I 03 T
3 2K B TR E A0 B i 1 17,585,0000T ©

AT Nl Pt AR 1% 9% 47 B4y

BE X —LEF A=t —HIEE
BE > 70,660,000/8 4 48 [ 75 LA AT i
5 I s 10,086 7017 1 A 3£70,660,000
1 WS REAR 84T > 5 JLHUS T 15 3H
R A9 156,077,000 0T ©

HE_F—-NANF+H=1+—H
1 4E 5 46,140,000 % % 28 B 7 LA
A7 (18 A I s #50. 107208 47 & 3t
46,140,000 i J1 HE 15 9547 > A L HL
A5 97 A5 3K TEL I BE A0 75 14,946,000 0T

BRERBEAERAT
—F—\EEH
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34.

27

RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements
therein for the current and prior years are presented in the
consolidated statement of changes in equity on page 127 of
the consolidated financial statements.

Share premium

Share premium represents premium arising from the issue of
shares at a price in excess of their par value. The application
of the share premium account is governed by the Companies
Law of the Cayman Islands.

Contributed surplus

Contributed surplus represents the amounts transferred from
share capital and share premium due to capital reorganisation
comprising the share consolidation, the capital reduction and
the share subdivision.

Pursuant to the special resolution passed in an extraordinary
general meeting (“EGM”) and special general meeting
(“SGM”) held on 24 April 2014 and 3 February 2016
respectively and took effect on 5 June 2014 and 4 February
2016, the directors were authorised to use HK$195,134,000
and HK$15,782,000 credit balances in the contribution
surplus account result from the reduction of the paid-up
capital of the Company to eliminating or setting off the
accumulated losses of the Company. Up to the year ended 31
December 2018, HK$210,916,000 (2017: HK$210,916,000)
credit balances in the contribution surplus account were used
to eliminate the accumulated losses of the Company.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

RESERVES (Continued) 34. flifh ()

Capital reserve

The capital reserve arises from (i) capitalisation of a loan
and represents the difference between the amount due to a
former beneficial shareholder capitalised and the nominal
value of shares; and (ii) the expiry of conversion option of
convertible bonds and warranty.

PRC statutory reserve

According to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC,
each of the PRC subsidiaries is required to appropriate
at least 10% of its after-tax profit, based on the PRC
statutory financial statements prepared in accordance with
the generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”)
and financial regulations applicable to PRC enterprises, to
the general reserve until the balance of the fund reaches
50% of the PRC subsidiary’s registered capital. Thereafter,
any further appropriation can be made at the directors’
discretion. The general reserve fund can be utilised to offset
the prior years’ losses, or be utilised to increase the capital
on the condition that the general reserve shall be maintained
at a minimum of 25% of the registered capital after such
increase.

Share options reserve

The share options reserve comprises the portion of the
grant date fair value of unexercised share options granted to
executive directors, employees and consultants of the Group
that has been recognised in accordance with the accounting
policy adopted for share-based payments.
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34.

27

RESERVES (Continued)
Foreign currency translation reserve

The foreign currency translation reserve comprises all
foreign exchange differences arising from the translation of
the financial statements of foreign operations.

Available-for-sale investment revaluation reserve

The reserve represents cumulative gains and losses arising
on the revaluation of available-for-sale investments that
have been recognised in other comprehensive income, net of
amount reclassified to profit or loss when those available-
for-sale investments are disposed of or are determined to be
impaired.

FVTOCI reserve

The reserve represents cumulate gains and losses arising on
revaluation of financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income that have been recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option
Scheme”) was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution
passed by the Company’s shareholders at the extraordinary
general meeting of the Company held on 30 September 2013.
Under the Share Option Scheme, the board of directors of the
Company may grant options to eligible persons, including
directors of the Company and its subsidiaries, to subscribe
for the shares.

The total number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all options which may be granted under the Share
Option Scheme and options which may be granted under any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not exceed
10% of the total number of shares in issue on 30 September
2013 unless the Company obtains a refresh approval from its
shareholders. Options lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme or any other share option schemes
of the Company under which such options are granted, as
the case may be, shall not be counted for the purpose of
calculating whether the limit has been exceeded.

The maximum number of shares which may be issued upon
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under the Share Option Scheme and options which
may be granted and yet to be exercised under any other share
option schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) shall not
exceed 30% of the total number of shares in issue from time
to time. No options may be granted under any share option
schemes of the Company (or the subsidiary) if this will result
in the limit being exceeded.

The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period
of ten years commencing from 30 September 2013.

3s.
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3s.

27

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
(Continued)

The subscription price in respect of any particular option
shall be such price as determined by the board of directors in
its absolute discretion at the time of the grant of the relevant
option but in any case the subscription price shall not be less
than the higher of (i) the closing price of the shares as stated
in the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the
date of grant, which must be a trading day; (ii) the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the daily quotations
sheets of the Stock Exchange for the five trading days
immediately preceding the date of grant; or (iii) the nominal
value of a share. The options must be taken up within 21
days from the date of grant upon payment of HK$1 and are
exercisable over a period to be determined and notified by
the directors to each grantee, which period may commence
from the date of acceptance of the offer of the grant of the
options but shall end in any event not later than ten years
from the date of adoption of the Share Option Scheme.

The purpose of the share option scheme is to encourage the
participants, including employees, business associates and
trustees, to perform their best in achieving the goals of the
Group and at the same time allow the participants to enjoy
the results of the Company attained through their efforts and
contributions and to provide the participants with incentives
and help the Company in retaining its existing employees
and recruiting additional employees.
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

35. Itk 5 (47)

(Continued)

No participant shall be granted an option if the total number
of shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the options
granted and to be granted (including both exercised and
outstanding options) in 12-month period up to and including
the date of grant to such participant would exceed 1% of the
shares for the time being in issue unless the proposed grant
has been approved by the shareholders in general meeting
with the proposed grantee and his associates abstaining from
voting. A circular must be sent to the shareholders of the
Company disclosing the identity of the proposed grantee, the
number and terms of the options granted and to be granted.

Where any grant of option is to a substantial shareholder
(as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) of the Company
or an independent non-executive Director or any of their
respective associates (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules)
and the proposed grant of option, when aggregated will result
in the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all
options already granted and to be granted (including options
exercised, cancelled and outstanding) to such person in the
12-month period up to and including the date of grant, (i)
representing in aggregate over 0.1% of the shares in issue;
and (ii) having an aggregate value, based on the closing
price of the shares at the date of each grant, in excess of
HK$5 million, then such proposed grant of option(s) must
be subject to approval by shareholders on a poll in a general
meeting where all connected persons (as defined in the GEM
Listing Rules) of the Company must abstain from voting in
favour at such general meeting (except where such connected
person(s) (as defined in the GEM Listing Rules) intend(s) to
vote against the proposed grant of option(s) and his intention
to do so has been stated in the circular).
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

28

(Continued)

Details of specific categories of the share options granted by

the Company are as follows:

Option type
i 2R

2016
“ERE

2017 April
e R

2017 November
e

Date of grant
il H

10 June 2016
“F-AEAATH

7 April 2017
“Z—-tENALR

21 November 2017
—F—tFEt+—-A=t—H

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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Exercise period

A7 B 3

10 June 2016 to
9 June 2017
ZE=REAATHZE
e

7 April 2017 to
6 April 2018
“E-LENALAR
ZE—/MEMHAH

21 November 2017 to
20 November 2018

3s.

Je oy A58 5k 22 5y ()

AN F AR I SBORE 2 e E U R A
L

Weighted average

fair value at

grant date

Exercise price R A2

FrBEfe  mbEF s A AL

HKS$ HK$

T T

0.1100 per share 0.04
B 150.11007C

0.1072 per share 0.02
5 50.10727C

0.0860 per share 0.02

15 1£0.08607C

e I e

“F =\t —HAZ+H



3s.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS 35. b pFak 2 5 (A)
(Continued)
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s T YR AN B RN AR AR NOR AR
share options during the current and prior year: FE 2 B R R s )
Outstanding Outstanding
Exercise asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat
Option price 1 January during during during 31 December
Name of Grantee Type Date of Grant Exercisable Period per share 2018 the year the year the year 2018
REZ-AE BB
A1 _ ESTESS
REAES TR Sl g fHiEMm TRt AL R L kR HAR
Directors:
Mr. N.g Man Chun Paul 2017 April 7 April 2017 7 April 2017 to HKSH 50,1072 7,690,000 - (7,690,00) - -
6 April 2018
ES /3 “R-tENA ZE-LENALH ZE-LENALRE
R VERARA
Mr. Ng Ting Ho 2017 April 7 April 2017 7 April 2017 to HKSHER0.10727 7,690,000 - (7.690.00) - -
6 April 2018
REHEE “E-LENA “E-LENALH “E-LEMALHE
- MENAAH
Sub-total 15,380,000 - (15,380,000) - -
AN
Employees 2017 April 7 April 2017 7 April 2017 to HKSHEH0.107278 7,690,000 - (7,690,000) - -
6 April 2018
B8 “E-LEMA “E-LEMALR “E-tENALRE
ZE-NERARH
2017 November 21 November 2017 21 November 2017 to HKSHH0.08607C - - - - -

20 November 2018
e s Ao BT S e b B B 7 e R R

“EMEF-ATER
Sub-total 7,690,000 - (7,690,000) - -
Y
Other eligible persons:
Al EAL:
Consultants 2017 April 7 April 2017 7 April 2017 to HKSHEH0.10727¢ 30,760,000 - (7,690,000) (23,070,000) -
6 April 2018
B “E-LENA “E-LEMALH “E-LEMALHE
“Z-NEMAAH
2017 November 21 November 2017 21 November 2017 to HKSIEA0.03607C - - - - -
20 November 2018
I B I S o | e e i B g
e SN ol e
Directors of a subsidiary 2017 April 7 April 2017 7 April 2017 to HKSHH0.10727¢ 15,380,000 - (15,380,000) - -
6 April 2018
il Yk £ ZE-LENA ZE-LENALH ZE-LEMALRE
“E-AERARA
2017 November 21 November 2017 21 November 2017 to HKSHH0.08607C - - - - -

20 November 2018
B o R I S et e B St i etk

- MEF-AZFH
Sub-total 46,140,000 - (23,070,00) (23,070,00) -
It
Total 69,210,000 - (46,140,000) (23,070,000) -
i
Weighted average exercse price METH T E HKSIEH0.10727C - HsiRolnE  HKSERO.072C -
Exercisable at the end of the year RERT P 69,210,000 -
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Name of Grantee

RS
Directors:

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
[3¢/3i

Mr. Ng Ting Ho
SR

Sub-total

i

Employees

[E8

Sub-total

NGt
Other eligible persons:

KA EHAL:
Consultants

@M

Directors of a subsidiary

WA

Sub-total

i
Total

i

Weighted average exercise price
Exercise at the end of the year

Option
Type

LG

2017 Apiil
ZF- LA
2017 April

“F-Lm

2017 April
“E-tENA
2017 November

A

2017 April
“F-tEmA
2017 November
“E-bE-A
2017 Apiil
ZF-tEmA
2017 November

A

MiEr R
R I

Date of Grant

pELE]

7 April 2017
“R-LENALA
7 April 2017
“E-LEMALH

7 April 2017
“E-tENALA
21 November 2017

ZE-tE-ASE-R

7 April 2017
“E-LEMALH

21 November 2017
ZFtEt-AZt-R
7 April 2017
“R-LENALA

21 November 2017

i

Exercisable Period

A

7 April 2017 to
6 April 2018
ZE-LENALRE
“E-AENARA
7 April 2017 to
6 April 2018
“E-LEMALHE
“F-AENARH

7 April 2017 to
6 April 2018
“E-tENALRE
“E-ERARHE
21 November 2017 to
20 November 2018
“RLEE-A-t-E
I S i ]

7 April 2017 to
6 April 2018
CE-LERALHE
“Z-NEMAARHE
21 November 2017 to
20 November 2018
s I 1
e SiX. 2 o et o
7 April 2017 to
6 April 2018
ZE-LEMALAE
“E-NERARA
21 November 2017 to
20 November 2018
I S v 1 e I
R MEF-A 2
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Exercise
price

per share
et

HKSH 50,1072

HKSHH0.10727¢

HKSH 50,1072

HKS1E H0.08607C

HKSHH0.10727¢

HKS1 H0.08607C

HKSHE 50,1072

HKSHEH0.08607C

35. It flsk 2 5 (4)

Outstanding Outstanding
asat Granted Exercised Lapsed asat

1 January during during during 31 December
2017 the year the year the year 2017
REZ—LH [ S S
-1 LeUEr
HAT R Rt KR HAR
- 7,690,000 - - 7,690,000

- 7,690,000 - - 7,690,000

- 15,380,000 - - 15,380,000

- 15,380,000 - (7,690,000) 7,690,000

- 38,410,000 (38,410,000) - -

- 53,790,000 (38,410,000) (7,690,000) 7,690,000

- 30,760,000 - - 30,760,000

- 19,970,000 (19,970,000) - -

- 15,380,000 - - 15,380,000

- 12,280,000 (12,280,000) - -

- 78,390,000 (32,250,000) - 46,140,000

- 147,560,000 (70,660,000) (7,690,000) 69,210,000

- HKSER009TC  HKSIEB00860 HRSER0.10720  HKIEHS0.107270

- 69,210,000
— —
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

35. Itk 5 (47)

(Continued)

No share option (2017: 147,560,000) was granted under the
Share Option Scheme during the year ended 31 December
2018. Out of the share options granted in 2017, 46,140,000
(2017: 70,660,000) share options has been exercised during
the year ended 31 December 2018.

As at 31 December 2018, the number of shares in respect of
which options had been granted and remained outstanding
under the Share Option Scheme was Nil (2017: 69,210,000).

The fair value of the share options granted to employees
and directors was determined using the Binomial Model.
Where relevant, the expected life used in the model has
been adjusted based on management’s best estimate for the
effects of non-transferability, exercise restrictions (including
the probability of meeting market conditions attached to the
option), and behavioural considerations. Expected volatility
is based on the historical volatility of the Company’s share
price, adjusted for any expected changes to future volatility
based on publicly available information.

The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The value of an option varies with different
variables of certain subjective assumptions.

F 4 A A T — E
H =+ — H 1k 4F AR bR A I RE St
# P (F L4 147,560,000
By) 5 B B — LA B 0 B RE
H > 46,140,000 ( =% — L 4F
70,660,00017 ) i B HE it & &
—/E+ - A=+—HILFEEC#
Ao

W oE—-NFE+ _H=+—H-FA
I L I3 P E 2 B A O I 3
CLZ Hh B R AT 2 B P E o 5
(=& —+L4:69,210,000/%) °

1] B B S5 i 1) B RO RE 2 A
{E )5 % TR R 18 7 o R A B 1 DL
o B R A 2 AR AR BB
B L S A T AT R (2
53 B W JCRE i W 22 i S e A 22 T
REVE) BAT 2 R Ry B 2 I A T
VB H 88 o T W G K A AR 2
PAAE 22 B AR 0 - ST AR 2 B P 45
R 355 AT T oA A T 0 90 ) A O
# o

at O PBCE % R AE B B i R
Ti4EE R R T AR o 1 A
AR T EB R 2 A &
G

BREMREGIRAT
- :i@?f}\ﬂféiﬁ 283



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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35. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS

(Continued)

Inputs into the model

Grant date share price £ A A
Exercise price Tl

Expected volatility TE R
Exercise multiple GREEE
Risk-free interest rate Ao L o 1) 3
Expected dividend yield FEE 5

3s.

Option type
i 2 R
2017 April
e S g
A

HKS$ #0.10607C
HKS #0.10727C

54.57%
1.6-2.47
0.67%
0%

Options granted are fully vested at the date of grant. During
the year ended 31 December 2017, equity-settled share-based
payments to employees (including directors) of the Group
of approximately HK$2,109,000 has been included as an
expense in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2017, the corresponding amount of which has been credited
to share options reserve (Note 34). No liabilities were
recognised on the equity-settled share-based payment

transactions.

Share options granted to suppliers of service amounted
to approximately HK$1,095,000 has been included in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income for the year ended 31 December
2017, the corresponding amount of which has been credited
to share options reserve. The Company measures the fair
value of share options granted to consultant by reference to

the fair values of services rendered.

The total consideration received during the year ended 31
December 2017 from grant of share options amounted to

HK$21.

All share options have been accounted for under HKFRS 2.
The share options outstanding as at 31 December 2017 had
a weighted average remaining contractual life of 0.26 years.

No share options were outstanding at 31 December 2018.
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Je oy A58 5k 22 5y ()

iy A\ B 2 % R}

Option type Option type
Ji I E 2 13 Ji I E 2 1)
2017 November 2016

“E—LE
A SR
HKS$#10.08600C  HK$##0.11007C
HKS$#10.08600C  HK$¥##0.11007C
64.16% 116.88%
2.86-3.33 1.6-2.47
0.9% 0.35%
0% 0%

W HE N AR - B2
SE—bE+ A=+ —HILE
JE mALEES (BFEF) /il
1A %52.109,0007C LA B HES5 3B 2 B
AR EERSB XA E %
—tiEF A=+ B IHEEZ %
AR 25 M H A A T 0k gk > ABE 4
FHEFT A B (P 5E34) - DA
JBEHE & L 2 I AsF 3K 58 S AR 4 e 2
B Ao

I 5 6 IR 3 452 1 2 S S E 40 s T
#1,095,0000CE FFARE —~F—+L
HE+ A=+ HILEEZEZ4E
i R HAb A R > MBS D
FEA B ERE A - AN R 2 F TR
it 22 MRBS 2N FeAE (E DA ST & ) R 4%
W B FUE(E -

wEE - F—-tFEL HA=1+—H
1A B > BB S R R iR 2 AR
RAE 4 %8 B s 2100 -

o A S PSR 2 R 7 s 5 o e
HISE2BE A MR o =& — L4+ =
H =4 —H > WRAT 2 M B HE B
AT HEF- 25 90 B 5 4 4F 110,26 4F
B FE - NEFZH =+ —H o #
0 1) SR AT {2 S ABCAE o



36.

PENSION SCHEMES

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

36. BIKEFE

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefits scheme (the “MPF
Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes
Ordinance for all its eligible employees in Hong Kong.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to profit or loss
as they become payable in accordance with the rules of
the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme are held
separately from those of the Group in an independently
administered fund. The Group’s employer contributions vest
fully with the employees when contributed into the MPF
Scheme.

The employees of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries are
required to participate in a central defined contribution
pension scheme operated by the local municipal government.
The PRC subsidiaries are required to contribute a percentage
of its payroll costs to the central pension scheme. The
central pension scheme is responsible for the entire pension
obligations payable to all retired employees and the Group
has no further obligations for the pension payments on post-
retirement benefits beyond the monthly contributions.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, defined
contribution retirement benefits expenses of approximately
HK$824,000 (2017: HK$610,000) was recognised in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income.

AR AR 58 ] 0 R e w1 - A AR
V5 2 A o 5 R MR R L E
R T A < 2B R AR A
([@Emgertd ) o SR BA B iR
BEARFEZ K —ATWEE R
R S < ) 2 R R AT Hy 4R
f FIBR o A B B 2 E R ) BLA
S B 2 B oy B > bl L B
R o A SR 18 2 M 5 4 SORE 2 %
o A < w0 L B 2 S
B 5 -

AR ) o B s ) 2 R B2 2 B
77 T U A B rp e A OB
PR o v [ BB 24 W) ZE ) v iR
RETEVE B A — T o ez
fEFe o AR IR 3B A EAT T A
BIRE B 2 2R R & AT A
5 W bR i A IO > B2 AR IR AR
A M) R 388 AR AR B FAT:

g2 _F-NF+_H=+—H
1R AR B 2 B A ORI R B S2 &Y
#HE824,0007C ( ~F —L4E 1
610,000 ) £ R 2 45 A 8 45 M H
4 THT U £ 7% o

BRSMBREERAD
R Nram 28D



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

37.

28

CAPITAL MANAGEMENT

The Group’s objectives when managing capital are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern
and to maximise the return to the shareholders through the
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.

The Group sets the amount of capital in proportion to
risk. The Group manages the capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in the light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the underlying
assets. In order to maintain or adjust the capital structure,
the Group may adjust the payment of dividends, issue new
shares, buy-back shares, raise new debts, redeem existing
debts or sell assets to reduce debts. The Group’s overall
strategy remains unchanged from prior year.

A subsidiary of the Group is licensed with SFC for the
business it operates in. The Group’s licensed subsidiary is
subject to liquid capital requirements under Securities and
Futures (Financial Resources) Rules (“SF(FR)R”) adopted
by the SFC. Under SF(FR)R, the licensed subsidiary must
maintain a liquid capital (assets and liabilities adjusted as
determined by SF(FR)R) in excess of HK$3 million or 5% of
its total adjusted liabilities, whichever is higher. Management
closely monitors, on a daily basis, the liquid capital level
of the licensed subsidiary to ensure compliance with the
requirements under the SF(FR)R.

The Group monitors capital on the basis of the gearing ratio.
As part of this review, the Group considers the cost of capital
and the risks associated with each class of capital.
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37. EAEM

ACAR FE PUE AT R 2 PR A AR
A ACE R BE > R R
B SLAE 25 B0 1 - 2% R A A
[B] 4% o

A B2 1 )7 g JEU B LA S o AN
A 4 FAR 9 56 PR D 1Y AL S A
B Y L B R RO B R R I
1 R B S o 2 ME R B R B A
SRR - A A AT 9 R R R - B
A7 R R~ B[] A 47y ~ 58 R R S
S ) B A MR e DA Bl D
B o A SR B B 25 AR 2 R A AR e A
FpA 5

AR 2 — [E B A R R e
BN S Y S AR
Z 35 WAL JE N D ZE A SF R B e 4R
Mz e (MBUE ) #A)
([SF(FR)R J) TH T Z Jii 8) & < #
7E o M 8 SF(FR)R » £ 8 B 8§ 2> ]
ZEAERR A 15 63,000,000 70 B H 5%
PR AERRE 5% (LM E 5
W) BN E S (EE RAMIIR
PESF(FR)RE & & %) - E Mg &
H % ) B 545 W0 I /) 2 I B i
&KV #ELR AT A SF(FR)RIE T 2
BE o

AL R AR EA
VR 7 BRI — B0 2% AL B R
AR A B R B BEL 5 AR S A
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CAPITAL MANAGEMENT (Continued) 37. BRI (4)
Gearing ratio HE AR
The gearing ratio at the end of the reporting period was as RHERZ EEAMLRNT
follows:
2018 2017

B -N\E “Z—-LF
HK$’000 HK$’000
wWTo B TT

Debts BHs - -
Equity (Note) FREHE (B 5E) 243,416 277,735
Gearing ratio HEARILE NAREH  N/AAEH
Note: [t 5E -

Equity includes all capital and reserve attributable to owners of the JIHE A0 4% BT A e AS KA 2w R N TREA £t
Company. i o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

#n & B 5 $R R BT sE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 38. &t T H

38.1 4k T HH R

38.1 Categories of financial instruments

28

Financial assets 4 393
2018 2017
RN E L
HK$’000 HK$’000
BT T
Fair value through profit or loss %2\ A& (H 71 A 18 7
(FVTPL): (T EF AR 7 ) -
Mandatorily measured at FVTPL i il #% 2\ 7 (8 (6 7 A 18 ¢ il %2
Held for trading FEEE 24,831 14,983
Loans and receivables: B R E N IEH
Other assets HoAh & 3,167 12,412
Trade receivables JFEE AT B K 17,516 22,457
Loans and interest receivables JRE Wi Bk K A S 87,421 96,980
Deposits and other receivables Fi 4 I F At 1R ik A
(included in financial assets) (FFA 4 Ril&E =) 8,241 13,763
Trust bank accounts fERERITIRF 22,996 28,954
Cash and cash equivalents e kfla%EE 68,576 94,293
Investments #"HE
Financial assets at fair value Fie s FUAEAE R HoAth 2 T
through other comprehensive W A 2 4 & A
income 7,125 -
Available-for-sale investment CIRESRE =y - 25,947
Financial liabilities & A
Financial liabilities at amortised — #4185 K 7K 71 2 2 % fill
cost: =F &
Financial liabilities included in A MEAH R K L Al 18 £+F
trade and other payables I 2 4 A R 35,309 34,791
Amount due to a joint venture WA — [R] 5 %8 A 26 2 3KOH 56 -
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)

38.2 BA s L BE AF P H A K R

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

The Group’s major financial instruments include
financial assets at fair value through profit or loss,
other assets, trade receivables, loans and interest
receivables, deposits and other receivables, trust bank
accounts, cash and cash equivalents, available-for-
sale investments, financial assets at fair value through
other comprehensive income, trade and other payables,
amount due to a joint venture. Details of these financial
instruments are disclosed in the respective notes. The
risks associated with these financial instruments include
market risk (currency risk, interest rate risk and other
price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The policies
on how to mitigate these risks are set out below. The
management of the Group manages and monitors
these exposures to ensure appropriate measures are
implemented on a timely and effective manner.

There has been no change to the types of the Group’s
exposure in respect of financial instruments or the
manner in which it manages and measures the risks.

AEH 2z EEE M T QR
AR BEEF ABRSE Z &M
B b E - B OR R
B A e LU~ 4 s T At
JE WSO ~ {5 RERAT IR ~
& MBEFEER - At g
P& BN R EER A A4
T Wi 4 2 < O~ R AN MR K
Je oA A 3R~ BE AT — ) &
B2 I o %5 i TR
A 175 17 D 0 A 48 i o B R%
S 4 T B A B A JE B AL 4
T35 Ja B (6 LR > M) 3R
Bax B F A B A% Ja By )~ 15 £
o K 7L B8 L < g < A ] e
e AR 5% 55 JL B 19 BOR R
SC o A [ A5 B I A P I W
%4 JE R - HREOR B R A RO BR
Y3 i i -

A A3 2] A0 < il R T 6 2 L B
S Bl HL A R L A 5 5 gt
7 5 e 5y o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

38.2.1 Market risk

29

Foreign currency risk management

Transactional currency exposures arise from
revenue or cost of sales by operating units
in currencies other than the unit’s functional
currency. Substantially all the Group’s revenue
and cost of sales are denominated in the functional
currency of the operating units making the
revenue, and substantially all the cost of sales are
denominated in the operating unit’s functional
currency. Accordingly, the directors consider that
the Group is not exposed to significant foreign
currency risk. The Group currently does not have
a foreign currency hedging policy. However, the
management monitors foreign exchange exposure
and will consider hedging significant foreign
currency exposure should the need arise.

Interest rate risk management

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes
in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Group’s interest-bearing financial assets and
financial liabilities. The Group are exposed to
cash flow interest rate risk in relation to variable-
rates bank deposits and fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed rate loans receivables. The
directors continues to monitor the interest rate
exposure of the Group.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)

38.2 BA s L BE AF P H A K R

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued) (#5)
38.2.1 Market risk (Continued) 3821707 53 ) B (#E)
Interest rate risk management (Continued) U 3 i P (A
All of the Group’s loans receivables are based AL [ BT A R R

on fixed interest rates with original maturities
in range of 6 to 300 months (2017: 12 to 300
months). The Group prices these loans receivables
strategically to reflect market fluctuations and
achieve a reasonable interest-rate spread.

The fixed rate instruments of the Group are
insensitive to any change in market interest rates.

Changes in market interest rates may affect the
Group’s securities margin financing business
and the Group mitigates this risk by revising the
margin financing rate as and when appropriate.

Interest rates on bank deposits are relatively low
and not expected to change significantly.

Management does not anticipate significant
impact on interest-bearing financial assets resulted
from the changes in interest rates and considers
the risk is insignificant to the Group.

The Group consider the cash flow interest rate
risk relating to its variable rate bank borrowing is
insignificant and therefore sensitivity analysis has
not been presented.

] 72 A 2R T 4h 2] A A
FR 5 F6Z 30010 H (—
E—LF 1223001
H) o A 55 B A SR m H 2
w25 BB OB > LR
B T 35 U B A B A A
) ) % 2 o

A AR 2 [ E A R T A
S5 7 45 B A 2 AT o] 52 )
A R @

35 A R AL B B AR
4 B 2 W5 I AR e
SEWS > AL EB R AR
8O0 S PR R e
bt =R & % I R g

HRAT A7 3 2 P AR K
A& A E RS -

LT > M AR N
R e E A
EPN 2 B V)0
A B2 B T DO 29 o

A 4R R A A BRI B AR
i Bl i B M
JER B EL 0 > R LI A 2 51
R E 3 #r
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

38.2.1 Market risk (Continued)

29

Interest rate risk management (Continued)

The Group currently does not have an interest
rate hedging policy. However, the management
monitors interest rate exposure and will consider
hedging significant interest rate exposure should
the need arise.

Other price risks

The Group is exposed to equity price risk mainly
through its investment in listed equity securities.
The management manages this exposure by
maintaining a portfolio of investments with
different risk and return profiles. In addition, the
Group has appointed a team to monitor the price
risk and will consider hedging the risk exposure
should the need arise.

Equity price sensitivity analysis

The sensitivity analyses below have been
determined based on the exposure to equity price
risk at the end of the reporting period.

If equity prices had been 15% higher/lower (2017:
15% higher/lower):

. post-tax loss for the year ended 31
December 2018 would decrease/increase by
HK$3,110,000 (2017: HK$1,877,000). This
is mainly due to the changes in fair value of
held-for-trading equity investments.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)

38.2 BA s L BE AF P H A K R

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued) (#4E)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment 38.2.2 1 B b B PE I 0wk A 7F
assessment 1
At 31 December 2018, the Group’s maximum wox—- NE+ - H

exposure to credit risk which will cause a financial
loss to the Group due to failure to discharge an
obligation by the counterparties are arising from
the carrying amounts of the respective recognised
financial assets as stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position.

For the credit sales of goods to customers, the
Group has concentration of credit risk as the
top 5 credit sales customers from continuing
operations related to agricultural business and
accounted for approximately 30% (2017: 24%) of
the Group’s trade receivables as at 31 December
2018. Management has a credit policy in place and
the exposures to these credit risks are monitored
on an ongoing basis. Regular review and follow
up actions are carried out on overdue amounts
to minimise the Group’s exposure to credit risk.
An aging analysis of the debtors is prepared on a
regular basis and is closely monitored to minimise
any credit risk associated with these debtors.

=t— El AL H A %
A1 R JRUBS b FR e 2
7 AR RRIEAT BAT » R
T AR AR [ A0 5 M 4R
Jis 8 AR AR A BB
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

29

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

In respect of trade receivables arising from
financial services business, the Group has
delegated a team responsible for determination
of trading limits, trading approvals and other
monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover outstanding balances.
In addition, the Group reviews the recoverable
amount of each individual receivable at the end of
each of reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment losses are made for irrecoverable
amounts. Margin calls are made when the
outstanding balances due from clients exceed their
respective limits with consideration of the quality,
liquidity and price volatility of individual stock,
and the transaction history and credibility of the
clients. Failure to meet margin calls may result in
the prohibition of further purchase of securities or
liquidation of the client’s positions on a case-by—
case basis.

In addition, the Group performs impairment
assessment under ECL model upon application of
HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss model) on trade
receivables and loan and interest receivables
individually or based on provision matrix.
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)

38.2 BA s L BE AF P H A K R

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued) (#4E)
38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment 38.2.2 1 B b B PE I 0wk A 7F
assessment (Continued) 1 (#)

For deposits and other receivables, trust bank
account and bank balances, the Group performs
impairment assessment under ECL model
application of HKFRS 9 (2017: incurred loss
model) based on 12 month ECL.

The credit risk on deposit and other receivables
is limited because the counterparties have no
historical default record and the directors expect
that the general economic conditions will not
significantly changed for the 12 months after the
reporting date.

The credit risk on trust bank account and bank
balances are limited because the counterparties
are banks with high credit ratings assigned by
international credit-rating agencies.

S 4% 4 - H A R UK
R RESRATIR P M &
LB A EEE > AL
AR AR 7 i T 5 i o v L
o9t 2 TMIE B R AR
AR (ZF L4 2
7 AR s R F2 1208 A
T A5 s RO 1T BU(E
il o

$ 4 B HoAth i I 2
A BERBR A FR > Jit R
J7 M A A 7 A R Bk H
EESERIEY RN
J R B AR 1248 A
A B E R -

A REMATHR 7 S 4R A7 46
ik 2 5 BB A R > SR
27 ¥ 1 B R AR BT
AT 5 B R
8T

BREMREGIRAT
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

The Group’s internal credit risk grading

assessment comprises the following categories:

Internal credit rating

7R AT
Low risk

1R /e b

Watch list

i3

-y
Doubtful

s

Loss

e 15
Write-off

s

29
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Description

L

The counterparty has a low risk of default and
does not have any past-due amounts

78 5 61 70 W) 2 A A+ Ll AT e 50K

Debtor frequently repays after due dates but
usually settle after due date

(EBS N 72 B0 B AR (R B F AR A

There have been significant increases in credit risk
since initial recognition through information
developed internally or external resources

A0 70 A BRSO R AR B A R - )RR
DUASf £ B S5 3

There is evidence indicating the asset is credit-impaired

A RN A B OB R B

There is evidence indicating that the debtor is in
serious financing difficulty and the Group has
no realistic prospect of recovery
A R SR FRUBE A B A B T RS R EL A S
Nl Ay FA T Wi o] A B 08

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

38. &t TH (4)

38.2 BA s L BE AF P H A K R
(#)

38.2.2 5 B8 B £ PE T ik 1 77
1% (4F)

A 45 W A B B
AR TG L AE LU B -

Other financial assets/
other items

Jft R A/ HBEA

Trade receivables/
contract assets

VB3 /7 0 ¥

Lifetime ECL - not credit-  12-month ECL
impaired

FFEMEINGE SRR 1200 7 BNGE SR
A5 B HE

Lifetime ECL - not credit-
impaired

FEEEHEEEH-RE REARHNGEEER
AR A

12-month ECL

Lifetime ECL - not credit—
impaired

Lifetime ECL - not credit-
impaired

T BTG Bl — R T RUNEUNGE R - K%
G A

Lifetime ECL - credit- Lifetime ECL - credit-

impaired impaired
FHRAMBMEEBER-C® AN EER-C %
e B AR BB

Amount is written off Amount is written off

i A7 B 3 HiHs A B 2
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(Continued)
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

The tables below detail the major credit risk
exposures of the Group’s financial assets, which

are subject to ECL assessment:

2018

-\

Financial assets at

amortised cost

5 B 0 R A B W 1 46z o 6

Loans and interest
receivables

e B 3 B R

Trust bank account

(CEi: o

Bank balances

WITHif

Note

27

29

29

External credit
rating

hb i A e A

N/A
TR

N/A
R

AA+

Internal
credit rating

oL
R

Low risk

K B

Watch list
32

Doubtful
i

Loss

L

Low risk

{1907

N/A
AHEL

38. & T H (#)

38.2 BA s L BE AF P H A K R
(#5)

38.2.2 5 B8 B £ PE T ok 1 77
1 (#E)

2R R O T A
Jis 18 AT A B A 4 1 4
A T il ) E A

12-month or lifetime ECL

B

Gross carrying amount

121 H S 7 0 B 5 B0 4R Vi Tl 480
HK$’000 HK$°000
W T BWT T
12-month ECL 37414
121/ A EM A $h i 4
12-month ECL 44,871
121/ A B A $h i 4
Lifetime ECL 5,136
(not credit impaired)
B ENG B R
CREEfE B HE)
Credit-impaired 6,907 94,328
[ o e
12-month ECL 22,996 22,996
121/ A B 5 Sl
12-month ECL 68,576 68,576
1248 7 T B s 1R
BREMBEBRA

:n—}\ﬂfiiﬁ
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)
38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 BA %R B 4S PR H A K BUR
(Continued) (#)
38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment 38.2.2 17 B b B PR Je 0wk A 7T
assessment (Continued) 14 (#)

External credit  Internal

2018 Note rating credit rating 12-month or lifetime ECL Gross carrying amount
i
~F- )\ i ik ShERGE RS AL 1218 A A7 0 B £ 4 I T 440
HK$’000 HKS$’000
BT HEHT T
Deposit and 28 N/A Low risk 12-month ECL 8,241 8,241
other receivables A 1% /2B 126 A B S E
e T H A RE R
Trade receivables — 26 N/A (Note 1) Lifetime ECL (provision matrix) 3,674
agricultural and A (HEL) AU B SR
other business (B f A )
B MCHR 3 — R 3 B L M s
Watch list 12-month ECL 9,328
BRAE BN BER
Loss Credit-impaired 6,566 19,568
i CRAEE BB
Trade receivables — 26 N/A Watch list Lifetime ECL 1,966
financial services business Nl HRAE (not credit impaired)
JHE MR — R S RN BER
(R W)
Doubtful Lifetime ECL 35 2,001
pea 3 (not credit impaired)
FAMBEMEEER
(RBEFEHE)
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment

assessment (Continued)

Note:

For trade receivables, other than agricultural business
and financial services business, the Group has applied
the simplified approach in HKFRS 9 to measure the
loss allowance at lifetime ECL. Except for debtors with
credit-impaired, the Group determines the expected
credit losses on these items by using a provision matrix,

grouped by past due status.

As part of the Group’s credit risk management, the
Group uses debtors’ aging to assess the impairment
for its customers in relation to provision food and
beverage of services, alcoholic beverage distribution and
provision of children education services because these
customers consist of a large number of small customers
with common risk characteristics that are representative
of the customers’ abilities to pay all amounts due in
accordance with the contractual terms. The following
table provides information about the exposure to credit
risk for trade receivables which are assessed based on
provision matrix as at 31 December 2018 within lifetime
ECL (not credit impaired).

38. &R TH (&

)

38.2 BA s L BE AF P H A K R

(%)

38.2.2 5 B8 B £ PE T ok 1 77
1 (#E)

B

BRERBEAERAT
—F—\EEH

B B T EWGR AT
(B 25 I < b e 5
BN > AL E RN &
A s RSB 9 BE Y
i &5 77 i vt O A 0
TS A 2 s R 5 o
W HL A 5 45 B (E 2 ik
M R Ah - A AR F 0 g
YT 51K 58 S AL Y 6 A1 E B
filf 5 w2 SF U H RO T
HEiA -

15 A% 4R A5 4% L B
L — ARy R R
S SRR PN
7] Ja\ B 5 R N R
&% 55 B 9 = e % P
MR & #9 AR T A
ERIRE ) > A AR
P YD R o R AR B
2 fit B ORI B -
AR 20 8 % i i S
HE MBI ER 2
Wi T REMR FE
— 4+ ZA=+—H
T A 8 A 2 I 15 A 4R
TAI R B2 935 4 A AT il 19
A7 15 OB A IR 5 TR 3 9 £
P2 Bz R (Sl £
R -

299



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REAMERARME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

38.

30

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies
(Continued)

38.2.2 Credit risk management and impairment
assessment (Continued)

Note: (Continued)

1. (Continued)

Current (not past due) B (e sm )
1 — 90 days past due i 1% 90H

More than 90 days past due  #@HI90H LI I

The estimated loss rates are estimated based on
historical observed default rates over the expected
life of the debtors and are adjusted for forward-
looking information that is available without undue
cost or effort. The grouping is regularly reviewed by
management to ensure relevant information about
specific debtors is updated.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, no
impairment allowance on trade receivables is provided
based on the provision matrix.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

38. &t TH (4)

38.2 BA s L BE AF P H A K R

(%)

38.2.2 5 B8 B £ PE T ik 1 77

1 (4 )
Bff sk o (4F)
(#4F)
Average Trade
loss rate receivables
RECE P R W R 7K
HK$’000
T
0.1% 1,292
0.5% 1,674
1.0% 708
3,674

it 51 i 18 3 77 45 AR 3R
WA R BB EY
A 3 e T AT 2
JIC A B 55 Ty B AT A 9 T
W A AR e A R AR A
FHETAS o A B ALY E
S oy L A B LA
TRAT B 2 IR BB R T
iR

A E = A
AH=+—HILFEE I
S R A 8 A 2 I 4
WM 3 2 T A A
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)

38.2 Financial risk management objectives and policies 38.2 [0 R\ B B H A R BUR
(Continued) (#4E)

38.2.3 Liquidity risk management 3823 Ui B & & bE B P

Ultimate responsibility for liquidity risk
management rests with the board of directors,
which has built an appropriate liquidity risk
management framework to meet the Group’s
short, medium and long-term funding and liquidity
management requirements.

The Group’s policy is to regularly monitor current
and expected liquidity requirements to ensure that
it maintains sufficient reserves of cash to meet its
liquidity requirements in the short and long term.

The following table details, the maturity profile
of the Group’s financial liabilities at the end of
the reporting period, based on the contractual
undiscounted payments. Bank borrowings with a
repayment of demand clause are included in the
“On demand or less than 1 year” time band in the
maturity analysis.

RIS B E &
B B 2 AT HE
SR BALE A - P
kEMEEXREE®
EHM&REL-EES
< WL B BAE

e

AL 2 BUK o B
W) T R TE B B A
Z iR WEAR AR A
Z B ERE R K&
REARBESEZH
sk o

RS A B R R
R AR IR 5 40 R B BLEK
JH iR A
o B R ZOR R AR
ZSRAT AR BGRTAE W
b 2 T ZOR 8D it
AF | R[] B o

Effective Total
average On demand contractual Total
interest or less than undiscounted carrying
rate 1 year Over 1 year cash flows amounts
RERT BEBAND
AT H% DRI ERLE ReieE IRmA(E
HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS’000 HK$'000
T BT HEHT T
At 31 December 2018 REZ-AETZA
=t-H
Non-derivative financial liabilities — Ffi7F # A £
Trade and other payables MR ILMERNFE  NATE 35,309 - 35,309 35,309
Amount due to a joint venture TER—MH A8 hE 2R 56 - 56 56
35,365 - 35,365 35,365
At 31 December 2017 REF—L4
FoASF R
Non-derivative financial liabilities ~ # /7% £ A A 7
Trade and other payables FEf st RLMIER O NARHE 34,791 - 34,791 34,791

BREMREGIRAT
- :i@?f}\ﬂféiﬁ 30]—
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)
38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Fair value hierarchy

Financial assets included in Level 1 115105 — @k 2 & Fl & &
AN REEF ARG Z 4G R

Financial assets at fair value

through profit or loss (Note 23B) (P 5E23B)

Financial assets included in level 2 €115 55 )@k 2 & Fl & &
N REERT AR 45 2 & g E

Financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss (Note 23B)
Available-for-sale investment
(Note 23A)

(FftEE23B)

Financial assets at FVTOCI
G A

During the years ended 31 December 2018 and 2017,
there were no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3.

The fair value of financial instruments traded in active
markets is based on quoted market prices at the end of
the reporting period. A market is regarded as active if
quoted prices are readily and regularly available from
an exchange, dealer, broker, industry group, pricing
service, or regulatory agency, and those prices represent
actual and regularly occurring market transactions on
an arm’s length basis. The quoted market price used for
financial assets held by the Group is the quoted market
bid price. These instruments are included in level 1.

30 China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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38.

Al it B E (B EE23A)

e T H (4)

38.3 &k TH2Z A R EME &

IR ZEE G B AT E [ &
il B R 2 A AT

A B FF A A A T i 28 2

2\ A (5 {5
2018 2017
ZE—NE O F L
HK$’000 HK$’000
T ou T oo
24,101 14,223
730 760
- 7,188
7,125 -

BE X N\FLR-F—LF
+ A=+ —HIEFEE S i
B B AR R S
% FH] ) RS o

RERTSHE &M TR
KN SEE TSR s R 2
U AR B o ik A T o
TE W 2 5 BT~ KESH T~ #E
AL AT SESE T I A R 5
AR o T a% S5 R S W
PR 5 B 0P IR R T 2 A2
Gy > w4 3 RIAR I 3 B o A 4R
B R AT 2 b Bl A BT 2 T
S8 By i S H A - 2%
TH AL AE S — g &) o
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

38.3 &t T HZ A REMEGE

(Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are measured at fair value on a recurring basis
(Continued)

The fair value of financial instruments that are not
traded in an active market (for example, over-the-
counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the
use of observable market data where it is available and
rely as little as possible on entity specific estimates.
If all significant inputs required to fair value an
instrument are observable, the instrument is included in
level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on
observable market data, the instrument is included in
level 3.

(#)

IR G B AT E [ 2
il R s LA . 2 T I 1
(#)

ﬁ#%ﬁ%m%ﬁgzéﬂi

(W3 AT T H) Z 8
ﬁﬁﬁ@ﬁﬁﬁﬁ%%m 2
LAl (B 7 a5 0 (0 A 2 mp
BETH 5 BE > A B UK
BREEBE S - M TEZ
N BB FTT 2 T A KA
BRI T Bl HIA B LR
FLIE N B -

ik — JH a2k 22 TH # R i A B
JE LT Bl T S R 2 A%
A B TR AR =gk -

masHENRRLS 303
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

30

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

(Continued)

Fair value of financial assets and financial liabilities
that are carried at other than fair value

The directors consider that the carrying amounts of
the Group’s and the Company’s financial assets and
liabilities carried at cost or amortised cost are not
materially different from their fair values as at 31
December 2018 and 2017.

Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting

The disclosures set out in the tables below include
financial assets and financial liabilities that are subject
to an enforceable master netting arrangement or similar
agreement.

Under the agreement of continuous net settlement made
between the Group and Hong Kong Securities Clearing
Company Limited (“HKSCC”), the Group has a legally
enforceable right to set off the money obligations
receivable and payable with HKSCC on the same
settlement date and the Group intends to settle on a net
basis. In addition, the Group has a legally enforceable
right to set off the trade receivable from and payables to
cash clients that are due to be settled on the same date
and the Group intends to settle these balances on a net
basis.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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38. &t TH (&)

38.3 &t T HZ A REMEGE

(#)

O TAE (LIS 71 2 2l &
ERZ A S A E

R S AN AR B B AR A R A
A o B A TR 2 B A
FE N B 2 B (B L
F— /ER F—HEF A
=t—RZAnMEEEER
o

<2 B B A 1 B

AR PR R LA A A o
AT R A T2 R OB T
IR PR 2 4 il <l B

EEO
=

HRPE AL 1] Bl s R A5 A
PR\ ([ &5 ) [HIAF
AR A T ek > AN SR
A £ ] 5 AT RER LI
TE AR R &5 5 BB 7 9 &5 4K
S MBS S A B M AT > T A
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38. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued) 38. &BE T H (4)

38.3 Fair value measurements of financial instruments

38.3 &t T HZ A REMEGE

(Continued) (4F)
Financial assets and financial liabilities offsetting 4 i B 1 Y
(Continued) (#)
Gross
amounts of  Net amounts
recognised of financial
financial assets
assets (liabilities)
Gross (liabilities) presented
amounts of  set off in the in the Related amounts not offset in the
recognised  consolidated  consolidated consolidated statement of financial position
financial statement of statement of B 7 5 R O O 2 9K 8 2 T 4
assets financial financial Financial Collateral
(liahilities) position position instruments received Net amount
T &G B H
wRER  REAMHE
L Wezomad  RIERAEG
SRR E SHEE  ZEMEE
(Af) 8% (ARAE (AR SH SEIHE  FREIEN & B
HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
T T T T T T
2018 e SV =
Financial assets SMEE
Trade receivables from BXERRRAEER
cleaning house and cash clients 7,676 (2,152) 5,524 - - 5,524
Financial liabilities SRAR
Trade payables to clearing house and K &R RHEHF 2
cash clients TERTHRR (19.291) 2,152 (17,139) - - (17,139)
2017 “F b
Financial assets SHERE
Trade receivables from clearing house % [ 455 ff kB &% F
and cash clients Z IR 3 14,827 (11,820) 3,007 - - 3,007
Financial liabilities SHAE
Trade payables to clearing house EREHT R EF
and cash clients ZIEf R (36,063) 11,820 (24,43) - - (24,243)

BRERBEAERAT
—F—\EEH
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#n & B 5 $R R BT sE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION

(a) Acquisition of Belicious (HK) Limited (‘“Belicious”)

On 20 April 2018, the Group acquired 100% equity
interest in Belicious and the entire shareholder’s loan
at an aggregated cash consideration of HK$23,000,000.
Belicious is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is principally engaged in the
distribution of imported craft beer in Hong Kong and
the PRC.

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities at the

39. Wl BB R O W) R BB A

Ui

(a)  WECH BL A IRy T 0y A R 24 )

(TEE A e = w3 1)

W E—)ENH .+ H A
A5 3] g I EU R B T M 2 A
TR S R 2 B A
LB 4 A0 AE 7 5 123,000,000
JC o LRI IRE T gy 2 — ] A
T ML ARAF > £
B U S B A 5 B o
s T NG 37 o

TR WS FB > wT k) B

date of acquisition is as follows: EZ A AREEWT :

HK$’000

T T
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) W2 R B (i EE16) 198
Inventories 8 1,787
Trade receivables JHRE Wiz B 3K 2,259
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables % 4 ~ T A 7k S HoAth FE i 3k A 202
Cash and cash equivalents B4 B Bl S5 EY) 3,496
Trade and other payables JARE A B Ak B At JE A 3K TE (3,350)
Shareholder’s loan il (1,519)
Total net assets %R E A 3,073
Goodwill arising on acquisition W i B AR 2 v A
Consideration A8 23,000
Less: shareholder’s loan acquired T T WA ) R R K (1,519)
Less: Net assets acquired W T W 1) VR (3,073)
Goodwill (Note 19) A (B EE19) 18,408
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND 39, Wil "HEMBAFRERE

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) Pf (45 )

(a) Acquisition of Belicious (HK) Limited (“Belicious”) (a) Wk bb A1) ek T Ty 45 PR 2 W)
(Continued) (THeAIyF Tyl ]) (4)
Goodwill arising from the acquisition was attributable WA B T A 1) P T 45 45 A TR
to the benefit of the anticipated profitability and future T AE AR 43 35 SE TS 2 21 R e
development of the alcoholic beverage distribution T1 Fe R BE R o 5% 48 | 25 51 AN
business. These benefits are not recognised separately B AL B R - T B
from goodwill as the future economic benefits arising T A ) AR AR A 975 M) i ik v 5
from them cannot be reliably measured. Sl o

HK$°000
BT T
Net cash outflow on acquisition of Belicious Y J# It FI I F 1. 75 2
Consideration satisfied by: SATAE 2 7
Cash paid e B 23,000
Less: cash and cash equivalents acquired T BT iR Y B B A ) (3,496)
19,504

BREMREGIRAT
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

30

(a)

(b)

Acquisition of Belicious (HK) Limited (“Belicious”)
(Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Belicious contributed revenue of approximately
HK$10,132,000 and net profit of approximately
HK$2,073,000 to the Group for the period from
the date of acquisition to 31 December 2018. If
the acquisition had occurred on 1 January 2018,
the Group revenue would have been approximately
HK$11,963,000 and net profit for the year ended
31 December 2018 would have been approximately
HK$1,671,000. This pro forma information was for
illustrative purpose only and was not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
occurred on 1 January 2018, nor was it intended to be a
projection of future results.

Acquisition of Hamayaki (HK) Limited
(“Hamayaki’’) and the business (the “Business”)

On 16 October 2018, the Group acquired 100%
equity interest in Hamayaki and a shareholder’s loan
at as aggregated cash consideration of HK$813,200.
Hamayaki is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is an investment holding
company. The Group also acquired the Business of
operation of two restaurants serving Japanese cuisine
in Hong Kong including the rights and assets agreed
to be sold in the transfer of business agreement at a
cash consideration of HK$1,986,800. Hamayaki is the
leasee of the leases, on which the leased properties are
used for carrying on the business of operating the two
restaurants acquired.
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39. Wolik BB R O W) R BB A
PF ()

(a)

(b)

Wil L ) B - i A B )
(THAIBEF Tyl ]) (4F)
Vg EVEFE Y BT g2
AU H R E — R
A=+ —Ha8H A
Ry - T WY 5 AN 4 1B B RK i
A #)HE 910,132,0007C K 46 F)
7 42,073,000 7€ © fiff Ui I =5
HER —FE - NFE—H—H 8
Az RIS S5 [ (9 W A B A
#11,963,0007C > 1M #% & &
—NE+_HA=+—HILFEF
() % ) 519 2 %0 95 71,671,000
TC ° w4 M 75 B ORI S A
> A — 7 7% B i A 1 = T
i E— N E—H— HEAW
5 DL A 5 8 B I RT Bk A5  Ui
INES BWIV STV E P N
A TEN -

¢ i Hamayaki (HK) Limited
([Hamayaki |) & 3% ([ %
1)

W F—NANFE+H+TH
A% 45 ] g B Hamayaki 2 4 &5
JROHE R 2 AR I R 2 Bk > 3k
B 4 A £ W 813,200 7T ©
Hamayaki 2 — [A] /A & ik 5 it
LA BRA R B E e
JBA R T o 7 B2 [ TR i 6
5] 76 7 o (LR Aol L ) 4
(e AR N LS LT
o ] B R RE R R E ) >
B4R £ W5 1,986,800 T ©
HamayakiZ K FH A > A &
Y2 T A B R 46 45 T Az S T ]
A BRI 2T o
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND 39, Wil "HEMBAFRERE

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) B (#F)

(b) Acquisition of Hamayaki (HK) Limited (b) Wl Hamayaki (HK) Limited
(“Hamayaki”) and the business (the “Business”) ([Hamayaki |) B % ([
(Continued) 1) (%)

The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities at the WS H A > Rk A B
date of acquisition is as follows: HZ A ARBEEWT :
HK$’000
i B
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) ¥ 3£ - i /5 &t (FffsE16) 1,985
Inventories & 2
Deposits, prepayments and other i 4~ FEAST 3K B HoAth JE R
receivables 813
Shareholder’s loan Jiie BB K (822)
Total net assets B T E A (1,978)
Goodwill arising on acquisition B i A 2 v
Consideration HAHE 2,800
Less: Shareholder’s loan acquired T : T ST 1) R R K (822)
Less: Net asset acquired T+ T AT R ) O N _(1,978)
Goodwill (Note 19) 72 (B 5EEL9) -
Net cash outflow on acquisition of W4 Hamavaki & 3£ 75 2 B < i i 19 67
Hamavaki and the Business
Consideration satisfied by: SAHRE 2 7 K
Cash paid BT B 4 2,800

masHENRRLS 300
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND

31

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(b) Acquisition of Hamayaki (HK) Limited

()

(““Hamayaki”) and the business (the “Business”)
(Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group
Hamayaki contributed revenue of approximately
HKS$Nil and net profit of approximately HK$9,100 to
the Group for the period from the date of acquisition
to 31 December 2018. If the acquisition had occurred
on | January 2018, the Group revenue would have been
approximately HK$Nil and profit for the year ended
31 December 2018 would have been approximately
HK$6,800. This pro forma information was for
illustrative purpose only and was not necessarily an
indication of the revenue and results of the Group that
actually would have been achieved had the acquisition
occurred on 1 January 2018, nor was it intended to be a
projection of future results.

Acquisition of Nobel Education Organisation
Limited (‘“Nobel Education”)

On 8 October 2018, the Group acquired 51% equity
interest in Nobel Education at a cash consideration
of HK$3,000,000. Nobel Education as enlarged by
allotment and issue of 18,734,694 new shares is a
company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability and principally engaged in provision of
kindergarten and pre-school education services.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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39. W B A E R B A
ﬁ (/AE

(b) Wi Hamayaki (HK) Limited

(c)

([Hamayaki |) K& 8 ([%
1) (&)

Vi EXEy Y ES s 2 4
R H B E
H =+—H [ > Hamayaki
AL E R B Z W T I 4
FI 49 5 %59,1007C © fif i % =
R - NE—H—H %
A RIACEE [ B IS A B A&
ot mMeE —F— /4E+
H =+ — B 4B i A 2
) ¥ ¥6,8000C © #% M5 % & K
AL A& > WA — o R B
s I 2 — N4 — H
— H A M AE LT AR 4R [ R
A SRS PR I ZES > TR AN EE
VE 5 3 R AR SE AR 0 T o

e i 4 il 5 0 7 M A BR 2 )
(T4 & E]l)
= FE— NETHNH > A5
o i B s SR HE IS 1% 0%
% B4 AE 25 ¥ %53,000,000
JG © A8 L #E K 85 1718,734,694
hﬁ%ﬂ%té>mﬁﬁﬁ§
Fy— [ s o A o i 48 5
ONE] > FE B F AL HE K&
BB RS o
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND 39, Wil "HEMBAFRERE

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) B (#F)
(¢) Acquisition of Nobel Education Organisation () Wi BB HEMARAH
Limited (“Nobel Education”) (Continued) (TR sBET]) (&)
The fair value of identifiable assets and liabilities at the A kI E B B AR A I H
date of acquisition is as follows: ZONAEET
HK$’ 000
BT
Property, plant and equipment (Note 16) ¥ 3 ~ B 5 S 5t (Fff: u£16 330
Deposits, prepayments and other e ﬁﬁ &,ﬁ\ﬁﬁﬁ@q&
receivables 920
Cash and cash equivalents B4 L5 EY 3,308
Trade and other payables R AT R 5 e At BB A+ R (2,190)
Total net assets B U AR 2,368
Goodwill arising on acquisition e i Ak 2 v
Consideration RAE 3,000
Add: Non-controlling interests s I E R RE 25 1,160
Less: Net assets acquired W T WO E FE (2,368)
Goodwill (Note 19) PR (B EE19) 1,792
Net cash inflow on acquisition of W IERE T SR B 2 Bl A 1 B
Nobel Education
Consideration satisfied by: TAME Z
Cash paid oA Bl 3,000
Less: Cash and cash equivalents W Bl KBS H H (3,308)
(308)

smcpgxTEsa 3]
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND

31

(o)

(d)

BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

Acquisition of Nobel Education Organisation
Limited (‘“Nobel Education’) (Continued)

Impact of acquisition on the results of the Group

Nobel Education Organisation Limited contributed
revenue of approximately HK$1,182,000 and net
profit of approximately HK$537,000 to the Group
for the period from the date of acquisition to 31
December 2018. If the acquisition had occurred
on 1 January 2018, the Group revenue would have
been approximately HK$4,600,000 and loss for
the year ended 31 December 2018 would have
been approximately HK$3,126,000. This pro forma
information was for illustrative purpose only and was
not necessarily an indication of the revenue and results
of the Group that actually would have been achieved
had the acquisition occurred on 1 January 2018, nor
was it intended to be a projection of future results.

Acquisition of 39% interest in a non-wholly owned
subsidiary

On 21 September 2018, the Group, a company
incorporated in the Republic of Seychelles with limited
liability, as the seller entered into a sale and purchase
agreement in relation to the acquisition of 7,800 sale
shares representing 39% of the issued shares of Tony
China Limited (“Tony China”) at a consideration of
HK$10,000,000. Prior to the acquisition, Tony China is
a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, as to
51% held by the Company and as to 49% held by the
seller.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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(d)
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PR E —F— FE+
HZ=+— B % RAF
P A PR A A 2 A SR B E R
e A & s 0 1,182,0007T M 4l
FI &) s 537,000 o it i B
HEWN - F—NF—H—H
A QIR AL [ B U A £ A
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND W HEMBARREES
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued) B (#4F)

(d) Acquisition of 39% interest in a non-wholly owned

(d) W Ik 2 R 4 W39 % B 4R

subsidiary (Continued)

Tony China is a company incorporated in Hong Kong
with limited liability and is principally engaged in
investment holding. It is the holding company of three
PRC subsidiaries (collectively known as the “Tony
China Group™). The Tony China Group is principally
engaged in the manufacturing and distribution of
feedstock products and related activities. The Board
is of the view that the acquisition represented an
opportunity to consolidate the shareholding in the Tony
China Group which can further strengthen the Group’s
equity interest in the Tony China Group.

The completion of the acquisition took place on 28
September 2018, and the Company holds 90% of the
issued shares of the Tony China and the seller holds
the remaining 10% of the issued shares of the Tony
China. Each of the members of the Tony China Group
will remain to be a non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company.

The effect of changes in the ownership interest of Tony
China Group on the equity attributable to owners of
the Company during the year ended 31 December 2018
was summarised as follows:

(%)

SR R 27— T A o R A
WAL A BRAF > AR
EEPERE > 7y = [ A I B 2 ]
W FE L 7] (HEAR 2 [ A
I 2 ) o RO ok 4 B
R = A 7 B o) S BRDRL S it B AR
ZES R & 8-Vl
TG B AROR 2 I A
i P AR AR
S SRR P [ B2 o ) i

e B = TE R R — N LA
e VANE T R /N E SRR
A B 3 AT B Al 290% > T
BT FR A ORI R AT B
BRI 10% o SRR rb B 4R ] 4%
JRB A R B A A w2 JF A
BB 2 F o

R _EF - NF+ A
== H IR R E 4R
1] 1) BT A o W i 5 ) 3 A 0 )
A N A HE 25 1) R M 4
T

HK$°000
T T

Carrying amount of non-controlling O Wi il 2 JF 48 e i R T

interest acquired

Consideration: fRAE

Settlement of other receivables Gt B EL A B SRR T
Consideration paid to non-controlling ] I 52 I HE 2 52 ﬁ ZRE

interest

8,969

4,600

5,400

10,000

Excess of consideration paid recognised #*HE % 19 2 51k 8 #E SR 19

in accumulated losses within equity RO ATE

(1,031)

masHEnRRLs 313
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(e)

31

Acquisition of additional interest in Profit Network
Asia Inc. (“Profit Network™)

On 16 June 2017,
interests in Profit Network from Trinity Worldwide

the Group acquired 49% equity

Capital Holding Limited, a company incorporated in
the British Virgin Islands with limited liability and
wholly owned by Mr. Ng Ting Kit, elder brother of
Mr. Ng Ting Ho, a director of the Company, at a cash
consideration of HK$39,200,000. The acquisition of
49% equity interest in Profit Network constituted a
major and connected transaction of the Company under
the GEM Listing Rules and the ordinary resolution
relating thereto was passed by the shareholders of
the Company at a special general meeting held on 12
June 2017. Upon completion of the acquisition on 16
June 2017, Profit Network and its subsidiary (“Profit
Network Group”) became wholly-owned subsidiaries
of the Company and the financial results of the Profit
Network Group continue to be consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements of the Company.
The difference between the fair value of consideration
paid and the decrease in a non-controlling interest was
adjusted in the accumulated loss of the Group.

The subsidiary of Profit Network is a company
incorporated in Hong Kong with limited liability and a
licensed corporation to carry out on businesses in Type
1 (dealing in securities), Type 4 (advising on securities)
and Type 9 (asset management) regulated activities
under the Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”).
In the opinion of the directors, the acquisition by the
Group is to diversify the Group’s business into the
financial services industry in addition to the Group’s
existing securities investment and trading and related
businesses.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

(e) Acquisition of additional interest in Profit Network

()

Asia Inc. (“Profit Network™) (Continued)

The effect of changes in the ownership interest of Profit
Network on the equity attributable to owners of the
Company during the year ended 31 December 2017 was
summarised as follows:

Carrying amount of non-controlling
interest acquired

Consideration paid to non-controlling
interest

Wl H B PR R A W B R A
ﬁ (/'5)

(e)

1e] JF 28 BB HE 4 52 A 2 AU

W2 B Profit Network Asia Inc.
([Profit Network 1) 2 %A #b
WS (4F)
HEE -F — L8+ =
H =+ —H IL4 & > Profit
Network ¥ T A & HE 4 5 B) %
AR FIEA N IRE A HE 25 1 5 2
WEHk 4

HK$°000
s W T ou

WS 22 42 FBCRE 2 % T (L

27,951

(39,200)

Excess of consideration paid recognised A fii Y] 2 5l s 18 Hh w52 09 B #H A5 AR

in accumulated losses within equity 5

Disposal of Treasure Easy Limited

On 31 January 2018, Rich Sheen International Limited
(“Rich Sheen”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company, and Mr. Li Ho Kwong, a substantial
shareholder and director of Treasure Easy Limited
(“Treasure Easy”) entered into the sale and purchase
agreement, pursuant to which Rich Sheen agreed to
sell its 51% equity interest on Treasure Easy, and the
entire shareholder’s loan owing by Treasure Easy to
Rich Sheen as at 31 January 2018, at an aggregate cash
consideration of HK$20,000 as Treasure Easy was at a
net liability position as of that date.

®

(11,249)

il # Treasure Easy Limited
wWoEFE—-NF—H=1+—
H> Zli/\ﬂZFEJﬁAgW%
Nl E BB BEARAR (T
A |) BlTreasure Easy L1m1ted
([ Treasure Easy |) i) 3 2 Jix
RARE RO ER L E
B ek I B ERE B E
HjjA Treasure EasyH51%%H fi
&)JL/‘# F—/E—-H=+—
H Treasure Easy#t K & & 1) 42
1 = B TR A = B
#20,0007C > JiL Al /& Treasure

Easy it #% H i & s #EiR
ik

BREMREGRL

:n—}\ﬂfiiﬁ 3 ]- 5
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39. ACQUISITION/DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES AND
BUSINESS COMBINATION (Continued)

)

31

Disposal of Treasure Easy Limited (Continued) (f)

The assets, liabilities and loss on disposal of Treasure
Easy as at the date of disposal are as follows:

Deposits, prepayments and
other receivables

Trade and other payable

Shareholder’s loan

Loss arising on disposal
Consideration
Non-controlling interests
Shareholders’ loan disposed
Add: Net liabilities disposed

Loss on disposal

Net cash inflow on acquisition of
Treasure Easy

Cash consideration

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited

Annual Report 2018

PF (4)

T

5=
S

A T T S L A R WA T

HIR 3 B A JBE A5 3K TE
£ x

i I E R 2 1R
HE

I 2 B E 4

C A Z BOR K
mrEmEZ BEEHR

HEFIH L B H

K % Treasure Easy 2 B 4 i A {5 51

B UE

39. Wolik BB R O W) R BB A

ih £ Treasure Easy

Limited (#%)

Treasure Easy /it & H 81 &
e~ B S FIE 2

HK$’000
i R

198
(1,298)
(1,814)

(2,914)

HK$°000
T T

20

(1,428)

(1,814)
2,914

(308)

HK$’000
T

20




40. OPERATING LEASE COMMITMENTS

41.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd))
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For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &
40. KEMBE R

TR i A > AR 4 B AR AN T R
REB A 2 R A S AR A B R 3 2 2

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had
commitments for future minimum lease payments under non-

cancellable operating leases which fall due as follows: WS -
2018 2017
ZENE E L
HK$’000 HK$’000
T HEX i AW
Land and buildings + b R pE
— Within one year ——4FRN 12,835 3,429
— In the second to fifth years inclusive — AR R AR
(RLI5 8 B W) 10,326 734
23,161 4,163

AR AEYE B T i K& BE
Y2 R 2 AR A AR I R
FoBRE(ZFE—LE ZFN
) o wZ AR B A B 8 IR AR 4 o

Operating leases for land and buildings relate to office
premises, staff’s quarter and restaurant premises with lease
terms of between 2 to 5 years (2017: 2 to 4 years). The lease
does not include contingent rental.

COMMITMENTS 41. 7R ¥

Capital commitments B AR

R AR 2 B A RS Ty 1 AR
[ SIf7 A S A S R GR A 2 R
ARYEE

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had the
following significant commitments which were not provided
for in the consolidated financial statements:

2018 2017
“E)N\E ZF LA
HK$’000 HK$’000
wW T BT
Authorised and contracted for: THEH CERRE LG4
Capital contribution to investments HRETE 966 953

BREMIBEERAD
e g 317
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42.

31

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group’s liabilities
arising from financing activities. Liabilities arising from
financing activities are those for which cash flow were,
or future cash flows will be classified in the Group’s
consolidated statement of cash flows from financing

activities.

At 1 January 2017 RZF—tE~H—H

Changes from financing activities HBETEH#E)

Repayment of amount due to BRI — 4 R PRI HE 45
a non-controlling interest P

Repayment of bank and other borrowings BB IRAT S A 3K

At 31 December 2017 e S i

+-H=+—H

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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42. BB E R Z AR BIR

ARSI B S
BfEE - MEEBELE AR
HLHL B i O BRI B 5 i )
MEALEBE R 2G5 BER
RERH -

Amount
due to a
non- Bank and
controlling other
interest borrowings Total
JEff— 4
e I e g BT R
Z I HoA A% it
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$°000
T T T T T
29,400 25,470 54,870
(29,400) - (29,400)
- (25,470) (25,470)
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in these consolidated financial

statements, the Group had the following transactions with

related parties during the year:

(a) Transactions with related parties

Related party
Il Wk g

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
R IEE

Mr. Lam Chun Kei
ViNcE e

Mr. Ng Ting Kit or
his close family members

SIS R R A

Companies controlled by
Mr. Ng Ting Kit or
his close family member
REEGI A
Hrisl 2 2w

BLVD Cayman Limited

Notes:

Nature of transaction

25"

Commission income
from securities dealing

HHREEZMERA

Commission income
from securities dealing

W7 HEH Z fElA

Commission income
from securities dealing

I EAL N

K
HE

Commission income
from securities dealing
wARHEZMERA

Interest income from securities

it 7 2 FLE A

Other interest income

HA A S A

(1) The commission income from securities dealings was

calculated at rates ranged from 0.03% to 0.05%.

(ii)  The interest income from securities dealings was based on the

rates which substantially in line with those normally received

by the Group from third parties.

43.

PR 5 R 5

Izﬁuszmj‘\ (&] JW%*&%%FE?&E%%&F
A A AR A T BB N L HEAT 2
R (I

(a) ST RE 5

2018 2017
BN CF L
Notes HK$’000 HKS$’000
Bt 5 T T oo
(i) 1 5
(i) - 6
(i) 1 17
(1) 1 9
(i) - 2
341 -
B 5
(i) WHEEEZMERALRT
0.03% % 0.05% 2 2 Rl E o

(i) RHEEZHBRATIRER
HORT A ARG B 1) 5 = 07— Ml
R 2 3 5 o

BREMREGRL
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43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued)

(b)

32

Outstanding balances with related parties

Included in the trade receivables, loan and interest

receivables and trade payables arising from the ordinary

course of business are amounts due from/(to) certain

related parties, the details of which are as follows:

Related party
5 Wi i

Mr. Ng Man Chun Paul
SRR E

Mr. Lam Chun Kei
N

Mr. Ng Ting Kit and
his close family members

S IR e A R R

Companies controlled by
Mr. Ng Ting Kit or
his close family members
SIEG oA B
HA W 2 2 )

BLVD Cayman Limited

Nature of account

POy

Cash account
BEFO
Margin account
R 0

Cash accounts
&R

Cash account
BeF N
Margin account
ReEEF O

Cash account
BeF O
Margin account
REEF N

Loan receivable and interest

I WS T B )L

The outstanding balances of cash accounts above

represent the net balance of trading accounts at the end

of the reporting period.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
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43. BB TR S (#4)

(b)  ELBHBE 5 Z A &5 AF &5 B

FE A — B AR R
2 i B K~ R Wi R R R A
BB EAT R - S B, (HE
1) 25 T B Wk 7 2 K> " A

nF -
2018
— - UE
HK$’000
e W T 5
(©6)

(18)

1)

(394)

(433)

(182)

(523)

2,841

2017

L

HK$’000

i
(©)

(108)

(1)

(425)

(73)

(65)

(296)

AR PEBEF 02
REGHERRIE L B IR 2 58k

# o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &
43. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Continued) 43. BB 5 (4)
(¢) Compensation of key management personnel () FEEBEMBEALZME

The remuneration of key management during the year

was as follows:

Short-term benefits
Post-employment benefits
Share option expense
Discretionary bonus

AAERE R BRI AN

T

2018 2017
ZE-NE EF—bH
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T
jsR GE vl 3,468 2,863
Al I % 4 ] 62 57
Wi 15 i B 57 - 346
15 1% 1€ 4L 1,015 640
4,545 3,906

BRSRBEERAT
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)

#n & B 5 $R R BT sE (48)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # % — & — /4 = =+ —H 1L %

44. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY AND RESERVE MOVEMENT

32

Statement of financial position of the Company

Non-current assets
Investments in subsidiaries

Current assets

Deposits, prepayments and other

receivables

Amounts due from subsidiaries

Cash and cash equivalents

Current liabilities
Amounts due to subsidiaries
Other payables and accruals

Net current assets

Net assets

Capital and reserves
Share capital
Reserves

Total equity

The statement of financial position of the Company was
approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors
on 22 March 2019 and are signed on its behalf by:

Director

#HH

Mr. Ng Ting Ho

RE W ek
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44. A oy ) B B SIR DU e B f s 52 )

A 2 ] B R L %
2018 2017
F—)N\E —F— LI
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T
Ik i Bh B
B A F A 32,487 22,497
B &
2 4 ~ TEAT CE K
At 1 Az 3K I 1,151 529
JE A Bf JE8 2 W] 3k H 92,832 288,838
Be kB 4e%EER 35,523 25,042
129,506 314,409
B A fE
JE ASt BfF J& > w1 K IE 113,593 102,331
A E A< K 0 K 7 R 2 2,074 2,275
115,667 104,606
i B e 13,839 209,803
& A 46,326 232,300
& A Je ik
ji&N 12,242 9,936
it Hd 34,084 222364
HE 25 4 % 46,326 232,300

ARARZMBERMEC R —F—N
HEZH T HKE R IR
REFEE > M0 FAE R RS

Director

Mr. Lam Chun Kei
VNP A
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Continued))

in ORISR R AIEE (18

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION OF THE
COMPANY AND RESERVE MOVEMENT (Continued)

Movement in the Company’s reserve

Balance at 1 January 2017

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Issue of share upon exercise of
share options (Note 33(ii))

Issue of placing shares (Note 33(i))

Transactions costs attributable to
issue of shares

Recognition of equity-settled
share-based payment (Note 35)

Lapse of share options

Balance at 31 December 2017

Loss for the year
Other comprehensive income for the year

Total comprehensive expense for the year

Issue of share upon exercise of
share options (Note 33(ii))

Issue of placing shares (Note 33(i))

Transactions costs attributable to
issue of shares

Lapse of share options

Balance at 31 December 2018

REF—tiE-A-RZEH

AEEEH
FEZR2AE

XD T

T TR RE IS B 1T
(H5E33(0))

BATRERG (B EE33()

BT R 2 2 5 Bk

TERR DA AR B DL R 3 S A 2

A (3835
ISR 3
RoF-tEF A=t R 2ER

AEREH
AEE bR T

AERATR A%

RN E T R
(M 5E33(1i))

BT E MO (BHE336))

BATRR REA 2 2 53 Uk

Tt

REZ-NEFZAZY A&

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

44. A 5y ) BB 5K D e B Gl G 52 B

(#)
A 5y ) fih A 5 B
Share

Share  Contributed Capital options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total
Jhe b it YN N itk wit
HKS'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS'000
R HHT T T R T T
118,769 153,551 71317 - (2,865) 346,772
- - - - (146,186) (146,186)
- - - - (146,186) (146,186)
6,901 - - (1,531) - 5370
13,842 - - - - 13,842
(638) - - - - (638)
- - - 3,204 - 3,204
- - - (166) 166 -
138,874 153,551 71317 1,507 (148,885) 222,364
- - - - (208,505) (208,505)
- - - - (208,505) (208,505)
5,495 - - (1,010 - 4485
16,605 - - - - 16,605
(865) - - - - (865)
- - - (497) 497 -
160,109 153,551 71,317 - (356,893) 34,084

BRERBEAERAT
—F—\EEH

323



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements (Continued)
REAMERARME (&)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

45.

32

EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD

On 4 January 2019, Amber Talent International Limited
(“Amber Talent”), an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of
the Company, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with an individual (“Vendor”), an independent third party,
pursuant to which Amber Talent has conditionally agreed
to acquire from the Vendor the entire issued share capital
of Champ Express Holdings Limited (“Champ Express”),
a company incorporated in the British Virgin Islands with
limited liability, at the consideration of HK$6,800,000.
Champ Express and its subsidiaries (“Champ Express
Group”) are principally engaged in the research and
development of Chinese patented medicine products.
After taking into account of commercial considerations. In
particular, that sufficient documents and/or information have
not been provided to the Group to carry out and complete the
due diligence of the Champ Express Group to its satisfaction,
on 7 March 2019, the Vendor and Amber Talent entered into
a termination agreement whereby the parties have mutually
agreed to terminate the sale and purchase agreement with
effect from the date of such termination agreement and upon
termination, no party to the sale and purchase agreement
shall have any claim against the other party in respect of any
matter or thing arising out of or in connection with the sale
and purchase agreement save for any antecedent breaches
and accrued benefits.

China Demeter Financial Investments Limited
Annual Report 2018

5. MR IR

= F—JUE—HMEH R
BARAR (THRBEE] > ARX
AW EEEREAR) (H
T B —Z RN (T'ER] &
S =) I OLE R R SR
A K B B A A A (] 2 e B 5 W
Champ Express Holdings Limited
([Champ Express ) (— [#] A%
J& BE A BE R GE MRS A IR A
A ) B A AT e o AUE T
#%6,800,0007C © Champ Express %
H [t J& 2~ 7 ([ Champ Expressf
M) = 2 A T b 2 BT O
BHEE - 5 R B 2 R R L H R A
AE B R BRI A SO BB
HF2LBH JE 1 52 18 ¥ Champ  Express
B ) ) TR o A DL A A AR S A
B E-RE=ZALH B EHA
PN SIS F R AN i)
EAH B 1 #¢ I B B k- B %A
1k Tk H AR A R R % 1k 4% -
B Tih e AT — 7 AP R
i 71 25 S5l B LA ] 9 A ] S B
B IE ) 5y — O $ AR R - HE
A AT 5 i S B 25 H A 2 R b o



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements Corltinuetd))
RO IRRMEE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # # — & — /\4F = = +—H L FF &

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING PERIOD 45. WM EIE ()

(Continued)

On 15 March 2019, East Gain Enterprise Limited (“East
Gain”), an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company, accepted the offer from Convoy Collateral Limited
(“CCL”), a company incorporated in Hong Kong with limited
liability, an independent third party to purchase 736.217
fund shares of an unlisted investment fund (the “Fund”) with
carrying amount of HK$5,334,000 as at 31 December 2018
held by East Gain at the disposal price of approximately
HK$6.6 million (the “Disposal Price”). The Disposal Price is
to be settled in cash by 34 monthly instalments from March
2019 to December 2021.

Completion of the disposal of the Fund is conditional upon
the other shareholders of the Fund accepting CCL’s offer and
East Gain receiving the Disposal Price in full from CCL. As
at the date of this report, East Gain has been informed by
CCL that all shareholders of the Fund had accepted its offer
to purchase.

AR -NAEZAT R B
EAMWNE ([Hi] > ANFZ M
PGB N A > AN R 2 I
BIRAF ([FREMB] > — MR F
Rl N A SN /NI R A
=) ZEA DR R EEL
# %6,600,0007C ([ BE1E ) #2 i
WER FE— /4E+HA=+—
H Ar F5 A B 1w 2 % 155,334,000
TR LETHERE (4] W
736.217 5 iy o B AE R —
E-NE=ZH2F_—F+_H
N 3448 H 43 BIAS B B 4 4 55 o

5t At B 2R < ZR A 2 4 2 HLABER
e A R BB B A ELSROR S R
% WA 1 AR B AR DT AT AR < R
A B ORI 2 R % B 5
o A AR 2 BOR RS 2
TH

BREMREGIRAT
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Flve a/ears Financial Summary

aEvE e

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

1.1.2018 1.1.2017 1.1.2016 1.1.2015 1.1.2014
to to to to to
31.12.2018 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2015 31.12.2014
R )\ —E L ZEhE R L SR
—H—HZE —H—HZz —H—HZz —H—H=Zz —H—Hz
R\ —E L SRR “E L SR
T+ZA=Z+—80 +ZAZt—H +ZHA=Zt—H8 +SAZ—H FZA=T—H
HK$’000 HK$°000 HKS$°000 HKS$°000 HK$°000
i3 T ool i i BT T T
RESULTS E3
Revenue LUU\
Continuing operations B 73,423 53,393 37,739 37,803 14,572
Discontinued operations B %8&%%“%4% - 3,584 23,964 85,341 14,167
73,423 56,977 61,703 123,144 28,739
(Loss)/profit from mEERZ (ER)/
operations i 1
Continuing operations PR % (40,936) (77,241) (16,728) 9,768 (12,640)
Discontinued operations GRS eV - (1,817) 5,829 9,505 1,103
(40,936) (79,058) (10,899) 19,273 (11,537)
Finance costs 5 A
Continuing operations AR T (38) (1,104) (870) (252) (101)
Discontinued operations B £ - - - (168) -
(398) (1,104) (870) (420) (101)
(Loss)/gain on 1E 555 5 BE I
deconsolidation of / VAl (E#R)
subsidiaries I %
Continuing operations TR B T (308) - - - -
Discontinued operations O R - 2,867 - 1,359 -
(308) 2,867 - 1,359 -
Assets impairments B WE
Continuing operations PR 7% - (20,524) (1,320) (5,934) (4,416)
Discontinued operations B £ - - (1,629) - (1,798)
- (20,524) (2,949) (5,934) (6,214)
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(Loss)/profit before tax
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

BREBLAT (R H) /i A

FHE A KT
BRI e

Income tax (expenses)/credit FF {58 (B %) /K%

Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit to the year
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

(Loss)/profit attributable to

Owners of the Company
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

Non-controlling interests
Continuing operations
Discontinued operations

PR SE TS
BB EY

A () /i
PR SE TS
B IEEEEY

S IPNN 3
(8 /i -
E/NIE LN
PR SE TS
B IEEEEY

T fE e £
PR SE TS
B IEEEEY

Five-years Financial Summary Continuetd))
hEFEMFRE (8

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

1.1.2018 1.1.2017 1.1.2016 1.1.2015 1.1.2014

to to to to to
31.12.2018 31122017 31.12.2016 31.12.2015 31.12.2014
e S T b R S b O S T
—~H—HZE —~H—HZ —“H—HZ —H—HZ% —HA—HZ
“R-NE ZF-bF 0 ZF R ZF-ffF DR NE
+ZA=+—R +ZA=+-H +ZA=FH F2A= - A= H
HK$°000 HK$'000 HK$°000 HK$°000 HK$’000
[ T T BT BT o

(40,974) (98.869) (18.918) 3.582 (17.158)

- 1,050 4,200 10,696 (694)

(40,974) (97.819) (14,718) 14,278 (17.852)

(320) 40 361 (1.273) (24)

(320) 40 361 (1,273) (24)

(41,294) (98.829) (18.557) 2,309 (17.182)

- 1,050 4,200 10,696 (694)

(41,294) (97.779) (14,357) 13,005 (17.876)

(40,542) (99.021) (19,640) 2,607 (15.040)

- 534 1,957 3,561 (249)

(40,542) (98.487) (17.683) 6,168 (15.289)

(752) 192 1,083 (298) (2.142)

- 516 2,243 7,135 (445)

(752) 708 3.326 6.837 (2.587)

BREMREBRAG

B\ FFR
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Five-years Financial Summary (Continued)
hEMBERE (8)

For the year ended 31 December 2018 # £ —E— /41 = H =+1—H I F ¥

31.12.2018 31.12.2017 31.12.2016 31.12.2015 31.12.2014

B S T s v S S €O S T
YEAZY-H FZA=E-H A ZAZEH AR A=t H
HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$000 HKS$’000

T T T T T T

ASSETS AND B kAN
LIABILITIES

Total assets MR 284,556 326,549 506,433 362,594 399,196

Total liabilities A (38,059) (37,946) (107,052) (10,948) (54,098)
246,497 288,603 399,381 351,646 345,098

Equity attributable to N A AR

Owners of the Company A~ A HEA A 243,416 271,735 361,420 342,054 290,558

Non-controlling interests  JF % Bt 35 3,081 10,868 37,961 9,592 54,540
246,497 288,603 399,381 351,646 345,098
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